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December 30, 2014

To the Honorable Mayor Lane Curlee, Aldermen and Citizens of Tullahoma, Tennessee

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months
of the close of each fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified
public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive
annual financial report of the City of Tullahoma for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014,

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City
of Tullahoma, Tennessee. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of all information presented in this report. To provide a
reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City of Tullahoma
has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
protect the government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the City of Tullahoma’s financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their
benefits, the City of Tullahoma’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all
material aspects.

The City of Tullahoma’s financial statements have been audited by Housholder Artman,
PLLC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the City of Tullahoma’s financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2014, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: introductory,
financial, statistical, and the independent auditor’s report on compliance and internal
controls. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, a listing of public
officials, and an organizational chart of the Government’s public service departments.



The financial section includes the independent auditors’ report, management’s discussion
and analysis (MD&A), the basic financial statements, notes to the financial statements,
required supplementary information, and statements of individual funds and component
units. The Government is required to include MD&A as an analysis of the government’s
financial performance for the year. This letter of transmittal is intended as an
introduction and should be read in conjunction with MD&A.

The statistical section includes demographic and financial information with multiple
years shown for comparison.

The fourth section contains the independent auditors® reports on the internal control
structure and compliance with laws and regulations as required by the provisions of
Single Audit Act and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

Profile of the Government

The City of Tullahoma had a 2010 census population of 18,579 and is located in both
Coffee and Franklin Counties in southern middle Tennessee. The Government provides a
wide range of services including: education, public works, parks and recreation, planning
and codes, fire and police protection, public power, water and wastewater services, and
general administrative services. The Tullahoma Utilities Board has recently added the
provision of fiber optics carried telephone, television and internet to its array of customer
services. The City also operates its own award winning K-12 school system. Tullahoma
High School students® ACT and SAT scores consistently exceed state and national
averages.

A Board of Mayor and Aldermen govern the City of Tullahoma. The board members
serve the city at-large. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen set policy for the city
government, appoint committee and board members, approve an annual budget, enact
laws and ordinances, enter into contracts, and set public hearings.

Economic Conditions

Tullahoma’s central location has fostered its growth into a thriving regional, commercial,
shopping and medical hub that boasts a healthy business environment and is home to over
68 service and manufacturing industries. 34% of the State’s 5.689 million citizens reside
in the Middle Tennessee area and many pass through Tullahoma; the daily average traffic
count for Tullahoma’s main retail area is approximately 24,000. This excellent “hub”
location continues to attract new retail big box and smaller specialty retailers.

Since the opening of Arnold Air Force Base here in 1951, Tullahoma has been an
aviation and aeronautics industry center. Arnold Engineering Development Center at
Arnold Air Force Base is home to the world’s largest and most complex collection of
flight simulation test facilities.

Tullahoma has continued to partner with Coffee County and the State of Tennessee for
economic development projects and has been honored with the Governor’s Three Star
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Award for the past 19 years. Additionally, Tullahoma has established the Tullahoma
Area Economic Development Corporation to assist local businesses with expansion
opportunities, as well as attract new businesses to the area.

Tullahoma is situated near several lakes and parks making it a great recreational haven.
[t is also a regional center for the arts, with community plays, annual cultural fairs and
events, a {ine arts center and science contributing to the quality of life for residents and
generating tourism revenue.

Primary Government and Component Units

As detailed later in the Management Discussion and Analysis portion of this financial
report, the City of Tullahoma is comprised of several related entities. The City of
Tullahoma Board of Mayor and Aldermen have varying degrees of authority for the
operations of these entities by state law, or by local charter and ordinance. The City of
Tullahoma and the Tullahoma City Schools are shown in the financial report categorized
under “Primary Government — Governmental Activities.” The Tullahoma City Schools
are governed by an elected Board of Education empowered with the daily operations of
the school system. Approval of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen is required for the
annual budget, capital projects and debt issuance. The Board of Education, by state law,
cannot levy taxes, and therefore has limited power to generate revenues other than
establishing tuition or service-related fees. A City Alderman is appointed annually as the
non-voting liaison to the Board of Education, and the City provides a large portion of the
school’s operating budget and debt service as periodic transfers throughout the year.

The Tullahoma Utilities Board is reported as a “Primary Government — Business Type
Activities”, since it is not dependant on the City of Tullahoma for operating revenues, but
derives its income from service fees charged for provision of electricity and water,
wastewater collection, and fiber-optics. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen appoint all

voting members of the Utilities Board to staggered terms. An Alderman also sits on this
Board.

The Tullahoma Airport Authority, the Tullahoma Industrial Development Board and the
Tullahoma Area Economic Development Corporation (TAEDC) are all reported as
component units of the City of Tullahoma,. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen appoint
the members of these boards as well, with an Alderman as a non-voting liaison. The City
of Tullahoma also provides the majority of the operating budget for these entities..

Long —Term Financial Planning

The Board of Mayor and Alderman adopted “Building Our Future: Tullahoma’s Strategic
Plan.”  This document incorporates previous committee and community planning
meetings, growth studies, development studies and plans to provide a comprehensive tool
for immediate and long-term planning. This forty-six page document serves as the basis
for long range capital and operating forecasts as well as annual budgetary decisions. The
City of Tullahoma joined with the City of Manchester and Coffee County in 2005 to
participate in the Governor’s Three Star Program. As part of that process, the City of
Tullahoma’s strategic plan was folded into a new county-wide economic development
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plan entitled, “Our Future Together: Coffee County Tennessee Strategic Development
Plan FY2006-2010". This plan provided a five-year planning basis for many of the
initiatives now in process. The plan covers several broad themes such as creating a
vibrant economy, developing a safe, caring and diverse community as well as promoting
goals and objectives to facilitate a sustainable healthy environment. The annual budget

process integrates the philosophies of this document into capital expenditure planning
and direction.

Budget Process

The Tullahoma Municipal Code (Title 6, Chapter 1, Section 6-102) provides that no later
that fifteen (15) days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the City Administrator
shall prepare and submit to the Board of Mayor and Alderman a proposed budget for the
next fiscal year, showing separately for the general fund and for each other fund the
following information: Revenue and expenditures during the preceding fiscal year;
Appropriations and estimated revenue and expenditures for the current fiscal year; and
Estimated revenue and recommended expenditures for the next fiscal year.

The Mayor and/or City Administrator may recommend and estimate additional revenue
measures including increases in property tax rates, provided estimates are separated
clearly from normal revenue estimates. The budget will be accomplished by a message
from the Mayor containing a statement of the general fiscal policies of the City, the
important features of the budget, explanations of major changes recommended for the
next fiscal year as compared with the current fiscal year, a general summary of the budget
and such other comments and information as may be deemed pertinent to the budget
process. To ensure compliance with this Municipal Code requirement, a budget schedule
is prepared to facilitate the decision-making process by providing overall direction to
City depariments and independent boards and agencies that derive funding from City
government. The budget preparation process begins in late winter when the City
departments begin preparation of long-term capital improvement project requests.

In early March, City departments begin assessing new resource needs for the coming vear
relative to equipment, maintenance requirements, information technology, and proposed
new and expanded work programs. In late March, the Mayor presents his goals and
objectives for the upcoming fiscal year to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. Based on
those initiatives, budget requests and supporting documentation as prepared by individual
departments and submitted in early April for review by the City Administrator. The
Finance Director then creates a preliminary budget for review by staff and the Board
during the budget process. The budget documentation submitted by individual
departments also includes a statement of proposed departmental goals and objectives,
performance measures and estimates of performance for the coming fiscal year, and a
detailed line item budget outlining expenditure and justifications for maintaining current
and expanded expenditure levels. During April, the City Administrator conducts a
review and evaluation of each request in light of available revenues and in accordance
with the City’s overall goals and objectives.

During May, the Finance Director, with direction from the City Administrator, compiles
the information from earlier steps in the budget process into one budget document for
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review by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. Generally, the last half of April and early
May is set aside for the City Administrator’s budget review sessions with department
heads and elected officials. Departmental objectives, measures of performance and
operating budgets are refined for consolidation in the Proposed Budget document during
the month of May. Expenditures and revenue projections for the current fiscal year and
estimates for the proposed fiscal year are updated with the latest available data. Final
adjustments to routine operating expenditures and anticipated revenues can be introduced
for inclusion in the Proposed Budget during this time.

‘The budget draft for the upcoming fiscal year is first presented to the Board of Mayor and
Aldermen in late April for initial review. Budget Work Sessions are held with the Board
of Mayor and Aldermen to review the proposed operating budget and proposed
allocations to independent boards and agencies deriving funds from City government.
These work sessions provide opportunities for the Board, independent boards and
agencies, department heads, and the public to comment and ask questions about the
proposed budget and to request additional information as needed.

During June, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen will conduct public hearings on the
Proposed Budget. These hearings provide formal citizen input to the Board on decisions
and 1ssues related to the budget. The first reading of the Budget Ordinance is held at
either the first or the second regular meeting in June. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen
will formally consider and may amend the proposed budget as deemed necessary and
adopt the authorized ordinances pertaining to the budget process. The Board of Mayor
and Aldermen schedule special call meetings as necessary specifically for the purpose of
reviewing and adopting the proposed budget. Upon the third and final reading by the
Board of Mayor and Alderman, the Board will set the appropriate tax rate for the
upcoming year.

The City of Tullahoma’s budget process encourages interaction among the City
Administrator, members of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, City departments,
independent boards and agencies, and the general public. The City continues to review
and refine this practice each year to ensure public participation at each step in the
decision-making process and that the budget procedure is an informative and complete

plan for identifying the revenues and expenditures, and the purposes thereof for the
coming fiscal year.

Annual Independent Audit

Section 5-106 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Tullahoma dictates that “The
Board shall employ a certified public accountant to make an annual audit of all financial
books and records of the city.” Tt further sites Tennessee Code Annotated §6-56-105
which states that the governing body of each municipality shall cause an annual audit to
be made of the accounts and records of all departments, boards, and agencies under its
jurisdiction that receive and disburse funds. All audits must be submitted to the
comptroller of the treasury for approval. The city periodically solicits professional
proposals for audit services and currently contracts with Housholder Artman, PLLC in
Tullahoma for the annual audit of all municipal entities.



Single Audir

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is responsible for

ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable .
laws and regulations related to those programs. As part of the City’s single audit, tests

are performed to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, including the

portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine

that the City has complied, in all material respects, with applicable laws and regulations,

The results of the City’s single audit for fiscal year 2013 are included in this financial

report under the Reports on Compliance and Internal Controls section.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The City of Tullahoma has received the Government Finance Officers Association
Certification of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for.the year 1992-1994 and 1996-2009, and
2011-2013. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of the state and local government

financial reports. This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report will also be submitted
for award consideration.

Many individuals in all our boards and agencies assisied in the preparation of this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and we appreciate their cooperation and
dedication, as well as the assistance of the City Recorder and Finance Department staff,

Respectfully submigted,

A

Susan B. Wilson
Fin ce Director

[ B =

Louis J. Baltz, 111
City Administrator
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HOUSHOLDER ARTMAN, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

P.O. Box 1568 Telephone 931-455-4248
Tuliahcma, Tennessee 37388 Fax 931-393-2122

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Wl

ety

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Tullahoma, Tennessee

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Tullahoma,
Tennessee (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibifity for the Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal

control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due o
fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit alse includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial
position, the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the General Purpose School Fund and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note | 1o the financial statements, in 2014, the City adopted new accounting guidance, G4ASE Statement No. 63, ltems
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

MEMBERS
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCDUNTANTS 1 TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS




Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis and
schedules of funding progress, employer contributions, and actuarial methods and significant assumptions on pages A-1 through A-16
and B-53 through B-54 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements, Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Cther Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of
Tullahoma, Tennessee’s basic financial statements. The introductory section on pages i through x, combining and individual non-major
fund financial statements on pages C-1 through C-10, financial schedules on pages C-11 and D-1 through D-17, and statistical section on
pages E-1 through E-27, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements,
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required
part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund staternents and financial schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
financial schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 2014, on our consideration of
the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s internal contral over financial reporting and compliance,

oot Ortirn. PLLC

December 30, 2014

2






CITY OF TULLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(amounts expressed in thonsands)

As management of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee (the City), we offer readers of the
City’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the City and its related agencies for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be
found in the introductory section of this report.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory,
financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes a transmittal
letter, the government's organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial
section includes the independent auditor’s report, management’s discussion and analysis
and general financial statements for the City of Tullahoma and its component units. The
statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis. The fourth section is the independent auditor’s reports
on compliance and internal controls.

Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Certificate of Achicvement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting

The City of Tullahoma has received the Government Finance Officers Association
Certification of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the years 1992-1994, and 1996-
2009, and 2011-2013. This has been a major achievement for the City. This recognition
also reflects significant cooperation between all boards and agencies of the City included
in the CAFR and the auditing firm that prepared the CAFR. This CAFR will also be
submitted for national award consideration.

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS COMPONENT UNITS

This report contains all of the funds and component units of the City of Tullahoma. It
includes all activities considered to be part of the “reporting entity” of the City of
Tullahoma in compliance with authoritative criteria. In evaluating as to how to define the
government, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential
component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement Number 14,
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The City of Tullahoma {(Primary Government — Governmental Activities)

Tullahoma is located in Southern Middle Tennessee approximately equal distances from
Nashville and Chattanooga, Tennessee, and Huntsville, Alabama. The City comprises
25.8 square miles of area located in both Coffee and Franklin Counties. The 2010 census
listed Tullahoma’s population as 18,579, The City of Tullahoma provides general
municipal services in the areas of public safety, public works, planning, and recreation.
The Public Works Department also provides solid waste, brush and leaf collection and
disposal.

Tullahoma City Schools (Primarv Government — Governmental Activities)

Tullahoma City Schools (the City Schools) encompasses four elementary schools, two
middle schools and one high school. The City Schools serves approximately 3,372
students in grades K-12. An extended school program is in place to provide before and
after school child care for our students. The school system is recognized within the State
of Tennessee for its academic excellence.

Tullahoma Utilities Board (Primary Government — Business-type Activities)

The Tullahoma Utilities Board (the Board) is a municipal public utility and an
independent agency of the City of Tullahoma, and provides electricity, water and
wastewater services to the residents of Tullahoma and parts of the surrounding area. A
distributor of TVA power, with rates among the lowest in the country, the Board
currently serves 11,045 electric customers. The Board purchases wholesale water from
the Duck River Utility Commission to serve its 9,740 water customers. The Board also
operates a wastewater treatment facility with 7,499 sewer customers. The Board recently
expanded into the fiber optics area and now offers television, telephone and internet
services to over 3,247 customers.

Tullahoma Municipal Airport Authority (A Component Unit)

The Tullahoma Municipal Airport Authority (the Authority) operates the Tullahoma
Regional Airport. The Tullahoma Municipal Airport plays a vital role in the economic
growth of Tullahoma and the swrounding region. Located less than a mile from
restaurants, lodging and shopping, it operates on an airport originally constructed in 1942
for the U. S. Army Air Corps. The Airpoit completed a $4.3 million paving project in
2008 that significantly enhanced the Airport’s ability fo support a wide variety of
business and recreational opportunities. The 5.500 foot long runway is capable of
handling all types of corporate jet aircraft. The Airport also offers an additional 4,200
foot paved runway and a 2,700 foot long grass runway. The City-owned Airport contains
775 acres of land and has approximately 170 acres ready for development. Nineteen new
private hangars were completed in 2008, four more in 2010 and the Airport is home to
over 140 based afreraft. The Airport averages about 40,000 flight operations each year
and opened a new, modern and spacious terminal building in 2010,
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The Airport is home to the “world class™ Beecheraft Heritage Museum complex that
houses over 30 vintage, fully restored Beecheraft-built Staggerwing, Twin Beech and
Bonanza aireraft, and is open to the public. The University of Tennessee Space
Institute’s Flight Research Center is based on the Airport, conducting advanced aerospace
research and offering an advanced test pilot curriculum. The Airport is also home to one
of Vanderbilt University’s Life Flight helicopter medical evacuation facilities, providing
24/7 rapid patient transport response to the numerous medical centers in Nashville as well
as Harton Regional Medical Center in Tullahoma.

Tullahoma Industrial Development Board {A Component Unit)

The Tullahoma Industrial Development Board (TIDB) is a Component Unit of City
Government. The TIDB was incorporated in 1965. The TIDB’s original mission was to
acquire, sell, lease, and dispose of properties in an effort to create jobs, promote industry
and develop trade by inducing manufacturing, industrial, and commercial enterprises to
locate in and near the City of Tullahoma. In June, 2005, the TIDB consolidated those
functions with the Coffee County Industrial Board. The TIDB retained its charter and
bylaws and amended its mission to monitor and service existing industrial revenue bond
issues and to perform any and all acts as set forth and authorized in Section 6-2801 et seq.
of the Tennessee Code Annotated. The TIDB turned over management of all assets to the
City of Tullahoma. The City continues to utilize those financial assets for economic
development activities. =~

Tullahoma Area Economic Development Corporation (A Component Unit)

The Tullahoma Area Economic Development Corporation (TAEDC) was established to
help Tullahoma capture economic activity by:
¢ Creating an economic development organization with a strategic and focused
approach to economic planning and development activities
e [Establishing a framework for quality economic growth and development
targeting particular segments
¢ Formulating and implementing programs to increase job opportunities
e Partnering with businesses as well as state and local agencies

The Tullahoma Area Economic Development Corporation consists of seven members
elected by the Tullahoma Board of Mayor and Aldermen.

For purposes of this report, the City of Tullahoma and the Tullahoma City Schools
financial information has been consolidated and identified as Governmental Activities
under the Primary Government sector, while Business-type Activities refers to the
Tullahoma Utilities Board and internal service fund data, Component Units presented in
this report are the Tullahoma Industrial Development Board, the Tullahoma Municipal
Alirport Authority, and the Tullahoma Area Economic Development Corporation.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the Governmental Activities exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $21,451 (net
position). Of this amount, $5,397 is net investment in capital assets; $10,806 is
restricted for debt service, education and other use, with $5,248 available to meet
other ongoing obligations. The Governmental Activities net position increased by
$3,454.

The Governmental Activities indicates an increase in net investment in capital
assets of $534. Streets and infrastructure are included in the balance sheet in
compliance with GASB 34.

The Business-type Activities total net position increased by $2,681.

Net investment in capital assets in the Business-type Activities increased by
33,438 or 14.9% from last year, due primarily to a large scale sewer rehabilitation
program.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s Governmental Funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $18,101, an increase of $2,883 from the prior
year. While the fund balance in the General Purpose School Fund increased by
$1,831, the fund balance in the City General Fund increased by $392 and the fund
balance in the other governmental funds increased by $688. For reporting
purposes, the City's Equipment Reserve is also included in the General Fund since
it primarily derives its funding from that source.

At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the City’s General Fund was
$6,873, or 28.7% of total General Fund expenditures including transfers out.

The ending fund balance in the General Purpose School Fund increased by 49%
in FY2014 to $5,597 or 19.4% of total expenses for that fund.

The City Governmental Activities” total gross debt decreased by only $403 during
2014, as payments were offset by new note issuances in both the Governmental
Activities and Business-type Activities functions. The Tullahoma Utilities
Board’s gross debt decreased by $630 during this period.
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Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

CE2014

B2013

" T
General General Purpose  General Debt Service  Other Governmentaf
Sehool Funds

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between assets and liabilities plus
deferred inflows of resources reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes or
earned but unused vacation leave, etc.).
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The Government-wide Income Statement distinguishes functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes, licenses and permits, and intergovernmental revenues
govermmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public
works, culture and recreation, and education. The business-type activities of the City
include water, waste-water, electricity and fiber optics.

Fund Financial Statementis

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two
categories: Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds.

e Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the citywide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a City’s near-term financing requirements. Because the focus of
the povernmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the governmment-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governimental activities.

The City maintains fourteen (14) individual government funds, eleven (11} of these
governmental funds are classified as non-major and are summarized under the
heading “Other Governmental Funds” in the governmental fund presentation.
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
for the General Fund, the General-Purpose School Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and
the Non-Major Governmental Funds, all of which are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriation budget for its general and other major
special revenue funds. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for

these funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget,
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e Proprictary Funds

The City maintains four (4) different types of proprietary funds, which are also
enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its water, waste-water, electric and fiber optic
activities at the Tullahoma Utilities Board.

e Internal Service Fund

The City maintains one (1) internal service fund, a medical trust fund, which is used
to account for the operations of self-sustaining agencies rendering services to other
agencies of the government on a cost reimbursement basis. During fiscal year 2007,
the City discontinued use of its internal service fund for medical coverage and
changed to a commercial carrier. The balance of this fund is retained as a benefits
reserve.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. They further define
the audited entities, partnerships and financial relationships.

Other Information

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental
funds, budget comparison schedules for funds with legal budgets other than the general
fund and other major special revenue funds, and internal service funds are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information.

GOVERNMENTAL-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a City’s
financial position. In the case of the Governmental Activities, assets exceed liabilities
and deferred outflows of resources reported by $21,451 at the close of the most recent
fiscal year. The City’s net investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, and
equipment) is largely offSet by accumulated depreciation. The Business-type Activities
show net position of $45,485 with 58% reflecting net investment in capital assets. The
City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending.
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.City. of Tullahoma’s Net Position

Covannestal Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2014 N3 2004 2013 2014 13
as restated as estated as restated

Assets:
Gument and otherassets $ 32745 5 29172 5 X214 5 2932 % 61.9% $ 58514
Chpital assets, net of
accurnilated depreciation 4253 43901 49021 46213 93,27 a0 114

“Total assets 7998 73,073 TR235 73555 155,233 8628
Defermed inflows ofresources 233 AB - - 33 4B
Linbilities:
Longtemnmilinbilities outstanding 42446 AR F0 23081 23578 eaA77 o127
Oxher linbilities 3453 3729 9719 9172 13,172 12,501

Total habilities 45,800 46578 32730 3273 TP 3K
Defened outflons of resources 99R1 RE72 - - 9981 8872
Net position:
Net investirent in capital assets 5397 4853 26378 2299 375 27408
Restricted 10806 ga¥ 7.904 9458 18710 1202
Ukhrestricted 5248 459 11,2AB 10407 16451 14936

Total net position 5 21451 S IBME6 S 4548 S LR $ 669 $ Ol

A portion of the Governmental Activities total net position $10,806 (50.3%) represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. These
include net position restricted for payments on bonded debts and notes, drug prevention
assets and assets for capital construction and projects, as well as education funds. The
remaining balance of unrestricted net position $5,248 may be used to meet the

government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and short-term creditors.

For the Business-type ACt.iVi'[iéQS, £7,904, or 17.3% of total net position is identified as

restricted. This leaves $11,203 available for various operating needs.

Composition of Net Posifion

EGovernmental Activities

# Business-type Activities
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City of Tullahoma’s Change in Net Position

vermrental Rusiness-type
Activities Activities Total
2014 293 2014 2013 014 013
as restated as restated as restatedd
Revenues:
Progmnmuevenues:
Charpes [orservices S 2553 F 248 $ 4305 $ 42306 $ 46148 $ 44878
Cherating ginnts Sceontribrations 28858 27.9%) - - R8RSR 27.9X)
Capital grants Scoontributions - - s 447 To6 “17
Ceneral revernues:
Tes X047 19417 - - 0417 19417
Crherrevenucs 453 ap 47 123 0 1.032
Investirent eamings &2 116 26 37 23S 153
Transfers 26 () (Z85) 7 - 36
Total revenues 5652 755 44 148 42731 SGR17 93486
Bpenses:
Gmeral govenment 2.0 2200 - - 200 2201
Public saféty 5,158 4N4 - - 5158 4914
Public vorls 4320 4001 - - 4.5%0 4001
Conmmumity services 575 429 - - 575 429
Whaste rranagenent ' » LEO L,8a2 - - 1,890 1,862
Education 33,748 34,000 - - 33,748 34,700
Llilities - - <1268 40468 41,468 40468
Iinterest Scdebt 1L(P6 1,161 - - L6 1,161
Total expenses 49216 A8 MR 41 468 40,468 a4 416
Change in net position 3453 1,807 2630 253 G133 40K}
INet position, beginning of period 18025 16615 42905 40,654 G831 57268
Adjustirent to restate beginning
net position 25 (399 - (11 ) &8
Nt position, beginning, as restaled 17,998 16219 4205 40,512 AHB 56,761
INet position, end of period £ 21451 $ 1R(PS $ 45485 5 42855 $ eaB6 $ 61831

Changes in Net Position

e Govermmental Activities increased net position by $3,453. The improvement in
Governmental Activities net position was mostly due to the increases in the
general purpose school net assets of $1,831, and the City general fund improving
by $392. Fiscal year 2014 saw improvement in the local economy. The City's
portion of sales tax increased by $261 or 3.1% over fiscal year 2013, leading to
improved financial positions for both governmental entities. Additionally, the
Board of Mayor and Aldermen approved a $0.25 property tax increase, with $0.20
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dedicated to school operations, and the remaining $.05 allocated towards new debt
service associated with re-roofing Tullahoma High School and renovation of the
mndoor and outdoor pools.

o Business-type Activities increased net position by $2,680, which can primarily be
attributed to the $3,438 increase in capital assets due to the completion of the
recent sewer rehabilitation project.

Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

$35,000
$30,000
$25,000
$20,000
$15,000
$10,000

$5,000

$-

B2014

#2013

Charges for Operating grants Taxes Other revenues
services & contributions

Governmental Activities reflect an increase of $1,000 in taxes, which includes both the
local property tax increase and the improved sales tax collections due to economic
improvements and growth in the retail sector. Additionally, the City was able to secure a
couple of Jarge state infrastructure grants to assist with street paving.

Program Revenues - Business-type Activities

$50,000
345,000 1—
$40,000 -
$35,000 1=
$30,000 1+—
$25,000 q--
$20,000
$15,000 +—
$10,000 ==

$5,000 +
5. 4o
Charges for services  Operating grants & Capital grants &

. contributions contributions
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Business-type Activities are financed almost entirely by service charges. Service charges
remained consistent during the two year period, reflecting an increase of only $1,199 due
to growth in the utility's customer base.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s Governmental Funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City of Tullahoma’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a City’s net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Tullahoma’s
Governmental Funds reported combined ending fund balances of 18,101, an increase of
52,911 from the prior year. Both the City General Fund and General Purpose School
Fund benefited from increased sales tax and property tax collections.

The City also operates a Solid Waste Fund, but this is not operated as a business-type
activity. Although the city charges commercial customers for solid waste collection,
residential collection, brush disposal, and litter collection are subsidized by a transfer of
property tax dollars from the general fund. Recycling charges in this fund are primarily
funded through the revenues generated.

¢ The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. In the governmental
fund financial statements, the City has established and will maintain reservations
of fund balance, as defined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Govermmental Fund Type Definitions where fund balances
are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.
At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund
was 55,413 while total.fund balance amounted to $6,873. As a matter of the
General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out.

e Unassigned fund balance represents 23% of total General Fund expenditures and
transfers out.  The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by $392 as
a result of the current fiscal year operations. The General Fund had $18 in
outstanding encumbrances at year end.

o The General Purpose School Fund has a total fund balance of $5,597. Although
expenditures increased by $391, revenues increased by $679, which reflects
additional property taxes from Coffee County as well as state funding.
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Additionally, transfers from the City of Tullahoma increased by $1,721 reflecting
approximately 5890 of this amount was the transfer of note proceeds for a new
roof for the high school along with an increase in property tax of $780. The
General Purpose School Fund had no outstanding encumbrances at year end.

The General Debt Service fund has an ending fund balance of only $152, but was
classified as a major fund due to the large transactions that occur during the year.
Funds are transferred in from both the City General Fund and the Education Debt
Service fund for payments on bonds and notes.

The Education Debt Service Fund had a beginning fund balance of $2,493, which
increased to $2,838 at year end, due to interest rates remaining below budget on
the variable rate 2008 $12,000 loan for school renovation projects. Those projects
included the renovation of the Tullahoma High School football stadium and
auditorinm which were completed in fiscal year 2011, and the renovation and
expansion of East Lincoln Elementary School which was not completed until
2012.

City Capital Projects are the next largest non-major fund, with an ending balance
o1 3857, down §116 from fiscal year 2013. Most of the projects in this group are
for street paving, for sidewalks and other infrastructure, and for utilizing transfers
from general fund as the local grant match to leverage State of Tennessee
Department of Transportation funding.

Non-major Governmental Funds have an ending fund balance of $5,480. This
grouping consists primarily of smaller city capital projects funds, school federal
and state projects, education debt service, school food services, extended school
program, school capital projects, and UDAG.

Fund Balances - Governmental Activities

General

B General Purpose Sclool

O General Debt Service

0.4%

O Other Governmental Funds
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Proprietary Funds

The Business-type Activities at the Tullahoma Utilities Board have seen a change in
composition due to the addition of a fourth enterprise fund in 2007 for the construction of
a fiber optics system which began providing services to Tullahoma residents
commencing in October 2008 and has now expanded to serving over 3,200 customers.

e The Electric System provided an increase in net position of $700 in 2014, due to
increased customer base. Accounts receivable decreased $668 (before
allowances).

e The Waste Water System reflected an increase of $1,389, which included a capital
contribution of $766, while the Water System’s net position grew by $373.

e As the Fiber Optics System is still finishing up build out and growing its customer
base, their net position improved by $218 to ($2,177). The system plans to show
positive net position in 2015.

Net Position - Proprietary Funds

BElectric
@Fiber

OWasie Waler

OWmer

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets from its Governmental and Business-type
Activities as of June 30, 2014, is shown as follows. The Government Accounting
Standards Board required that infrastructure assets be inventoried and carried on the
balance sheet as of 2007. Additional information concerning capital assets can be found
in Note 5 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

A-13



CITY OF TULLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(amounts expressed in thousands)

City of Tullahoma’s Capital Assets

Governryental Business-type
Activitics Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Tand 5 384 $ 384 $ 476 hy <76 $ 4300 $ 4300
Buildings and irproverrents 59,196 57982 16402 15,541 75558 73,523
Machinery and ecuipnent 11,008 10224 54585 5183 16463 15,407
Infinstiucthure IR 856 16807 1857 G3,853 83,753 60
Chnstruction in progress 32 1.3% R477 4635 R &P a0
"Tolal capital assels $ 93316 $ 0AB $ 95667 b 2068 $Isga3 $ 170090

The total capital assets in the Governmental Activities increased by $3,110, which was
primarily due to street paving projects. The largest of these being the expansion of Cedar
Lane, a major commercial connector, a $1,400 multi-year project, which was completed
in fiscal year 2014, and is reflected in the transfer from construction in progress to
increase infrastructure. Machinery and equipment increased by $784 as the City
purchased both a fire truck and a garbage truck in fiscal year 2014.

Capital Assets - G overnmental Activities
370,000

360,000
$50,000

$40,000
$30,000

2014

H2013

$20,000

$10,000 +—
$— —...

Land Buildingsand Machineryand Infrastructure Constructionin
improvements  equipment progress
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The total capital assets in the Business-type Activities increased by $5,969, of which
$3,842 was an increase in construction in progress for the on-going sewer rehabilitation.
The Utility received a low interest loan from the State of Tennessee to fund the project.

Capital Assets - Business-type A ctivities
$70,000
560,000
$50,000
$40,000 E2014
$30,000 B2013
$20,000
$10,000
5-
Land Buildingsand Machineryand Infrastructure Constructionin
improvements equipment progress
Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities

In fiscal year 2014, The City of Tullahoma issued capital outlay notes in the
amount of $890 to re-roof Tullahoma High School. Additionally, capital outlay
notes in the amount of $650 were utilized to purchase a new fire truck and a
garbage truck. A construction loan was obtained to commence the renovation of
the indoor pool to meet competition standards and to convert the outdoor pool
into a splash park. At year end, $198 had been drawn on that loan. Principal
payments were made in the amount of $2,298, resulting in total governmental
outstanding debt of $39,228. Of this, $2,528 is due within one year.

Business-type Activities

The Tullahoma Utilities Board received approval for a $5,000 state revolving loan
for sewer rehabilitation. As of June 30, 2014, $2,749 had been drawn down.
Although the major amount of construction and associated debt occurred in fiscal
year 2014, the project will be completed in fiscal year 2015.
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e Component Units

No direct debt was issued by or on behalf of either the Airport Authority or the
Tullahoma Industrial Development Board in fiscal year 2014. The Airport
Authority does have outstanding loans through the City's UDAG Revolving Loan
Program and added two new loans in the amount of $48 in fiscal year 2014. The
2005 loan was used to finance construction of a hangar for life flight helicopters.
The tenant provides monthly rental payments to the Airport Authority, who in
turn pays back into the City’s UDAG Revolving Loan Fund. The balance on that
loan is $151.

Additional information concerning long-term debt can be found in Note 6 of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

City of Tullahoma’s Outstanding Debt

CGohvemnrental Rusiness1ype
Activities Activities Totat
2014 2013* 2014 2015+ X014 2013*
Motes payable 5 200 $ 330 $ 774 $ 7473 $ o973 $ 783
CGeneral obhigation bords 37,199 39408 14940 15,740 2139 55,148
Other obligations peyable 3218 3,061 357 365 346 3426

Total long-termdebt 3 P46 5 B0 $ 23.031 3 2358 $ G477 3

L4727

* As restated

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for
all those with an interest in such. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
City of Tullahoma, Finance Department, P. O. Box 807, Tullahoma, TN 37388.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Aclivities Total Units
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents Y 18,068,223 $ 14,940,611 hy 29,008,834 5 211,162
Receivables 11,824,08% 3,493,484 15,317,575 871
Allowance for doubiful accounts (1,201,566) (33,354) (1,235,320} -
Unbilled revenue - 2,186,634 2,186,634 “
Accounts receivable - government - 410,232 413,232 13,281
Due from other governments 2,727,065 - 2,727,065 197,009
Accrued interest receivable 957 - 957 -
Inventory - 1,528,829 1,528,820 27,893
Other asseis 69,000 1,173,934 1,242,934 8,712
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - 8,457,131 8,457,131 42,341
Notes receivable 1,257,558 1,056,064 2,313,622 -
Capital assets:

Utility plant in service - 64,857,241 64,857,241 -

Land 3,824,195 476,080 4,300,273 1,738,799

Buildings and improvements 59,196,281 16,402,135 75,598,416 9,864,294

Furniture, machinery, and equipment 11,008,111 5,454,336 16,462,447 462,439

Construction in progress 391,822 8,477,069 8,868,891 654,631

Infrastracture 18,895,772 - 18,865,772 -

Accumulated depreciation {49,063 429 (46,645,748) (95,709,177) (3,351 B74)

Total assets 76,997,678 78,234,679 155,232,357 0,971,558

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred charges on refunding 333.406 - 333,406 -
[otal deferred outflows of resources 333,406 - 333,406 -
LIARILITIES:
Accounts payable 1,587,849 6,328.421 7,916,270 33,504
Accrued liabilities 1,638,075 583,742 2,221,817 -
Accrued interest payable 226,044 - 226,044 -
Other liabilities - 1,827,686 1,827,686 9,123
TVA advances - 425,739 425739 -
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Accrued interest - 318,197 318,197 -

Contracts and retainage 234,978 234,978 -
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 2,573,115 1,908,668 4,571,783 36,802

Due in more than one year 39,873,466 21,032,091 60,905,557 177.943

Total liabilities 45,898,549 32,749,522 78,648,071 257,372

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unearned revenue 9,981,425 - 9,981,425 13,594

Total deferred inflows of resources 3.981,425 - 9,981,425 13,596

NET POSITION:
Net invesiment in capital assets 5,397,379 246,377,804 31,775,183 9,270,311
Restricted:

Restricted for debt service 2,989 879 909 566 3,899 445 -

Restricted for construction 859,865 6,994 390 7,854,255 -

Restricted for drug enforcement 112,267 . 112,297 -

Restrcted for UDAG and USDA loans 1.911,310 - 1,911,310 -

Restricted for school operations 4,626,152 - 4,626,192

Restricted - other 306,326 - 306,328 42,341
Unrestricted 5,247 862 11,203,397 16,451,259 387,938

Total net position ;) 21,451,110 § 45,485,157 $ 66,936,267 % 9,700,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014
General Other Total
General Debt Governmentol Governmental
General Purpose School Services Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 5937319 5 1,789 b 145,437 b 4,660,196 § 10,749,741
Investments - 7,184,043 - - 7,184,045
Accrued interest receivable - - - 957 957
Receivables 11,778,446 - - 45,643 11,824,082
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,187,611 - - {14,355) (1,201,966)
Due from other povernments 1,249,224 117,782 - 1,360,059 2,727,065
Due from other funds - 1,014,730 74T 155,076 1,177,283
Other assets - - - 6,209 6,209
Prepaid expenses 21,968 - - 1,500 23,468
Notes receivable - - - 1,257,558 1,257,558
Total assels 5 17799346 3 8,318,346 3 152914 3 7.472.843 § 33,743 449
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable b3 190,220 b 1,286,903 b 797 b3 109,929 b 1,587,849
Accrued liabilities 73,763 - - 18,282 092,043
Accrued payrolf 111,264 1,434,766 - - 1,546,030
Due to other funds of the primary government 569,806 - - 607,477 1,177,283
Total liabilities 045,053 2,721,669 797 735,688 4,403,207
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailnble revenue - property taxes 9,981,425 - - - 9,981,425
Unavailable revenue - loans - - - 1,257,558 1,257,558
Total deferred inflows of resources 9,981,425 - - [,257,558 11,238,983
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items 21,968 - - 1500 23,468
Restricted {or:
Capital improvements - - - 859,865 859,865
Debl service - - 152,117 2,837,762 2,989,879
Drug enforcement 22,262 - - 090,035 112,297
Grant projecls - - - 784,114 784,114
School operations - - - 594,434 504,434
Solid waste - - - 214,275 214,215
Extended school - - - 38,436 88,436
Other projects 81,375 - - - 81,375
Committed to:
Encumbrances 17,715 - - 9,176 26,891
Permanent sireets - SSA 163,101 - - - 163,101
Equipment replacement 262,023 - - - 262,023
Stabilization fund 801,666 - - - 891,666
Assigned 10
School MOE - 286,730 - - 286,736
Unassigned 5,412,758 5,309,941 - - 10,722,699
Total fund balances 6,872,868 5,596,677 132,117 5,479,597 18,101,259
Total liabilities, deferved inflows of
resources and fund balances 3 17,799.346 5 8,318346 5 152,914 $ 7.472,843 $ 33,743,449

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014

Fund balances - total governmental funds 5 18,101,259

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different
from amounts reported for governmental funds in the Balance Sheet because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in governmental funds.

Capital assets 93,316,181
Less accumulated depreciation (49,063,429)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds payable (36,911,000)
Less deferred charge on refunding 333,406

Less deferred charge for issuance costs 39,323

Add bond premium (288,147}
Accrued interest payable (226,044)
Net pension obligation (1,095,512}
OPEB obligation (975,294}
Notes payable (2,028,953)
Compensated absences (1,147,673)

An internal service fund is used by management 1o charge the costs of the employee health
insurance program. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in the
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 139,437

Principal payments on notes receivable are revenues for governmental funds
and therefore are reported as uncarned revenues until they are received. 1,257,558

Net position - total governmental activities $  21451,110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of {his financial statement.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Payment in lieu of tax
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergoverniental
Charges for services
Envestment income
Note repayments
Sale of praperty
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current;
(General government
Planning
Public safety:
Police proiection
Fire pratection
Public works
Parks and recreation
Community services
Education:
Administration
Repular educasion
Special educatien
Vocatiangl education
Adult education
Attendance
Health services
Other student support
Instructional siziT
Plant operations
Plant maintenance
Transportation
Community services
Program costs
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Intesest
Fiscal charges
Capital outlay
Loans disbursed

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Notes issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources {uses)

Met change in fund balances
Fund balances, July 1, 2013, as previously presented
Prior period adjustment (See MNote 10)

Fund balances, July 1, 2013, as restated

Fund balances, June 30, 2014

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

General Other Tatal
General Debt Governmeral Governmental
General Purpose Schaat Services Funds Funds

3 §0,034,154 5 - 5 - by - A 10,034,154
8,702,708 - - - 8,702,708
1,565,369 - - - 1,565,369
117,034 - - - 117,034

75,761 . - - 75,761
339,439 - - - 339,439
1,575,491 21,326,302 - 4,956,419 28,858,212
107,731 273,171 - 1,734,931 2,115,833
36,305 11,586 - 13,486 65,377

, - - 268,744 268,744

380 - - - 380
335645 82,738 - 96,556 514 83%
23,890,017 21,693,797 - 7,070,136 51,653 850
1,151,739 - - - 1,155,739
223,533 - - - 223,533
2,817,078 - - - 2,817,078
2,337,737 - - . 2,337,737
2,160,985 - - . 2,160,985
1,246,121 - - - 1,246,121
576,904 - - - 576,904

- 3,200,613 - - 3,209,615

- 14,560,077 - 1,460,393 16,021,372

- 1,158,854 N 753,393 3,912,247

- 740,330 - - 740,320

- 15,028 - - 15,028

- 268,963 - “ 268,963

- 198,908 - - 198,908

- 704,712 - 48,926 753,638

- 612,260 - 89,134 701,394

- 2610430 - - 1,610,430

B 989,072 - - 989,072

- 125,034 - 1,563 126,597
. (2.518) - - (2,511}

- - - 4,196,864 4,196,864

- - 2,252,000 - 2,252,000

- - 1,047,690 - 1,047,690

- - 2,600 - 2,600

397287 1,573,685 - 2,142,676 4,118,658

- - - 90,000 90,000
10,811,394 28,765,357 3.302.200 R. 787,951 51,766,992
12,978 623 (7.071,560) {3,302,290) {1,717,815) 886,958
- - - 1,737,955 1,737,955

426,112 8,961,784 3,399,363 3,726,588 16,514,047
(13,012,751 (39,202) - {3,135.61% {16,227.57%)
(12,586,640) 8,902,582 3,389 563 2,308.924 2024 429
391,983 1,831,022 97,273 591,109 2911,387
6,180 885 3,748,223 54,844 4,934 286 15,218,238
- 17,432 - (45.798) (28,366)
6,480,885 3,765,655 54,844 4,888 488 15,189,872
s 6,872 Bal § 3,396,677 3 152,117 3 5,479,597 g 18.101,239

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances - governmental fiunds 5 2,911,387

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different from amounts reported for povernmental funds in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays which include principal and interest payments on
capitzl leases as expenditures. However, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense for governmental activities.

Acquisition of capital assets 3,299,836
Depreciation expense (2,944,541

The gain or loss on the sale of capital assets is reporied for povernmental activities, whereas

in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the

change in net position differs in the change in find balances by the the net book value of the

capital assets sold, (3,102)

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but the issuance

of debt increases long-term liabilities for governmental activities, Repayment of principal on
bonds and notes payable is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but reduces long-term
liabilities for governmental activities, Governmental funds include interest paid in debt service
expenditures, whereas interest is nccrued and expensed as it becomes payable for governmental
activities.

Bond and noie issuance:

Notes (1,737,955
Bond and note principal repayments:

To bonds and notes holder 2,252,000
Amortization of insurance costs (3.330)
Amoriization of deferred charges (26,673
Amortization of premium 46,032
Decrease in accrued interest expense 8,487
Loans disbursed 20,000
Principal received on notes receivabie (268,744)
Write off notes receivable (10,434)

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of the employee health
insurance program. The net revenue of the internal service fund is included in
gavernmental activities. (1,959

Some expenses reported for governmental activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore not reported us expenditures for governmental funds, Compensated
absences are an expenditure when they are paid in the governmental funds, but are acerued and
expended when they are incurred for povernmental activities.

Decrease in net pension obligation 60,359

Increase in OPEB obligation (304,500)

Decrease in compensated absences 86,783
Change in net position - povernmental activities 3 3,453,646

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Wholesale beer
Wholesale lignor
Business
Cable tv franchise
Hotel/motel
Total taxes

Payment in licu of taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures

Interpovernmental:

State of Tennessee sales tax

State of Tennessee gas tax

State of Tennessee income tax

TVA gross receipls

State and federal grants

Mixed drink tax

Excise tax

Streets and transportation

State streel coptracts

Supplemental pay

State of Tennessee beer tax

Telecommunications tax
Total intergovernmental

Charges for services
Investment income
Sale of property
Other revenues

Total revenues

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Vartance with

Actal Budpetary Actunl Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment for Expenditures Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis) Encumbrances (Budpetary Basis) Original Final (Negative)
10,034,154 - % 10,034,154  § 10,079,307 § 10,074,307 § {40,153}
8,702,708 - 8,702,708 8,412,051 8,668,151 34,557
542,608 - 542,608 489,350 530,500 12,108
199,951 - 169,951 181,514 192,514 7,437
354,841 - 354,841 260,000 347,000 7,841
217,842 - 217,842 187,060 205,000 12,842
250,127 - 250,127 202,125 250,125 2
20,302,231 - 20,302,231 19,811,347 20,267,597 34,634
117,034 - 117,034 108,888 113,888 3,146
75,761 - 75,761 66,370 71,370 4,391
339,439 - 339,439 333,250 354,290 (14,851)
1,329,374 - 1,329,374 1,305,850 §,323,850 5,524
484,472 - 484,472 483,351 483,351 1,121
158,759 - 158,759 165,000 165,000 (6,241}
207,066 - 207,066 205,205 203,205 1,861
125,453 - 125,453 1,034,600 145,860 (20,407y
85,791 - 85,791 72,736 78,736 7,055
85,889 - 85,889 75,012 82,012 3,877
38,187 - 38,187 38,243 38,243 (56)
13,628 - 13,628 1,020 7,020 6,608
36,000 - 36,000 - 36,000 -
8,827 - 8,827 5,328 9,328 {301)
2,045 - 2,045 2,364 2,364 315)
2,575,491 - 2,575,491 3,392,709 2,576,969 (1,478)
107,731 - 107,731 68,040 103,980 1,751
36,305 - 36,305 60,000 43,000 (8,693)
380 - 380 - - 380
335,645 - 335,645 269,805 313,110 22,333
23,890,017 - 23,850,017 24,140,449 23,848,204 41,813

The scecompanying notes are an inlegsal pan of this financial statement,
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIFANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment for Expenditures Budpeted Amounts Positive
Basis}) Encumbrances (Budgetary Basis) Oripinal Final (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:
General govemnment:
Legislative and judicial;
Current:
Salaries $ 37,614 5 - b 37,614 $ 37,614 $ 37,614 b -
Payroll Taxes 2913 - 2913 2,878 2,915 2
Benefits 49,091 - 49,091 68,461 50,101 1,010
Contract and professional 04,355 - 94,355 108,700 97,900 3,545
Travel and training 3313 - 3,313 5,000 4,635 1,322
Supplies 148 - 149 600 600 451
Telephone and utilities 7,547 - 7,547 16,000 9,000 1,453
Operating insurance 15,220 - 15,220 14,500 15,520 300
Other 29,160 - 29,160 30,600 32,027 2867
Appropriations 2,340 - 2,340 - 2,340 .
Total legislative and judieial 241,702 - 241,702 278,353 252,652 10,950
Court system:
Current:
Salaries 19,742 . 19,742 20,866 20,866 1,124
Payroll taxes 2,635 - 2,635 2,756 2,756 121
Benefils 4,408 - 4,408 4,438 4,438 30
Contract and professional 14,000 - 14,000 14,000 14,000 .
Repairs and maintenance 1,794 - 1,794 1,800 1,800 3]
Travel and training 175 - 175 375 375 200
Supplies 192 N 392 440 440 48
Operating insurance 319 - 519 471 521 2
Other 465 - 465 500 500 35
Total court system 44,130 - 44,130 43,6406 45,696 1,566
City administrator:
Current:
Salaries 135,616 - 135,616 136,171 136,051 435
Payroll taxes 104,362 - 14,362 10,525 10,525 163
Benefils 40,446 - 40,446 40,440 40,509 63
Telephone and utilities - - - 75 75 75
Repairs and maintenance 974 - 974 125 975 i
Travel and training 2318 - 2,318 1,750 2,320 2
Supplies B85 - 85 250 100 15
Gas and oil 638 - 638 765 765 127
Operating insurance 2,758 - 2,758 2,738 2,758 -
Other 1,022 - 1,022 1,100 1,125 103
Total city administrator 164,219 - 194,219 193,939 195,203 984
Finance director:
Current:
Salaries 168,398 - 168,398 172,320 172,320 3,922
Payroll taxes 13,046 - 13,0486 13,450 14,167 1,121
Benefits 28,257 - 29,257 43,970 20,865 608
Telephone and utilities 14,487 - 14,487 [8,100 15,100 613
Contract and professional 4028 - 4,028 8,000 4,500 472
Repairs and maintenance 6,348 - 6,348 8,310 7.000 632
Travel and training 2,033 - 2,033 3,000 2,500 467
Supplies 1,060 - 1,060 950 1,450 390
Operating insuarance 3,042 - 3,042 2,481 3,046 4
Other 6,351 - 6,351 8,135 7.585 1,234
Total finance director 248,050 - 248,050 278,716 257,533 9,483
{continved)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAFP)
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment for Expenditures Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis) Encumbrances (Budgetary Basis) Original Final {Negative)
EXPENDITURES (continued):
General government (continued):
City recorder:
Current;
Salaries 3 56,797 % - 3 96,797 % 96,116 5 97,600 § 803
Payroll taxes 7,356 - 7.336 7,461 7,516 160
Benefits 27,374 - 27374 28,952 27,902 528
Contract and professional 639 - 659 3,300 1,879 1,220
Telephone and utilities - - - 200 154 154
Repairs and maintenance 5,658 - 5,658 5,800 5,800 142
Travel and training 2,250 - 2,250 2,165 2251 1
Supplies 15,271 - 15271 14,515 15,360 89
Operaling insurance 1,383 - 1,383 1,383 1,383 -
Other 20,559 - 20,559 257221 22,021 1,462
Total city recorder 177,307 - 177,307 185,123 181,866 4,559
Human resources:
Current;
Salaries 74,251 - 74,251 72,557 75,372 £,121
Payroll taxes 5,658 - 5,658 3,659 5,858 200
Beneflits 16,987 - 16,917 17,025 17,025 108
Telephone and vtilities 442 - 442 700 550 108
Contract and professional 4,307 - 4,307 - 5,000 693
Travel and training 4,028 - 4,028 4,300 4,300 272
Supplies 345 - 345 380 380 33
Operating insurance 1,172 - 1,172 1,171 1,176 4
Qther 7,651 - 7.651 7,700 7,800 149
Total human resources 114,771 - 114,771 109,492 117,461 2,690
Community development:
Current:
Salaries 48,978 - 48,978 46,912 48,982 4
Payroll taxes 3,599 - 3,599 3,643 3,643 g
Benefits 17,410 - 17,410 17,614 17,614 204
Tetephone and utilities 606 - 606 610 610 4
Travel and training 468 - 468 1,400 800 332
Supplies 240 - 240 1,250 850 610
Operating insurance 799 - 799 823 823 24
Other 2,135 - 2,133 4,311 3,011 876
Total community development 74,233 - 74,235 76,563 76,333 2,098
Planning:
Current:
Salaries 126,819 - 126,819 125,620 127,670 851
Payroll taxes 9,255 - 9,255 9,826 9,826 571
Benefits 50,31 - 30,371 52,003 51,503 £,132
Contract and professional 1,496 - 1,496 8,000 2,000 304
Telephone and utilities 3,820 - 5,820 7,400 6,900 1,080
Repairs and maintenance 4,235 - 4,235 10,4235 5,625 1,390
Travel and training 9,079 - 9,079 5,700 9,200 121
Supplies 1,749 - 1,749 2,900 2,600 851
Uniforms 699 - 699 1,000 1,000 30t
Gas and oil 1,786 - 1,786 2,305 2,305 519
Operating insurance 7,140 - 7,140 8,012 7.962 8§22
Other 5,084 - 5,084 10,940 7,440 2,356
Total planning 223,533 - 223,533 244,131 234,031 10,498

(continued)

The accompanying noles are an iniepyal part of this inzneial slatement.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEF,
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment for Expenditures Budpeted Amounts Positive
Basis) Encumbrances (Budgetary Basis) Original Final (Nepative)
EXPENDITURES (continued):
General government {continued);
Information technology:
Current:

Contract and professional - b {1,200} (1,200 8§ - - 1,200
Total information technology - (1,200} (1,200) - - 1,200
Municipal building:

Current:

Salaries 118 - 118 - 200 82

Payroll taxes 9 - g - 735 66

Telephone and utilities 23,140 - 23,140 26,276 25276 2,136

Rent 700 - 700 1,632 [,632 932

Repairs and maintenance 19,396 - 19,396 19,500 20,000 604

Operating insurance 13,962 - 13,962 13,845 13,9635 3
Total municipal building 57,325 - 37,325 61,253 61,148 3,823

Total current 1,375,272 {1,200) 1,374,072 1,473,216 1,421,923 47,851
Capital outlay 6,603 - 6,603 - 47357 40,754
Total peneral governmeny 1,381,875 {1,200) 1,380,675 1,473,216 [,469,280 88,605
Public safety:
Police:
Current:

Salarics 1,714,965 - 1,714,965 1,722,903 1,731,758 16,793

Payroll taxes 127,804 - 127,804 134,307 132,541 4,737

Benefits 593,789 - 593,789 603,021 557,107 3,318

Telephone and utilities 14,303 - 14,303 19,475 15,445 1,142

Repairs and maintenance 59,799 {594} 59,205 67,039 60,205 1,000

Travel and training 9,076 - 9.076 12,952 10,952 1,876

Supplics 28,091 - 28,091 28,329 30,3601 2,270

Uniforms 12,142 402 12,544 17,400 13,100 556

Gas and oil 122,854 - 122,854 118,739 124,403 1,549

Operating insurance 115,632 - 115,632 118,643 117,543 1,511

Other 18,623 - 18,623 21,973 21,167 2544

Total current 2,817,078 {192} 2,816,886 2,864,781 2,854,582 37.696
Capital outlay 101,394 - 101,386 13,300 102,741 1,345

Total police 2,918,474 {192} 2,918,282 2,878,081 2,957,323 39,041

Fire:
Current:

Salaries 1,480,706 - 1,480,706 1,414,239 1,482,859 2,153

Payroll taxes 111,442 - 111,442 110,077 112,619 1,177

Benefits 436,326 - 436,326 462,469 438 864 2,538

Contract and professional 600 - 600 - 600 -

Telephone and utikitics 34,263 - 34,263 37,599 36,099 1,836

Repairs and maintenance 78,225 (4,355) 73,870 44 460 74,575 705

Travel and training 12,621 - 12,621 12,425 12,640 19

Supplies 38,353 (71253 31,230 30,700 32,770 1,540

Uniforms 21,630 290 21,920 21,325 22,403 483

Gas and oil 22341 - 22,341 21,073 23,273 932

Operating insurance 93,657 - 93,657 114,700 94211 554

Other 7,571 - 7,571 7,144 7,699 128

Total current 2,337,737 (11,190} 2,326,547 2,276,411 2,338,612 12,065
Capital outlay 170,257 (72,375) 97.882 85.000 186,027 88,145
Total fire 2,507,994 (83,563) 2,424, 429 2,361,411 2,524,639 100,210
Tatal public safety 5,426,468 (83,737 5,342,711 5,239,492 5,481,962 139,251

The accompunying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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EXPENDITURES (coniinued):
Public works:
Current;
Salanes
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Telephone and utilities
Street lights

State street aid expenditures

Contracy and professional
Repairs and mainlenance
Shop {abor reimbursement
Travel and training
Supplies
Uniforms
Gas and oil
Parts and supplies
Materials
Operating insurance
Other

Total current

Capital outlay
Total public works

Parks and recreation:

Current;
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Telephone and utilities
Street lights
Contract and professional
Repairs and maintenance
State street aid
Travel and training
Supplies
Uniforms
Gas and il
Operating insurance
Other

Total current

Capital outlay
Total parks and recreation

CITY OF TULLANOMA, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Actual

BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Varance with

Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment for Expenditures Budgeted Amounts Positive

Basis) Encusnbrances (Budgetary Basis) Original Final {Nepative)
771,192 b - 771,192 775,273 781,138 h) 8,946
58,431 - 58,431 60,604 61,537 3,106
273,111 - 273,11t 300,114 279,073 5,962
43,068 - 43,068 42,679 44,579 1,511
420,549 - 420,549 437,500 425,500 4951
33,450 - 33,450 226,000 200,200 166,750
80,567 795 81,362 93,110 88,360 6,998
[36,218 - 136,218 107,553 142,070 5,852
{97.686) - (97,686) (64,000) (52,000) 5,686
236 - 236 3,600 700 464
31,432 - 31,432 36,550 33,975 2,543
5,457 - 3,457 8,680 7.690 2,233
197,785 - 197,785 190,021 203,759 5974
47,834 2,722 50,556 42,000 53,000 2444
62,103 (180Y 61,923 78,700 69,450 7,527
81,041 - 81,041 71,218 81,150 109
16,197 - 16,197 6,663 17,013 816
2,160,985 3,337 2,164,322 2,410,267 2,397,194 232,872
119,041 - 119,041 - 122 229 3,188
2,280,026 3,337 2,283,363 2,410,267 2,519,423 236,060
369,314 - 569,314 378,109 577,104 7,790
44,772 - 44,772 45912 46,596 2,224
[21,444 - 121,444 146,505 126,363 4,919
182,176 - 182,176 205,563 187,173 4,997
9,232 - 0,232 15,662 10,662 1,430
62,678 1,346 64,024 73,600 65,360 1,336
106,519 11,600 118,119 108,272 §23,932 5,813
- - - - 1,500 1,500
3,690 - 3,690 7.900 5,850 2,160
43,555 - 43,555 55,246 49,141 5,586
4,464 (1,356) 3,108 4,450 3,975 867
13,739 - 13,739 15,109 14,824 1,085
60,97% - 60,979 67,943 al,741 762
23,559 - 23,559 23.460 25,678 2,116
1,246,121 11,590 1,257,711 1,349,731 1,300,259 42,588
- - - - 28,841 18,841
1,246,121 11,590 1,257,711 1,349,731 1,329,140 71,429

The accompanying notes are an integral past of this Bnancial statement.
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EXPENDITURES {continued):
Community services:

Current:
Telephone and utilities
Operating insurance
Other
Appropriations

Total current

Capital outlay
Total community services

Total expenditures
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers omt
Total other financing sources (nses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund bajance, July 1, 2013

Fund balance, June 30, 2014

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -

{GAAP Adjustment for Expenditures Budgeted Amounts Paositive

Basig) Encumbrances {Budgetary Basis) Original Final (Negative)

§ 32,691 3 - 32,691 b 29996 § 33,461 3 770
9,112 - 0112 9,041 9,126 14
3,068 - 3,008 4,168 3,268 200

532,033 - 532,033 508,152 532,530 497
576,904 - 576,904 551,357 578,385 1,481
576,904 - 576,904 551,357 578,385 1,481
10,911,394 (70,030) 10,841,364 11,024 063 11,378,190 536,826
12,978,623 70,030 13,048,653 13,116,386 12,470,014 578,639
426,112 - 426,112 976,112 456,112 (30,000)
(13,012,752} - (13,012,752) (14,092,498) (13,085,459 72,707
(12,586,640) - (12,586,640) (13,116,386) (12,629,347 42,707
391,983 70,030 462,013 - (155,333) 621,346
6,480,885 (87,745) 6,353,140 6,480,885 6,480,885 (87,745
6872868 § (17,715) 6855153 § 6,480,885 § 6321552 % 533,601

The accempanying notes are an integral pant of this Gnancial stalenent.
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REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
Local shared taxes
Federal and state
Charges for services
Interest incame
Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Cusrent;

Administration:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Contract services
Travet
Supplies
Other
[nsurance

Total administration

Repular education:

Salaries

Payroll taxes
Benefits

Travel

Supplies

Books

Other

Total regular education

Special education:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Contract services
Travel
Supplies
Other

Total special education

Vocational education:

Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Travel
Supplies
Other

Total vocational education

Adult education;
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Supplies

Total adubt educasion

CITY OF TULLABOMA, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAR)
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variznce with

Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budpeted Amounts Positive
Basis) for Encumbrances (Budgetary Basis) Original Final (Nepative)
5 6,102,136 & - & 6,102,136 % 5,926,057 $  5926,057 % 176,079
15,224,166 - 15,224,166 14,831,000 14,831,000 393,166
273,171 - 273,171 220,000 220,000 53,171
11,586 - 11,586 10,000 10,000 1,586
82,738 - 82,738 20,000 20,000 62,738
21,693,797 - 21,693,797 21,007,057 21,007,057 686,740
1,335,138 - 1,335,138 £,399,071 1,399,071 63,933
96,631 - 96,631 107,029 107,029 10,398
1,134,467 - 1,134,467 [,128.E19 1,136,119 1,652
236,590 - 236,590 282,000 288,000 51,410
37,014 - 37,014 10,800 10,800 (26,214)
28,474 - 28,474 31,700 31,700 3,226
112,199 - 112,199 135,900 135,900 23,701
228,102 - 229,102 238,743 242,743 13,641
3,209,615 - 3,209,615 3,333,362 3,351,362 141,747
10,225,206 - 10,225,206 10,468,711 10,468,711 243,505
729,566 - 729,566 800,856 800,856 71,250
2,838,372 - 2858372 3,052,789 3,052,789 194,417
41,657 - 41,657 25,000 25,000 (16,657)
316,125 . 316,125 250,000 250,000 (66,125)
368,071 - 368,071 280,000 280,000 (88,071
21,980 - 21,980 - - (21,580)
14,560,977 - 14,560,977 14,877,356 14,877,336 316,379
2,093,064 - 2,093,064 2,112,222 2,156,222 63,158
147,731 - 147,731 161,585 161,585 13,834
672,689 - 672,689 631,332 726,332 53,643
154,060 - 154,060 130,000 130,000 {24,060)
18,679 - 18,679 5,000 3,000 (13,679)
14,698 - 14,698 25,800 21,800 7,102
57,933 . 57,933 7,250 7,250 (50,683)
3,158,854 - 3,158,854 3,069,189 3,208,189 49,335
522,748 - 322,748 591,690 326,690 3,942
37,576 - 37,576 45,264 45,264 7.688
155,006 - 155,006 198,306 168,306 13,300
5,000 - 3,000 5.000 5,000 E
15,000 - 15,000 3,000 15,000 -
3,000 - 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
740,330 - 740,330 860,260 765,260 24,930
13,581 - 13,581 - - (13,381}
1,039 - 1,039 - - (1,03%)
408 - 408 - - (408}
15,028 - 5,028 - - (15,028)

{continued)

The accompanying notes are oo integral part of this financial stuement.
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CITY OF TULLATIOMA, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET ANBD ACTUAL

EXPENDITURES: (Continued)
Attendance:

Salaries

Payrall 1axes

Benefits

Travel

Other

Total atlendance

Health services:
Salaries
Poyroll taxes
Benefits
Supplies
Total health services

Other studert support:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Other

Total other student support

Instructéonal staff;
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Contract services
Travel
Books
Other
Total instructional staff

Plant operations:
Salaries
Payroll 1axes
Benefits
Contract services
Supplies
Lhilities
Insurance
Total plant operations

Ptant miintenance:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Maintenance and repairs
Other
Total plant maintenance

Transpartation:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Benefits
Maintenance and repairs
Other
[nsurance
Total transportation

BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -
{GAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budpeted Amounts Positive
Basis) for Ercumbrances  (Budgetary Basis) Original Final (Negntive)
200412 § - § 200412 % 199,195 § 189,195 § (1217
14,636 - 14,636 15,239 15,239 603
43,641 - 43,641 45,702 45,702 2,061
5,279 - 5,279 4,500 4,500 (779)
4,995 - 4,995 4,500 4,500 (495)
268,963 - 268,963 269,136 269,136 173
132,324 - 132,324 130,777 130,777 (1,547
9,417 - 2417 10,004 10,004 387
31,508 - 31,508 34,850 34,850 3,342
23,659 ~ 25,659 30,000 30,600 4,341
198,908 - 198,008 205,631 205,631 6,123
516,670 - 516,670 509,600 509,600 (7,070)
37,621 - 37,621 38,984 38,584 1,363
141,691 - 141,691 145,455 145,455 3,764
8,730 - 8.730 15,000 15,000 6,270
704,712 - 704,712 709,039 709,039 4,327
421,699 - 421,699 553,993 471,993 50,294
30,796 - 30,795 42 380 42,380 11,584
08,881 - 98,881 138,684 138,684 35,803
5,000 . 6,000 3,500 3,500 {2.500)
4,108 - 4,118 - - (4,108)
49,416 - 49416 50,000 50,000 584
£.360 - 1,360 1,500 1,500 140
612,260 - 612,260 790,057 708,057 05,797
507,718 - 597,718 641,768 641,768 44,050
43,011 - 43,011 49,095 49,095 6,084
202,050 - 202,050 215,304 215,304 13,254
370,335 - 370,335 475,000 475,000 104,663
121,522 - 122,522 150,000 150,000 27,478
1,185,565 - 1,185,565 1,517,000 1,517,000 331,435
80,229 “ §9,229 82,522 82,522 (6,707)
2,610,430 - 2,610,430 3,130,689 3,130,689 520,259
418,255 - 418,255 436,720 436,720 18,465
30,089 - 30,089 33,409 33,409 3,320
97,413 - 97,413 110,745 110,745 13,332
443,315 - 443,315 400,000 420,000 (23,315)
- - - 4,000 4,600 4,000
989,072 - 589,072 984,874 1,004,874 15,802
49,533 - 49,333 42,955 42,955 {6,578)
3,727 - 3,727 3,085 31,083 {642)
2,354 - 2,354 2,323 2313 (3
11,156 - 11,150 20,000 20,000 8,850
35,662 - 33,662 40,000 40,000 4,338
22.608 - 22,608 20,715 20,7315 (1,893)
125,034 - 125,034 129,078 129,078 4,044

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budpet -
(GAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis) for Encumbrances (Budgetary Basis) Original Final (Nepative)
EXPENDITURES: (Continued)
Community services:
Salaries 5 (2,250) % b {2,250) - % - 5 2,250
Payroll taxes (315) (315) - - 315
Benefits 54 54 - - (54)
Other - - 7,000 7.000 7.000
Total community services (2,311) (2,511) 7.00(} 7,000 9,311
Capital outlay 1,573,685 1,573,683 474,000 1,339,115 (234,570)
Total expenditures 28,765,337 28,763,337 28,839,671 239,704,786 930 420
Excess revenues over (under) expenditure (7,071,360) (7,071,560) (7,832,614) (8,697,729} 1,626,169
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfer from the City of Tullzhoma 8,961,784 8,961,784 8,697,729 8,697,729 264,085
Transfer to other funds (39,202} (59.202) - - (59,202)
Total other {inancing sources (uses) 8,902,582 8,902,582 8,697,729 8,697,729 204,833
Net change in fund balance [,831,022 1,831,022 865,115 - 1,831,022
Fund balance, July 1, 2013 3,748,223 3,748,223 3,748,223 3,748,223 -
Prior period adjustment (See Mote 10) 17,432 17,432 - - 17,432
Fund balance, June 30, 2014 5 5,396,677 b $ 5,596,677 4,613,338 3 3,748,223 3 1,848,454

The aceompatying notes ore we integral part of (his financial statemnent,
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cosh equivalents
Accaunts receivable
Allowanes for doubtful accounts
Unbilled revenue
Aggounts receivable - povernment
Inventary
Due from other funds
QOther nssets
Restricted nssels:
Hond funds - cash and cash squivalents
Caonstruction funds - cash and cash equivalents
Total eurrent assets

CAPITAL AND OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Capiin) assels:
Lhility plant in service
Land
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, machinery, and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Capital nssets, net
Dther roncurrent assets:
Notes receivable
Other assets
Total capital and ather noncurren| assets

Talal assets

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Duue ta ether finds
Custoner deposits
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bands and notes payable - current portion
Accrued interest
Contracis and retainage payahle
Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Conservation « TVA program
Revenue and tax bonds and ather obligations
payable - noncument portion
Total noncurrent lishihlies

Tolal liabilities

MET POSITION
Net investmenl in capital assets
Restrictad:
Restricied for debt service
Restricied for construclion
Unrestricted
Total net pesition

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEFE,
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Total Aclivitics -
Electric Fiber Optics Waste Water Water Enterprise Enternal Service
System System Svstem System Funds Fund

6,614,611 s 737,400 3 1,190,805 £ 2,375,195 3 10,940,611 5 139,437
2,349 966 478,166 334,560 330,793 3,493,486 .
(16,483} (B,731) {4,093) (4,048) {33,354) -
2,186 634 - - - 2,186,634 -
- - 410,232 - 410,232 -
568,046 440,680 201,679 318,424 1,528,829 -
596,324 - 5,867 3,258 1,005,449 .
346,140 58,910 734,515 1,093 1,141,062 -
- 1,105,309 40,066 £2,186 1,227,763 .
5,377,666 1,448,556 165,505 237.601 7,229,368 -
1B.444.904 4260131 1,079,540 3,345,304 20.130,079 1394317
20,693,447 13,025,438 15,370,056 10,868,360 64,857,241 -
333,168 - 134,588 8324 476,080 -
1,593,653 1,330 10,990,408 1814,744 16,402,135 -
2,283 503 976,089 1,456,093 718,651 3,454,336 -
1,739,353 123,967 5,316,304 1,297,445 B,477,069 -
(16.051,626) (4,885,321} (17.973,776) {7.735.015) (46,645,748} -
10.593,498 10,141,503 19.253 673 8,992 430 40.021,113 N
421,573 - 1,577 612914 1,056,064 .
- 33871 - - 32872 -
11,015,071 iD, 174,375 18,255,250 9,625,153 50,110,049 -
29,459,975 14,434,706 22,374,790 12,570,657 79,240,128 139,437
5,436,150 163,747 398,147 330,377 6,328,421 -
250,313 201 607 4,735 28 087 583,742 -
- 982,002 10,565 12,482 1,005,449 -
1,770,656 57,030 - - 1,827,686 -
- 750,000 711,668 437,000 1,998 668 .
- 115,309 . 2,888 318,197 -
- 32,273 213,707 - 234,978 -
7,466,119 2.621.966 1,398,122 510,834 12,297,141 -
425719 - - - 425,719 -
176,816 13,985,915 4.308.869 2,564,491 21,032,051 -
602,553 13,989.915 4,306,869 2,564,491 21,457,830 -
B.068.674 16.611,881 5,695,091 3,375,325 33,754,571 -
16,393,498 (4,588,104 14,313,971 6,058,435 26,377,804 -
. 760,000 40,066 19,500 909,566 -
5,377,666 1,426,325 {47,202) 237,601 6,954,350 -
5,420,137 194.604 2,368,864 3,219,792 11,203,357 135,437
21,391,301 1y {2.177.115) 3 16,675,699 5 9,585,332 5 45,485,157 by 119,437
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Forfeited discounts and penalties
Rental income
Other operating revenue
Tatal operating revenues

OPERATING EXPEMSES:
Purchased power
Purchaszd water
Distribution aod transmission
Customer accounting and collection
Muinienance expense
Administrative and geneenl
Deprecintion and smortization
Tax and 1ax equivalenis
Supplics

Total aperating expenses

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUES {(EXPENSES):
Interest income
Other income
Gain (loss) on sale of property
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS AND
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Capital contributions

Transfers

Change in net position

Total net position, beginning of year -as previously presented
Adjustment to restate beginaing net position (See Naie 10)

Net position, beginning , as restated

Total net position, end of year

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Business-type Activities - Emerprise Funds Governmental
Total Activities ~
Eleciric Fiber Optics Waste Water Water Esterprize Internal Service
System System Svstem System Funds Fund

28145616 R4 6,211,706 T 3,772082 5 3414370 % 42,143,714 L -

234,333 - 30,461 26,725 291,519 .

841,374 - - 2,936 844,310 .

203,642 - 41,500 70,215 315,357 .

30,024,965 6,215,706 3,844,043 3,514,246 43,594,960 .

24,267,153 - - - 24767,133 R

- - - 1,404,822 1,404,822 -

1,306,362 2,761,439 T12,596 382,859 5,223,263 -

392,551 291,215 199,747 203,958 1087471 -

1,046,608 230,946 697,769 315,343 2,310,666 -

1,046,781 GBB, 166 664,868 556,795 2,956,210 -

776,499 1,293,802 814,657 347,139 3,232,087 .

04,524 48,305 80,137 50,672 273,638 -

- - - - - 2,508

28,930,485 3,334,173 3,229,774 3,261,588 40,756,020 2,908
1,004 480 477,533 614,269 252 658 2,838,940 {2,508)

18,115 2,204 1,722 4,058 16,059 %49

508 1,338 63,182 - 65,118 -

13,390 (31,186) . - (17,796) -

- (631,465) (36,364) (23.746) {711,575) -

32,103 (639,109) 8.540 ($0.688) {638,154) 549
1,126,583 218,424 622,809 231,570 2,200,786 (1.955)

- - 766,249 B 766,249 .
(426,112) - - 139,638 {286,474) -
Ta0471 248,424 [,385,058 372,608 2,680,561 (1,959)
20,690,830 {2,301,875) 15,286,064 9,241,275 42,916,871 141,396
- (93,724) - (18.551) (112,275) -
24,690,830 {2,395,599) 15,286,641 9,222,929 12,804,596 141,396
21,391,301 5 {2.171,173) $ 16,675,699 $ 9595332 3 45,485,157 5 139,437

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement,
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid 1o suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Ciher paymenis
Net cash provided {used) by aperating nctivities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.
Increase {decrease) in customer deposiis
(Incressc} decrease in notes receivable
Advances from TVA-Home Weatherization Program
Paymenis frem (to) other funds of the primary government
Net cash provided {used) by nen-capital Enaneing activities

CASH FLOWS FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVTTTES:

Acquisition and constructien ef cnpital pssets
Proceeds from disposition of capital assets
Proceeds from borowing long-term debt
Principal paid on long-tesm debt
Isierest pard on long-term debt
Capiial contributions received
Net cash provided (used) by copita) financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Inierest ond other income
Net cash provided in investing activities
Net increase (decrense) i cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cnsh equivalents, end of year

Cash accounts consists of:
Cash and cash equivalems
Bond funds - cash and cash equivilents
Construetion funds - cash and cash equivalents

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental

Operating Income:
Adjustments te reconcile operating income 1o
niel cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciat:an and amortization
Other income
(Gain) loss on disposal of property
{Inerease) decrease in;
Accounts receivabie
inveniory
Other assels
Bue from other funds
Increase (decrease) i
Aceounts payable
Due 1o other funds
Accrued expenses
Total rdjustments

Total Activities -
Electric Fiber Optica Waste Warer Whater Enterprise Internal Service
Svystem Sysizm System Sysiem Funds Fund
¥ 1043530 5 6215413 5 3,507,393 £ 3512102 £ 43,690,18% 5 -
(36,182,221) {3,336,094) (786,737} (2.032,769) {32,237,81)) -
{1,727,1586) {675,169) {1,165,024) (B800,852) (4,368,161) -
(94,524) (48,305) (80,137 {50.672) (273,638) (2.908)
2,451,470 2,155,847 1,475,395 627,849 6,710,561 (2,908)
(1,041) 3,768 - - 2,721 -
46,456 - 344 92,888 139,708 -
(61,963) - - - (61,963) -
(426.112) - - 139.638 {286,474) -
(442 660) 3,768 364 232,526 {206,002) -
{679,127} (568,302) (3,828,597) (1,806,050) (6,082,572) .
13,390 - - - 13,3190 -
- - 2,749,432 - 2,745,432 .
(1,369,000 {760,000) {774 558) (420,000} (3,323,558} -
- (646,665) (56,364) (24,353 {727,382) -
- - 766,249 - 766,249 -
(2.034.737) (1,975.467) (1.143,834) {1,450,103) {6,604,441) .
18115 2,204 1,731 4.058 26.05% 945
18,115 2,204 1,732 4,058 26,000 945
{7,812} 186,352 333,647 (585,970} (73,783) (1,959
12,027,089 3.104,953 1,062,729 3,281,754 19,471,525 141,396
£ 12,614,277 g 3,291,305 3 1,396,376 5 2.605.784 5 19397742 5 139,437
5 6,636,611 3 737,400 b 1,190,803 £ 2375793 5 10,930,611 3 139,237
- 1,105,300 40,066 81,388 1,237,763 -
5,377,666 1,448,596 165,505 237,601 7.239.368 -
5 32014377 3 1,201,305 b 1,396,376 § 2695784 § 19357742 s 139,417
RECOMCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATIONS
k3 1,094,480 5 877,533 % 614,265 & 252,658 b 2,838,940 5 (2.908)
716,469 1,293,802 BI4,657 347,139 3,232,097 -
598 1,338 43,182 - 63,118
{13,390) 31186 - - 17,796 ~
468,081 (28,815) (396,789) (i,363) 41,514 -
{4,083) (41,960) {15,883} 5,542 {56,384) -
(37,435) (12,195) {25,137) 22,593 (72,174) -
(24,483) - {3.643) {ca1) (29.207) -
256,879 20,517 21,742 21,144 620,282 -
- 23,219 730 5,258 19,207 -
(45,276) (B,778) 104,767 {24341 23,372 -
1.356.949¢ 1,278,314 861,126 375.191 3.871,621 -
3 2.451.470 5 2,155,847 5 1,475,385 5 627,849 3 6,710,561 z (2.988)

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Grants receivabie
Due from other govenments
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Other assets
Restricted assets - cash
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Furniture, machinery, and equipment
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation
Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Long-ierm liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricied

Total net position

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2014
Governmental Proprictary
Type Type
Industrial Area Economic Municipal Total
Development Development Alrport Component
Bosard Corporation Authority Units
k3 12,654 3 45,830 b 152,678 5 211,162
- - 871 871
- . 15,281 15,281
- - 197,009 197,009
- - 27,893 27,893
- - 510 510
B} - 8,202 8,202
42,341 42,341
- - 1,738,799 [,738,799
- - 9,964,294 9,964,294
- - 9,500 9,500
- - 452,939 452,939
- - 634,631 654,631
. . (3.351,874) (3,351,874)
12,634 45,830 9,913,074 9,971,358
- 593 32911 33,504
- 2,906 6,217 9,123
- - 36,802 36,802
- - 177,943 177,943
- 3,499 253,873 257372
. . 13,596 13,596
- - 9,270,311 9,270,311
- - 42,341 42 341
12,654 42,331 332,953 387,938
5 12,654 5 42,331 ¥ 9,645,605 $ 9,700,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Tullahoma, Tennessee (the City) was chartered by private act in 1903. The City operates under a
Mayor-Aldermen form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public
safety (police and fire protection), highways and streets, health and social services, recreation, public
improvements, planning and zoning, general administrative, utility services and public education.

A. Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the City present the primary government and its component units. Component
units are entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Component units,
although legally separate entities, are required to be presented in the government’s financial staternents using
either a blended” or “discrete” presentation, Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the government’s operations and data from these units are combined with data of the primary
government. Discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column from primary government in
the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the City.

As of June 30, 2014, the City has no blended component units.
The City reports the following discretely presented component units:

Tullahoma Municipal Airport Authority (The Authority) operates and maintains the airport and its related
property. The Authority is required to submit an annual budget document to the Mayor and Aldermen for their
approval, and receives an annual operating subsidy from the City.

Tullahoma Industrial Development Board (The TIDB) was established in order to promote industry and
develop trade for the City and surrounding county government. The TIDB is required to have annual budgets
and debt issues approved by the Mayor and Aldermen.

Tullahoma Area Economic Development Corporation (The TAEDC) was established to help Tullahoma
capture economic activity. The TAEDC is required to submit an annual budget document to the Mayor and
Aldermen for their approval, and receives an annual operating subsidy from the City.

The financial statements of the component units are available as part of the City of Tullahoma Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report and can be obtained from the City of Tullahoma finance office:

P.O. Box 807
201 West Grundy Street
Tullahoma, Tennessee 37388

All discretely presented component units have a June 30 fiscal year-end.
B. Jointly Governed Organizations
Jointly governed organizations are excluded from the financial reporting entity in accordance with

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, due to the City’s lack of financial
accountability for their operations. The following related agencies provide services within the City:



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Duck River Utility Commission:

The City, in conjunction with the City of Manchester, appoints the Board of the Duck River Utility
Commission (DRUC), which operates a water treatment plant providing the citizens of the two cities with
water. Each city elects three of the six member board. Neither city has any other responsibility for the
commission. The City has no equity interest in the net resources of the Commission. Assets of the DRUC are
pledged to the cities to secure indebtedness to the State of Tennessee which is being repaid from earnings of
the DRUC. The Commission reported net position of $2,067,763 as of June 30, 2014. Complete financial
statements can be obtained by writing P.O. Box 1237, Tullahoma, TN 37388,

Interlocal Solid Waste Authority:

The Interlocal Solid Waste Autherity (The ISWA) was created pursuant to an interlocal agreement authorized
by State Statutes in March 1993, Its Board is composed of two members from each of the adjoining counties
of Lincoln, Giles, and Franklin. The purpose of the ISWA is to provide solid waste recycling and disposal
services to the City and the three county areas. The ISWA entered into an agreement with a waste recycling
company for recycling of its solid waste. The City has an ongoing financial responsibility to fund its Pro Rata
share of costs incidental to the operation of the ISWA. During 2014, these costs amounted to $369,663 and
were paid from the Solid Waste Fund of the City. The City has no equity interest in the ISWA. The ISWA
had reported net position of $617,893 as of June 30, 2014. Complete financial statements can be obtained by
writing Interlocal Solid Waste, C/O City of Tullahoma, P.Q. Box 807, Tullahoma, TN 37388.

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. Statement of Net Position and Statement of Changes in Net
Position) report information on the activities of the Government and its component units. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government

is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The Statement of Net Position presents the Government’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference reported as net position. Net position is reported in three categories:

Net investment in capital assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by
outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction, and improvement of those assets. The
outstanding debt is offset by any unspent proceeds for such debt.

Restricted net position results from restrictions placed on net position by external sources such as

creditors, grantors and contributors, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Unrestricted net position consists of all other net position that does not meet the definition of the two
preceding categories.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

B-22



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental fonds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements; non-major funds are combined in a single column.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. All material interfund activity
has been removed from these statements, However, internal eliminations do not include utility services
provided to City departments. Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses. Proprietary financial
statements of City component units also report using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal
activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the year in which the levy is assessed. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Government considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Property
taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as receivables in the current fiscal period. Only the portion
of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered susceptible to accrual as
revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the Government. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to non-vested sick

pay, compensated absences and other long-term commitments and contingencies are recorded only when
payment is due.

Enterprise Funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are included on the
balance sheet. The Enterprise Funds operating statement presents increases (i.e. revenues) and decreases (i.e.
expenses) in net position. The Enterprise Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their
revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements, except for services provided and used, which are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers for goods, services or privileges
provided, and fines and forfeitures, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital granis and
contributions. Amounts reported as general revenues include 1) all taxes, 2) unrestricted revenues for the use

of money or property, 3) unrestricted revenues from other governmental agencies, and 4) compensation for
loss, sale or damage of property.

Expenses reported by function include direct expenses that are specifically associated with a service or
program and are clearly identifiable to a particular program. Some functions, such as general government and
fiscal administration, include expenses that are in essence indirect expenses of other functions. The City has
elected not to charge these indirect expenses to other functions.



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods and
services in connection with the fund’s principal ongoing operations and consist primarily of charges to
custorners or departments, cost of sales and services, administrative expense and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Government's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The Government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Government’s primary operating fund which is used to account for all financial

resources of the general operations of the Government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

The General Purpose School Fund is used to account for the receipt and disbursement of federal, state
and local funds for education purposes, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The General Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumnulation of resources and the payment of
principal and interest for the debt.

The Government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Electric System is used to account for the electric operations of the Tullahoma Utilities Board.

The Fiber Optics System is used to account for the fiber optics operations of the Tullahoma Utilities
Board.

The Waste Water System is used to account for the waste water operations of the Tullahoma Utilities
Board.

The Water System is used to account for the water operations of the Tullahoma Utilities Board.

These funds provide services to customers on a self-supporting basis utilizing a rate structure designed to

produce revenues sufficient to fund debt service requirements, operating expenses and adequate working
capital.

Additionally, the Government reports the following fund types:
An Internal Service Fund is used to account for the operations of self-sustaining agencies rendering
services to other agencies of the government on a cost reimbursement basis. These services include the

medical trust fund used to account for employee health insurance program.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Tnflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, savings accounts and
certificates of deposit having an original maturity date of three months or less.

For purposes of reporting cash flows in the Enterprise Fund, cash and cash equivalents includes designated
amounts classified on the balance sheet as “Restricted Assets.”



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments — The City is reporting investments at fair value, except for investments with a remaining maturity,
at the time of purchase, of one year or less, which are reported on an amortized cost basis. Investments consist
of Money Market account.

Inventories and Prepaid Items — Material and supply inventories in the enterprise funds are valued at the lower
of cost or market, with cost being determined on an average cost basis. All funds account for inventories using
the consumption method. Prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements represent
payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future periods.

Receivables — All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible
accounts.

Interfund Receivables and Payables and Transactions Between Funds — Short-term amounts owed between
funds are classified as “Due to/from other funds.” Legally authorized transfers are included in the results of
operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

Restricted Assets — Certain accounts of the Enterprise Fund are classified as restricted assets on the balance
sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants,

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are generally defined as assets with an individual cost in excess of $5,000 and a
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost at the time of acquisition. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assels’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest is not
capitalized on assets acquired with tax-exempt debt.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Utility plant in service 7-100 years
Buildings and improvements 30 years
Improvements other than buildings 20 years
Furniture, machinery and equipment 5- 15 years
Infrastructure 17- 20 years

Property under capital leases is stated at the lower of the present value of minimum lease payments or the fair
market value at the inception of the lease. Once placed in use, such property is amortized on the straight-line
method over the shorter of the economic useful life of the asset or the remaining lease term,

Appropriations — Appropriations to other funds are accounted for as interfund transfers.

Compensated Absences — City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event
of termination, an employee is paid for accumulated vacation leave and sick leave, if vested. After five years
of employment, employee sick leave vests at varying percentages up to a maximum of 50% after 10 years of
service. Accumulated unpaid vacation pay related to proprietary fund type operations is reported as a liability
in the appropriate individual proprietary funds.




CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

School Board employees® vacation time must be used in each fiscal year and cannot be carried forward to
subsequent fiscal years; therefore, no adjustment has been made for vacation time. For sick time, non-certified
personnel, after a minimum of ten years of service with Tullahoma City Schools, will be paid $25 for each
unused accumulated sick day upon termination of employment by resignation or retirement. Sick time for
certified personnel is rolled into their retirement time.

Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay related to governmental fund type operations that has not matured
is reported in the applicable governmental activities in the Statements of Net Position and Activities, but is not
a governmental fund Hability, because it is not expected to be liquidated with expendable available resources.
The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends.

Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay amounts related to proprietary fund type operations are accrued
when benefits vest to employees and reported as a liability in the appropriate individual proprietary funds.

Net position flow assumption - Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both
restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts
to report as restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted
before unrestricted — net position is applied.

Fund balance flow assumptions - Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both
restricted and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order
to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the
resources are considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been
depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed
by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

Reserves, Desipnations of Fund Balances — In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions governmental funds report fund balance in classifications
based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constrains on the specific purposes for which
amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund balance is reported in the fund financial statements under the
following classifications:

Nonspendable fund balance — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in a spendable
form, including items not expected to be converted to cash (i.e. inventory or prepaids) or are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact (principal of permanent fund).

Restricted fund balance — Amount of fund balance that can be spent for specific purposes stipulated
by external resource or through enabling legislation.



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Reserves. Designations of Fund Balances (continued)

Committed fund balance — Amounts constrained for specific purposes as determined by formal
action of the City Board of Mayor and Aldermen, the highest level of decision-making body, by
resolution or ordinance. Amounts classified as committed are not subject to legal enforceability like
restricted resources; however, they cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Board of

Mayor and Aldermen removes or changes the commitment by taking the same action it employed to
impose the commitment,

Assigned fund balance — Amounts are infended to be used by the City but do not meet the criteria of
restricted or committed. Intent can be expressed by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen or by an
official who has been designated this authority by the City Board. Appropriations of fund balance to
eliminate budgetary deficits in subsequent year’s budget are presented as assigned.

Unassigned fund balance ~ In accordance with GAAP, unassigned fund balance is the residual
classification of the General Fund that does not meet any of the other classifications.

Stabilization policy — The City has a fund balance policy that requires that the unassigned fund balance be
maintained at a level sufficient to provide for the required resources to meet operating cost needs, to allow for
unforeseen needs of an emergency nature, and to permit orderly adjustment of changes resulting from
fluctuations of revenue sources. The City will maintain at least 15% of the next year’s budget in the unassigned

fund balance of the general fund. For the current fiscal year, the City did meet the minimum general fund balance
policy.

Spending policy — Unless otherwise stated, the fund balances will be spent in the following order:
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources ~ In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has one item that qualifies
for reporting in this category: deferred charge on bond refunding. A deferred charge on refunding results from
the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one item that qualifies for reporting in the Statement of Net
Position. Property tax levied on January 1, 2014, will not be available for collection until fiscal year 2015,
beginning October 1, 2014. A second item, which arises under a modified accrual basis of accounting,
qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported in the
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenue from uncollected
property taxes (including penalties and interest) and unavailable revenues relating to loans. These amounts are
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The City

did not have deferred inflows of resources to report in its Proprietary Fund financial statements for the current
year.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
F. Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

Property Tax — The City’s property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior
January 1 for all real and personal property located in the City’s legal boundaries. All City taxes on real estate
are declared to be a lien on such realty from January 1 of the year assessments are made,

Assessed values are established by the State of Tennessee at the following rates of assessed market value:

Pubtlic Utility Property 55%
Industrial and Commercial Property — Real 40%
Industrial and Commercial Property — Personal 30%
Farm and Residential Property 25%

Taxes are levied at a rate of $2.54 for property located in Coffee and $2.56 for property located in Franklin
Counties per $100 of assessed valuation.

Payments may be made during the period from October 1 through February 28. Current tax collections of
$9,433,864 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 were approximately 95 % of the tax levy.

During March of each tax year, delinquent taxes are turned over to the County for collection.

Estimates — Estimates used in the preparation of financial statements require management to make assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

G. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2012, the GASB issued statement No. 65, liems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.
Beginning with fiscal year 2014, the City implemented the provisions of this statement, which establishes

accounting standards and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or
deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities, and
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as
assets and liabilities. Implementation of the statement No. 65 resulted in a restatement of beginning net
position in government-wide statement of activities and the proprietary fund financial statements {see Note 10).

The GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012 — an amendment of GASB Statements No,
10 and No. 62, required for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2012. This statement improves
accounting and financial reporting by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of
Statements No. 54 and No. 62. The adoption of GASB No. 66 had no impact on the City’s financial
statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — an amendnent of GASB No. 25,
required for fiscal periods beginning after June 13, 2013. This statement revises existing standards of financial
reporting by state and local government pensions plans and will be adopted by the pension plan itself.

H. Daie of Management’s Subsequent Review

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 30, 2014, which is the date the financial
staterents were available to be issued.



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 34, 2014

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

a.

f.

On or before May 1 of each year, all agencies of the City submit requests for appropriations to the City

Administrator and Finance Director so that a budget may be prepared and submitted to the Board of
Mayor and Aldermen.

Prior to July 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance for the General, Special
Revenue and Debt Service Funds of the City. The Board of Education submits its budgets to the City for
approval by The Board of Mayor and Aldermen.

The City Administrator and Finance Director are authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between
departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be

approved by Board of Mayor and Aldermen. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the fund
level.

The Board of Education follows its own policy for budgetary revisions during the year with changes
submitted to the Board of Mayer and Aldermen when revised.

Budgets for all funds use the encumbrance method of accounting whereby encumbrances are treated as
expenditures in the year of incurrence of the commitment to purchase. The adjustments to convert budget
basis excess revenues over expenditures to GAAP represent the net changes in encumbrances outstanding
at year end after consideration is given to prior year encumbrances liquidated during the current year.
Budgeted amounts reflected in the accompanying budget and actual comparison are as ori ginally adopted
and as amended by the Board. Individual amendments are not material in relation to the original
appropriations. Capital Projects Funds adopt their budgets on a project length basis; therefore, budgetary

comparison statements on an annual basis would not provide meaningful information and are not
presented.

All appropriations which are not expended or encumbered lapse at year-end.

Encumbrances — Information regarding encumbrances is available to assist in the management of commitments
against appropriations. Encumbrance accounting is utilized for budgetary control purposes. Encumbrances,
however, are not treated as expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements. Qutstanding
encumbrances at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Outstanding

Fund Encumbrances

General Fund b 17,715
Special Revenue Fund:

Solid Waste Management 9,176

3 26,891
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

B. Excess Expenditures

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the following Tullahoma City Schools System funds had total expenditures
exceeding total appropriations. These over expenditures were funded by available fund balances.

Budgeted Unit: Final Budget Actual Variance
General Purpose School Fund:
Adult education 3 - h 15,028 3 (15,028)
Capital outlay 1,339,115 1,573,685 (234,57
Transfers to other funds - 59,202 (59,202)
Total General Purpose School Fund 3 1,339,113 b 1,647,915 5 {308,800)

School Federal and State Projects Fund:

Instructional staff 3 88,446 Y 89,134 b (688)
Transportation - 1,563 (1,563)
Capital outlay 344,593 345,060 {467}
Total School Federal and State Projects Fund b 433,039 5 435,757 5 (2,718)

C. Deficit Fund Balances

The following fund has a deficit balance as of June 30, 2014:

Undesignated
Fund Balance/ Total Fund
Unrestricted Net Balance/Total Net
Position Reserved Position
Proprietary Fund:
Fiber Optics Fund 3 194,604 b (2,371,779 3 (2,177,173)

The responsibility for funding the above deficit balance lies with Tullahoma Utilities Board.
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City and component units are authorized by policy to invest funds in financial institutions and direct
obligations of the Federal Government. During 2014, the City and component units invested funds that are not
immediately needed in certificates of deposit, savings accounts, money market accounts, and the State of
Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool, Deposits in financial institutions are required by State Statute
to be secured and collateralized by the institutions. The collateral must meet certain requirements and be
deposited in an escrow account or in a second bank for the benefit of the City and must have a total minimum
market value of 105% of the value of the deposits placed in the institutions, less the amount protected by
federal depository insurance. Collateral requirements are not applicable for financial institutions that participate
in the State of Tennessee’s collateral pool.

A, Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk: The City’s policies limit deposits to those instruments allowed by applicable state laws
and described above. As of June 30, 2014, Tullahoma City School System’s deposits of approximately
$557,490 were not collateralized.

B. Investments

Credit Risk: The City does not have a formal investment policy; however management's current investment
practice is formulated around the prudent-person rule: investments are made as a prudent person should be
expected to make, with discretion and intelligence, to produce reasonable income, preserve capifal and, in
general, avoid speculative investments,

Interest Rate Risk: Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk for adverse interest rate
changes. City policy provides that to the extent practicable, investments are matched with anticipated cash
flows. Typically certificates of deposit are issued for periods less than one vear and investments in the Local
Government Investment Pool (the Pool) are available daily. The Pool does not have a credit rating,

NOTE 4 - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE

A. Accounts receivable

A summary of accounts receivable as of June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Primarv Government:

Governmental Business-type Component

Activities Activities Total Units
Property tax ¥ 10,871,730 ¥ - $ 10,871,730 -
Court receivables 906,763 - 906,763 -
Customer accounts receivables - 3,493,486 3,493,486 871
Other 45,596 - 45,596 -
5 11,824,089 § 3493486 3 15,317,575 871
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Transaction Summary

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in process
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, machinery, and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, machinery, and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1,2013 Increase Decrease June 30, 2014
$ 3,824,195 $ - - $ 3,824,195

1,368,695 1,112,268 (2,089,141) 391,822

5,192,890 1,112,268 (2,089,141 4,216,017

57,982,371 1,213,910 - 59,196,281
10,224,142 973,657 (189,688) 11,008,111
16,806,631 2,089,141 - 18,895,772
85,013,144 4,276,708 (189,688} 89,100,164
{26,884,197) (1,367,334) - (28,251,551
(8,060,619 {469,622) 186,586 (8,343,653)
{11,360,638) (1,107,565) - {12,468,223)
{46,305,474) (2,944,541) 186,586 {49,063,429)
38,707,670 1,332,167 {3,102) 40,036,735
$43,900,560 § 2,444,435 3 (2,092,243)  §44,252.752
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Business-type Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in process

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Utility plant in service
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, machinery, and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Utility plant in service
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, machinery, and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Component Units:

Tullahoma Municipal Airport Authority:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in process

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Fumiture, machinery, and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, machinery, and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Component unit capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1,2013 Increase Pecrease June 30, 2014
$ 476,080 8 - 5 - 3 476,080
4,635,432 6,177,522 (2,335,885) 8,477,069
5,111,512 6,177,522 (2,335,885) 8,953,149
63,863,463 1,251,955 (238,177) 64,857,241
15,540,651 861,484 - 16,402,135
5,182,870 272478 (1,012) 5,454,336
84,586,984 2,385,917 (259,189) 86,713,712
(29,223,943) (2,627,700 239,062 (31,612,581)
(10,583,454) {402,069} (936) (10,986,459)
(3,678,449 (369,271} 1,012 (4,046,708)
(43,485,846) (3,399,040) 239,138 (46,645,748)
41,101,138 (1,013,123) (20,031} 40,067 964
546,212,650 § 5,164,399 § (2,355,936 $49,021,113

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Increase Decrease June 30, 2014
3 1,738,799 3 - b - $ 1,738,799
676,334 21,136 (142,839) 654,631
2,415,133 21,136 (142,839 2,393,430
9,821,455 142,839 9,964,294
462,433 6 - 462,439
10,283,888 142,845 - 10,426,733
{2,566,332) (407,251) - {2.973,383)
(359,404) (18,887) - (378,291)
(2,925,736) (426,138) - {3,351,874)
7,358,152 (283,293) - 7,074,839
F 9,773,285 3 (162,157) % (142,839) § 9,468,289
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
B. Depreciation

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Primary Government:

Governmental activities:

General government § 745333
Public works 1,107,565
Education 1,080,293
Food Service 11,350

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities § 2,944,541

Business-type activities:
Tullahoma Utilities Board $ 3,399,040

Component Units:
Business-type activities:
Tullahoma Municipal Airport Authority § 426,138

Interest expense and amounts charged to construction in progress for the year ended June 30, 2014 were as
follows:

Total Capitalized Expensed
Interest Interest Interest
Primarvy Government:
Business-type activities:
Tullahoma Utilities Board $ 761,671 h 49,496 711,575
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NOTE 6 - BONDS, NOTES, AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. Transaction Summary

JUNE 30, 2014

Bonds, notes, and other obligations activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

General Oblieation Bonds

General Public Improvement and Refunding Bonds,
Series 2005

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Serics 2006

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2009

TMBF City Note, Series 2008

TMBF 12M School Note, Series 2008

General Obligation School Bonds, Series 2010

General Obligation School Refunding Bonds, Series 2012

Bond premium

Total General Obligation Bonds

Capital Outlay Notes Payable
Capital Quttay Note, Series 2007

Capital Outlay Note, Series 2013
Local Government l.oan Program, Series 2013#
Capital Outlay Note, Series 2014

Total Capital Outlay Notes Payable

Other Obligations Pavable

Net OPEB linbility - City employees
Met OPEB liability - School employees
Net pension obligation (TCSDBP)
Compensated absences

Total Other Obligations Payable

Total Governmental Activities Long-term Liabilities

Balance Balance Due Within
July [, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014 One Year

$ 6,610,000 3 < §  (640,000) $ 5,570,000 675,000
0,180,000 - (30,000} 9,150,000 30,000
[.850,000 - (755,000) 1,095,000 780,000
1,069,000 - (32,000 977,000 34,000
11,175,000 - (331,000) 10,844,000 346,000
4,550,000 - (100,000) 4,450,000 100,000
4,709,000 - (275,000) 4,425,000 325,000
39,074,000 - (2,163,000) 36,911,000 2,250,000
334,179 {46,032) 288,147 -
39,408,179 - (2,209,032) 37,199,147 2,290,000
380,000 - (89,000) 291,000 93,000
- 890,115 - 890,115 60,115
- 197,840 - 197,840 -
“ 630,000 - 650,000 83,000
380,000 1,737,955 (89.000) 2,028,955 238,113
419,759 103,205 - 514,964 -
251,035 199,205 - 430,330 -
1,153,871 - (60,359) 1,095,512 -
1,234,456 - (86,783) 1,147,673 45,000
3,061,121 304,500 (147,142} 3,218,479 43,000
5 42849300 § 2042455 0§ (2445,174) § 42,446,581 2,373,115

*This is a construction loan and terms of the loan will be finalized when construction is complete.
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Business-type Activities:

Bonds Payable

Broadband Network Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2007

Water and Waste Water Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 1997

Less: bond discount

Total Bonds Payable

MNotes Pavable
Electric System;
Revenue and Tax Capiial Qutlay Notes, Series 2011
Total Notes Payable - Electric System
Water System:
TML Loan 1999
Revenue and Tax Capital Qutlay Notes, Series 2041

Total Notes Payable - Water System

Waste Water System:
Loan Fund 319-02, Series 2003
Loan Fund 319-03, Series 2003
State Revalving Lean Fund, 93-033
State Revolving Loan Fund, 94-077
Revenue and Tax Capitat Outlay Noies, Series 2011
State Revolving Fund Loan**

Total Notes Payable - Waste Waler System

Other Obligations Payahle

Compensated absences

Total Other Obligations Payable

Total Business-type Activities Long-term Liabilities

* As restated.

JUNE 30, 2014

Balance Balance Due Within
Haly 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30,2014 One Year

5 15,545,000 - §  (760,000) § 14,785,000 § 790,000
255,000 - {(45,000) 210,000 50,000
(59,767) * 4,374 - (55,393) -
15,740,233 4,374 {805,000) 14,939,607 840,000
1,369,000 - (1,369,000 - -
1,369,000 - (1,369,000) - -
2,278,000 - (293,000) 1,985,000 303,000
821,000 - (82,000) 739,000 84,000
3,099,000 - {375,000) 2,724,000 387,000
17,226 - {9,774) 7,432 7,452
28,547 - (28,547 - -
1,662,100 - (479,364) 582,736 497904
711,79 - (193,872) 517,837 301,312
639,000 - (63,000) 576,000 65,000
546,246 2,749.431 - 3,295,677 -
3,004,828 2,749 431 (774,557 4,979,702 771,668
364,670 22,780 - 387,450 -
364,670 22,780 - 387,450 -
B 23,577,731 2,776,585 & (3,323,557) % 23,030,759 $ 1,998,668

** This is a construction loan and terms of the loan will be finalized when construction is complete.
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JUNE 30,2014

NOTE 6 - BONDS, NOTES, AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Component Units:

UDAG Note Payable (11-05-03)

UDAG Note Payable (0F-04-12)

UDAG Note Payable (08-05-13)

UDAG Note Payable (03-14-14)
Total Notes Payable

Other Obligations Pavable

Cempensated absences

Total Other Obligations Payable

Total Component Units Long-term Liabilitics

* As restated.

B. Annual Debt Service Requirements

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014 One Year

3 190,381 - % {39,405) % 130,976 § 28,892
3,184 - (1,056) 2,128 981
- 25,000 (2,004) 22,596 2,409
- 23,000 (1,122) 21,878 4,520
193,565 48,000 {43,587) 197,978 36,802
10,856 * 5,911 - 16,767 -
10,856 5,911 - 16,767 -
3 204,421 53911 % (43,587} § 214,745 % 131,802

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation bonds, notes, and revenue bonds outstanding as of

June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds

Notes Payable*

Total Governmenial Funds

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
June 30,

2015 § 2,290,000 § 1,381,318 3 238,115 30,509 & 2,328,115 % 1,431,827
2016 2,336,000 1,300,707 251,000 44,608 2,587,000 1,345,315
2017 2,394,000 1,220,185 259,000 36,514 2,633,000 1,236,699
2018 2,502,000 1,139,432 162,000 28,141 2,664,000 1,187,573
2019 2,367,000 1,077,754 166,000 23,989 2,733,000 1,101,743
2020-2024 11,492,000 4,043,140 584,000 60,786 12,076,000 4,103,926
2025-2029 7,317,000 2,022,035 171,600 3,055 7,688,000 2,027,090
2030-2034 5,813,000 694,841 - - 5,813,000 694,841
36,911,000 12,899,412 1,831,115 249,602 38,742,115 13,145,014
Bond premium 288,147 - - - 288,147 -
§ 37,199,147 % 12899412 § 1,831,115 249,602  § 39,030,262 § 13,149,014

* Since the terms of Local Government Loan Program, series 2013 have not been finalized, it is not included in
the schedule above. The amount excluded is $197,840.
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NOTE 6 - BONDS, NOTES, AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Business-type Activities:

Revenue Bonds Notes Payable * Total Proprietary Funds
Principal . Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
June 30,
2015 b 340,000 % 624993 % 1,158.668 % 125564 % 1998668 § 750,557
016 875,000 588,912 760,863 91,394 1,635,863 680,306
2017 915,000 550,218 589,494 68,998 1,504,494 619,216
2018 955,000 509,794 458,000 54,918 1,453,000 364,712
2019 533,000 469,872 514,000 40,366 1,449,000 510,238
2020-2024 3,315,000 1,716,357 887,000 40,140 6,202,000 1,756,497
2023-2029 5,160,000 463,969 - - 5,160,000 403,969

$ 14995000 5 4924115 5 4,408,025 % 421,380 & 19,403,025 $§ 3,345,495

* Since the terms of State Revolving Fund Loan have not been finalized, it is not included in the schedule
above. The amount excluded is $3,295,677.

Component Units:

Noles Payable

Principal Interest
June 30,

2015 § 36,802 § 1,543
2016 37,098 1,247
2017 36,554 949
2018 36,688 638
2019 35,804 364
2020-2024 15,032 251
197978 % 5,012

C. Other Debt Information

Primarv Government;

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds and Capital Qutlay notes of the Primary Government are secured by the City, which
is obligated to levy taxes to the extent necessary to serve this debt.

Notes payable by the Tullahoma Utilities Beard to the State of Tennessee includes debt assumed by the Duck
River Utility Commission. The balance of the debt assumed by the Duck River Utility Commission and
included in notes payable and notes receivable is $632,453 as of June 30,2014,

The City is secondarily liable for the revenue bonds of the Tullahoma Utilities Board. The primary sources of
repayment for the bonds are the board’s operating revenues.

Compensated absences and net other postemployment benefit obligation are liquidated in the various funds in
which the corresponding salary expenditures are paid, primarily the General Fund and General Purpose School
Fund. Net pension obligation will primarily be liquidated by the school funds incurring the related employees’
compensation, primarily the General Purpose Schoo] Fund.
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NOTE 6 - BONDS, NOTES, AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS (continued)
C. Other Debt Information (Continued)
Business-type Activities:
Revenue bond covenants of the Proprietary Fund generally provide that the related bonds are primarily secured
by net revenues of the system. Bond covenants relating to the issues require the establishment of various
reserve funds for payment of principal and interest, and for renewal and replacement. These reserves have

been satisfactorily maintained during 2014.

Component Units:

The Authority’s UDAG Loan (11-1-05) has a variable rate, determined each November 1 at four percentage
points below prime with a .75% floor. The interest rate at June 30, 2014 was 0.75%. Future principal and
interest payments have been calculated using this rate,

D. Issuance of Notes

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

In September 2013, the City issued School Repair Capital Outlay Notes, Series 2013, in the principal amount
of $890,115. The notes were issued to finance certain public works projects, consisting of the cost of a partial
re-roof at Tullahoma High School for 12 years with interest rate of 2.93%.

In December 2013, the City entered into an agreement with City of Clarksville, Tennessee to secure loan for
the purpose of financing reconstruction of the swimming pool and water park project. The total project is
$2,400,000 with interest rate of 3.00% over 25 years. Funds received in the year ended June 30, 2014 totaled
$197,840.

In May 2014, the City issued Equipment Acquisition Capital Outlay Notes, Series 2014, in the principal
amount of $650,000. The notes were issued to finance certain public works projects, consisting of the
acquisition of garbage and fire trucks for 7 years with interest rate of 2.26%.

Business-type Activities:

In March 2012, the Revolving Fund Loan agreement with the City of Tullahoma was approved by the
Tennessee Local Development Authority for a total project of $5,000,000. This loan is funded by $4,000,000
State Revolving Fund Base and §$1,000,000 Principal Forgiveness, The interest rate is 1.15%. Funds received
in the year ended June 30, 2014 totaled $3,026,556 of which $605,311 represented principal forgiveness. The
amount of principal forgiveness is treated as contributed capital in the financial statements.

Component Hnits:

In August 2013, the Authority signed $25,000 UDAG Loan (8-15-13) payable to the City of Tullahoma over a
10 year period to provide resources for a construction project with interest at the rate of 1%, per annum,
payable on unpaid balance, for the first year of this obligation, until September 15, 2014, and upon that date
each annual anniversary date thereafter during the life of this loan, interest shall be adjusted to be 4% below
prime rate, but not less than 1%,
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NOTE 6 - BONDS, NOTES, AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS (continued)

D. Issuance of Notes (Continued)

In March 2014, the Authority signed $23,000 UDAG Loan (3-14-14) payable to the City of Tullahoma to
provide resources for a construction project with interest at the rate of 1%, per annum, payable on unpaid
balance, for the first year of this obligation, until April 14, 2014, and upon that date each annual anniversary

date thereafter during the life of this loan, interest shall be adjusted to be 4% below prime rate, but not less
than 1%,

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

A. City Plan

The City offers all employees of the governmental activities (exclusive of employees of the Tullahoma City
Schools) a defined contribution plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457B.
Participation in the plan is optional for full-time employees with one year of service. The contribution rate for
the City shall be set by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen during the budget process. Employees can
contribute additional funds to the plan through an elective deferred compensation arrangement up to the
Section 457 limits. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement,
death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan assets are held in a qualifying trust for the benefit of each
participant. A third-party provider, ICMA-RC, administers the plan and trust. The plan assets are not subject
to the claims of the City’s general creditors and are not considered assets of the City. The City is required to
contribute 5% of full-time qualified employees’ eamnable compensation. For the year ended June 30, 2014, the
City contributions to the plan totaled $213,954 and employee contributions were $245,817.

B. Tullahoma Board of Education

The Tullahoma Board of Education (1) maintains a single-employer defined benefit pension plan, the
Tullahoma City Schools Defined Benefit Plan (TCSDBP) which covers employees other than teachers, as
defined by state statute, and (2} participates in the statewide Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
(TCRS), a multiple-employer, public employer pension plan which covers all of the teachers, as defined by
state statute, of the Board. The General Purpose School Fund has been used to liquidate the net pension
obligation in prior years.

(1) Tullahoma City Schools Defined Benefit Plan (TCSDBP) Plan Description:

All of the Tullahoma City Schools’ {the City Schools) employees, except teachers, participate in the Tullahoma
City Schools Defined Benefit Plan (TCSDBP) defined benefit pension plan.

Plan assets are invested in annuity contracts with the Principal Financial Group. Separate financial statements
of the single-employee pension trust have not been presented as part of these financial statements. That repoit
may be obtained by writing to the Principal Financial Group, 711 West High, Des Moines, IA 50392.

Participants must complete 1,000 hours of service and be at least age 18 to be eligible to join the plan.
Normal retirement occurs upon reaching age 65 and completing one year of service. Monthly benefits are
equal to 2.3% of average compensation times accrual service. Average compensation is the average of

monthly compensation for the 60 highest consecutive compensation dates. In accordance with federal
regulations, participants are always fully vested upon reaching their normal retirement date.
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

Early retirement is available upon reaching age 55 and completing 5 years of vesting service (measured by plan
participation). Monthly benefits are calculated using the accrued benefit on retirement date and an actuarially
determined reduction factor. ‘

Death benefits are available to participants that are fully or partially vested in an accrued benefit. For a
participant age 55 or older, the single-sum death benefit will be equal to the present value of his vested accrued
benefit but not less than his required contribution account, If a participant dies prior to age 55, the single-sum
death benefit will be equal to his required contribution account. Required contribution accrued benefit is
defined as the amount of a participants required contribution account converted to a monthly straight life
benefit using UP-1984 mortality without age setback and interest of 5%. Required contribution account is
defined as a participant’s required contributions with 5% interest per annum compounded annually.

The amount of disability benefits is defined as a monthly pension payable at normal retirement equal to the

participant’s accrued monthly pension. A participant must have completed 10 years of service at the date of
disability in order to be eligible for disability benefits.

Any employee who terminates after completion of at least 5 years of service and before eligibility for normal
retirement or early retirement shall be entitled to the normal retirement benefit, multiplied by the vesting
percentage, with income deferred until normal retirement age. A year of vesting shall be credited for each year
during which the employee is credited with 1,000 hours of service.

Participants are required to contribute 3% of total annual compensation to the TCSDBP. The City Schools is
required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the TCSDBP. The contribution requirement of
plan members and the City Schools are established and may be amended by the Board of Trustees.

a. Selected Pension Information

Additional information regarding annual pension cost and net pension obligation, trend information, and
participant information for the plan is summarized on the following schedules on pages B-42 and B-43.

b. Required Supplementary Information

As of January 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 52.49% funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $7,897,831, and the actuarial value of assets was $4,145,485, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $3,752,346. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active

employees covered by the plan) was $2,528,843, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
148.38%.

A Schedule of Funding Progress (Unaudited) and a Schedule of Employer Contributions (Unaudited) are
included as Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the financial statemenis on page B-53.

Unfunded
AAL asa
Actuarial Overfunded Percentage of
Actuarial Actuarial Value Accrued {Underfunded) Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Date of Assels Liability (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Janvary 71,2013 § 4,392,881 § 8414176 b 4,021,295 52.21% 5 2,692,387 149.36%
January 1,2014  § 4,145,485 £ 7,897,831 N 3,752,346 5249%  § 2,528,843 148.38%
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ANNUAL PENSION COST AND NET PENSION

OBLIGATION - JUNE 30,2014 TCSDBP
Anmnual required contribution $ 623,461
Interest on net pension obligation 78,021
Adjustment 1o annual required contribuiion (50,819
Annual pension cost 610,663
Contributions made 671,022
Incrense (decrease) in net pension obligation (60,359)
Net pension obligation beginning of plan year 1,155,871
Net pension obligation end of plan year 3 1,095,512

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of December 31, 2013
actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cast method.

THREE YEAR TREND INFORMATION

2014
Annual pension cost (APC) 3 610,663
Perceniage of APC contributed 109.88%
Net pension obligation 3 1,095,512
2013
Annual pension cost (APC) b 574,946
Percentage of APC contributed 90.41%
Net pension obligation hi 1,155,871
20312
Annual pension cost (APC) b 568,340
Percentage of APC contributed 13.51%
Net pension obligation 3 1,100,744
PARTICIPANTS
Aclive:
Fully vested 96
Non-vested and partially vested 28
Total active 124
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 10

Total 134
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TCSDBP
ACTUARIAL VALUATION
Valuation date January 1, 2014
Actuarial cost method Entry age
normatl
Amortization method Level dollar
open
Amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Market
Actuarial assumptions:
Valuation interest:
Preretirement 6.75%
Postretirement 6.75%
Projected salary increases 3.00%
Interest rate for employee accumulations 5.00%
Retirement age 65
Disability none
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

(2) Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS) Plan Description and Provisions

The Tullahoma City Schools contribute to the State Employees, Teachers, and Higher Education Employees
Pension Plan (SETHEEPP), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. Benefits are determined by a formula using the
member’s high five-year average salary and vears of service. Members become eligible to retire at age 60 with
five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is avaiiable o vested
members who are at least 55 years of age or have 25 years of service, Disability benefits are available to active
members with five years of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no
service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury while the member was in the
performance of duty. Members joining the plan on or after July 1, 1979 are vested after five vears of service.
Members joining prior to July 1, 1979 are vested after four years of service. Benefit provisions are established in
the state statute found in Title 8, Chapters 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are
amended by the Tennessee General Assembly. Cost of living adjustments (COLA) are provided to retirees each
July based on the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (CPY) during the previous calendar year. No
COLA is granted if the CPI increases less than 0.5%. The annual COLA is capped at 3%.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the SETHEEPP. That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee Treasury
Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10" Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, Tennessee 37243-
0230 or can be accessed at www.treasury.state.tn.us.

Most teachers are required by state statute to contribute 5% of salary to the plan. The employer contribution rate
for Tullahoma City Schools is established at an actuarially determined rate. The employer rate for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2014 is 8.88% of annual covered payroll. The employer contribution requirement for Tullahoma
City Schools is established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees. The employer’s contribution to
TCRS for the years ending June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were §1 234,163, $1,257,238, and $1,230,152
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Business-type Activities:

The Tullahoma Utilities Board has a defined contribution plan “Tullahoma Utilities Board Employees’ Pension
Trust” covering all of its eligible employees. The Board is the plan's administrator, The Board has the rightto
amend or terminate the plan at any time. This plan includes all full-time employees that have attained age 21,
and have worked 1,000 hours in a twelve-month period to be eligible on July 1 of that plan year. The
employer's costs are determined by the individual level premium cost method using a 6% interest assumption.
The financial information for the year ended June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Target plan Money Purchase plan

Employee contribution $ 102,941 $ 161,789
Employer contribution 320,011 322,922
Total plan assets as of June 30, 2014 6,117,489 3,135,350

Employee contributions to the plan are required annually in accordance with the plan document. Participating
employees must contribute a minimum of 5% of their compensation not to exceed 50% of the total required
contribution.

The payroll for employees covered under the plan for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $3,998,458. Total
payroll was $4,368,162.
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NOTE 8 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

A, City Plan

Plan Degcription

The City’s current single-employer defined benefit post employment healthcare plan only provides health
insurance benefits, under a fully insured health plan, to eligible retired City employees and their beneficiaries.
There are currently only 7 employees that receive post employment benefits. Benefits for the year ended June
30, 2014 totaled $49,091. The City currently funds the benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. The benefits of post
employment abligations will be reviewed by the City in the future allowing for any improvements or changes
to the present plan. The report may be obtained by contacting the finance director for the City.

Funding Policy
The City intends to continue its policy of funding OPEB Liabilities on a pay-as-you-go basis and to not pre-fund
any unfunded annual required contribution as determined under GASB 45, The General Fund has been used to

liquidate the OPEB obligation in prior years.

Annual OPER Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual other post employment benefit (OPER) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities or fundin £ eXcess over
a period of not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation.

Components of the Net OPEB Obligation

Annual required contribution F 154,206
Interest on net OPEB abligation -
Amortization of prior year net OPEB obligation -

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 154,296
Contributions made {49,091

Increase in net OPEB obligation 3 105,205
Net OPEB obligation - July 1, 2013 $ 419,759
Net OPEB obligation - June 30, 2014 3 324,964
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NOTE 8 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPER
obligation for 2009-2014 is as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2009 § 111,573 50.45% § 55279
6/30/2010 112,087 61.91% 97,973
6/30/2011 141,633 37.07% 187,101
6/30/2012 143,108 19.97% 301,626
6/30/2013 149,755 21.12% 419,759
6/30/2014 154,296 31.82% 524,564

Funded Status and Funding Prosress

As of July 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded. The actuarial accrued
liability for benefits was $1,528,759, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued Hability (UAAL) of $1,528,759. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $5,882,211 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 25.99%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healtheare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with the past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and the plan members) and include the type of benefits provided at the time of each valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing the benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-

term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used, The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.5% investment rate of return (1.50% real rate of return plus 3% inflation), net of
administrative expenses. This assumption is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on
plan assets and on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan assets at
the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8% initially, reduced by the decrements to an
ultimate ratio of 5% after 5 years. The actuarial value of assets was determined using a standard balanced
portfolio expectation for retirement of plan asset returns. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage
of payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2014 was 24 years.

B-46



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)
B. Tullahoma Board of Education

Certified employees of Tullahoma City Schools belon ging to the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System,
who have a minimum of ten years of experience with the City Schools in a certified position, who retire with at
least 30 years of creditable service, or who retire having reached the age of 60 years with a minimum of ten
years of creditable service prior to the beginning of the next contract year, may elect to continue in the City
Schools’ medical, dental, and life insurance programs. The ten year minimum employment for certified
employees will be waived for certified staff employed prior to the 1999-2000 school year. Non-certified
employees of the City Schools who are age 62 with at least 25 years of service in the City Schools, and who
meet requirements of the insurance companies for continnation of coverage, may elect to continue in the City
Schools® medical, dental, and life insurance programs. The City Schools will assume the cost of the benefit
until age 65 or until covered by Medicare or Medicaid if under the age of 65,

The retiring employees may have the same options for the insurance package as current employees, and the
City Schools will assume the same percentage of costs for the package as for the current employees. The City
Schools currently pays 100% of premiums, For the year ended June 30, 2014, the City Schools paid medical
insurance benefits for 40 eligible retirees totaling $226,808, dental for 40 eligible retirees totaling $16,570,
vision and life insurance benefits for 19 and 40 eligible retirees totaling $441 and $4,864, respectively. The
General Purpose School Fund has been used to liquidate the OPER obligation in prior years.

Non-certified employees of Tullahoma City Schools who are age 60 with at least 25 years of service in
Tullahoma City Schools, and who meet requirements of the insurance companies for continuation of coverage,
may elect to continue in the Tullahoma City Schools medical, dental, and life insurance programs. Tullahoma
City Schools will assume the cost of the benefit until age 65 or until covered by Medicare or Medicaid if under
the age of 65. The retiring employee may have the same options for the insurance package, and the City
Schools will assume the same percentape of costs for the package as for the current employees. A written

agreement delineating the conditions will be required between the retiring employee and Tullahoma City
Schools.

Information concerning the plan follows:
Components of the Net OPEB Obligation:

Annual required contribution 3 447,978
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Amortization of prior year net OPEB obligation -

Annual OPEB cost 447,978
Contributions made (248,683)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 5 199295
Net OPEB obligation - July 1, 2013 $ 251,035
Net OPEB obligation - June 30, 2014 ¥ 450,330
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NOTE 8 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

The Tullahoma City Schools’® annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for 2011-2014 is as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2011 § 11,143 56.28% § 4872
6/30/2012 11,143 51.58% 10,268
6/30/2013 447,823 46.24% 251,035
6/30/2014 447978 55.52% 450,330

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was (% funded. The actuarial accrued
liability for benefits was $3,692,831, and the actuarial value of assets was 30, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $3,692,831. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $17,400,000 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 21.22%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with the past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is icreasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and the plan members) and include the type of benefits provided at the time of each valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing the benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.5% investment rate of return (1.50% real rate of return plus 3% inflation), net of
administrative expenses. This assumption is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on
plan assets and on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan assets at
the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8% initially, reduced by the decrements to an
ultimate ratio of 5% after 5 years. The actuarial value of assets was determined using a standard balanced
portfolio expectation for retirement of plan asset returns. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage
of payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2014 was 26 years,
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NOTE 8 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

Business-type Activities:

The Tullahoma Utilities Board does not provide any post-retirement benefits. As part of the retirement benefits
the Board adopted a plan in the current year whereas the employee receives 25% of their accumulated sick
leave with the amount being paid into their pension fund. In addition those employees that have 10 years or
more service and retire between age 62 and 65 receive the amount equal to the “employee only”™ monthly health
insurance premium for every whole month of early retirement separation prior to reaching age 65. No early
retirement separation will be paid to employees who retire prior to age 62.

NOTE 9 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Federal and State Financial Assistance

The City has received federal and state financial assistance for specific purposes that is subject to review and
audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of
the programs, the City believes that any required reimbursements would not be material to the basic financial
and individual fund and component unit financial statements. Accordingly, no provision has been made for
any potential reimbursements to the grantor agencies.

B. Other Commitments

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

The City generally follows the practice of recording liabilities from claims and legal actions only when it is
probable that both (1) an asset has been impaired and a liability has been incurred and (2) the amount of loss
can be reasonably estimated. Settlement of all potential claims from various lawsuits in which the City is
involved would not, in management’s estimation, materially affect the financial statements of the City.

Business-type Activities:

In conjunction with the Tennessee Valley Authority, the Electric System makes loans to individuals wishing to
make their homes more energy efficient. The Electric System is required to use the funds, including
repayments, in making further loans, or to reduce the advances to the Electric System by TVA.

At June 30, 2014, Tullahoma Utilities Board had several construction projects in process. The Board takes
bids for these projects and awards construction contracts to various companies.

The Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Board purchases commercial insurance

for claims and for all other risks of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years.

Component Unit:

The Tullahoma Municipal Airport Authority has received federal and state financial assistance for specific
purposes that is subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate
expenditure disallowance under terms of the programs, management believes that any required reimbursements
would not be material to the financial statements. Accordingly, no provision has been made for any potential
reimbursements to the grantor agencies.

The Authority also has several construction projects in progress partially funded by grants.
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NOTE 10 - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

As mentioned in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The provisions of this statement require that bond issuance costs
be expensed in the year they are incurred. Previously, bond issvance costs had been treated as an asset and
amortized over the life of the related debt. In order to implement GASB Statement No. 65 , bond issuance costs
previously reported as assets had to be removed from the financial statements. The result of implementation
was a direct adjustment to net position, in the amount of $348,006 in the governmental activities and $112,275
in business-type activities.

In addition, adjustment to prior period financial statements were made to correct errors discovered during the
audit.

The aggregate impact of these adjustments is shown on the face of the financial statements. Details of the
adjustments are as follows:

Government-wide Buisness-type ~ Component

Activities Activities Units
Net position, beginning,
as previously presented $ 18,373,836 $ 42,516,871 $9,914,039
Change in accounting principle (GASB 65) (348,006) (112,275) -
Prior period adjustments (28,366) - (72,185)
Net position, beginning, as restated 5 17,997 464 $ 42,804,596 59,842 754

NOTE 11 - NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27. The objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by
state and local governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by state and local governmental
employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This statement results from the
comprehenstve review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for
pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. The requirements of this statement are effective for
financial periods beginning after June 15, 2014,

The GASR has issued Statement No. 69, Govermment Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations.
This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for mergers, acquisitions, and transfers
of operations (i.e., government combinations). The statement also provides guidance on how to determine the
gain or loss on a disposal of government operations. This statement applies to all state and local governmental
entities, The requirements of this statement should be applied prospectively and are effective for government
combinations and disposals of government operations occurring in financial reporting periods beginning after
December 135, 2013. However, earlier application of the statement is encouraged.
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NOTE 11 - NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued)

The GASB has issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees. This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for situations where a state
or local government, as a guarantor, agrees to indemnify a third-party obligation holder under specified
conditions (i.e., nonexchange financial guarantees). The issuer of the guaranteed obligation can be a legally
separate entity or individual, including a blended or discretely presented component unit. Guidance is provided
for situations where a state or local government extends or receives a nonexchange financial puarantee, The

requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June
15, 2013.

NOTE 12 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers are used (1) to move revenue from the Education Debt Service Fund to the Debt Service Fund as
debt service principal and interest payments become due, (2) to move amounts from borrowing from Capital
Project Funds to the General Purpose Schoo! Fund as required, (3) to move unresiricted revenues from the
General Fund to other funds for various programs that the City must account for in other funds in accordance
with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant
programs, (4) for payment in lieu of taxes from the Electric System to the General Fund.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SELECTED PENSION INFORMATION

Unaudited - See Accompanying Accountants' Report

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - City of Tullahoma Other Post Employment Retirement Benefits

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL asa
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Coverad Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b)-(a) (ab) (c) ({b-a)/c)
12/31/08 b - $ 1,453,099 i) 1,453,099 0% ¥ 4,657,403 31.20%
07/01110 - 1,353,250 1,353,250 0% 5,150,789 26.27%
07/01/12 - 1,528,759 1,528,759 0% 5,882,211 25.99%
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - City of Tullahoma Other Post Employment Retirement Benefits
Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage
December 31, Contribution Contributed OPEB Obligation
2009 § 111,573 50.45% 5 55,279
2010 111,904 61.91% 97,973
2011 143,108 37.07% 187,101
2012 143,108 19.97% 301,626
2013 154,296 21.12% 419,759
2014 154,296 31.82% 524,964
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - Tullahoma Board of Education Other Post Employment Retirement Benefits
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded TUAALasa
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) {(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b)-{a) (ab) (c) {(b-a)c)
07/01/10 3 - 5 3,845,307 $ 3,845,307 0% 3 20,000,000 19.23%
07/01/12 - 3,692,831 3,692,831 0% 17,400,000 21.22%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - Tullahoma Board of Education Other Post Employment Retirement Benefits

Annual
Fiscal Year Required Percentage
Ended Contribution Contributed OPERB Obligation
06/30/11 b F1,143 56.28% 5 4,872
06/30/12 11,143 51.58% 10,268
06/30/13 447,978 46.24% 251,035
86/30/14 447,978 55.52% 450,330






-2

edal siupjunogae Suifueduiooe sag

EPaTLY L g 156C §  LIT'STE § GETSPET §  skEeGl  §  CTISLILY 5§ 5E0°06 5 96L18C [T §  bErres T E5E0EL § §39ue[l pury pue sadndsal
JO SMOYUL pauagep ‘sapfIqey [eio g
L656LY'S [{CK3 187768 TOL'LE8'T 566Dl LE1EkS SE( 06 156'FTT 9£4'88 PEF FOE T9£'0E 1 sasue|Lq pury [Ejo ]
@hﬁ.m - - - - - - @hm.m - - - mUuﬂ:._.—ﬁ_E.zu:m
04 paIWIEo
@mv.wm - - - - - - - Omv.mﬁ - - _DD_._um _.»u_.v:U_Kmﬂ
SLTFIT - - - - - - sLT'pIT - - - aIsem pleg
sehEeL . - - - - - - - FEE'EES - suonade joolag
FIIpRL - - - S65°011 Lst'Ebs - - - - Toe'nel syaafosd jrun
mmc.oa - - - - - mmo.om - - - - :._u_;:uu:_u.u:u mm_n_ﬁ_
598'6¢8 r19't 157 2c8 - M - - - - - - sjuawaaoldun jende)
TOLLER'T - - TOL'LER'T - - - - - - - FUALDS 347}
9] pa1awmsay
008l - - - - - - 008'1 - - - sway: puedasg
3pgrpuadsuop
SHINVIVH (NN
256°15T'1 - . - 05768 20€'891'1 - - - - - 320532 JO SMOJU) PALISJIP [RiC]
s’ L8T[ - - - 05T'68 80€°891'1 - - - - = SURO| - ANIBAS J[qE[IRARUS
SHMUMNOSTY 40 SMOTINT nRNA4ad
489°5EL EVE 9L6'L9 LLb'L - Ly - SHE'6S - - 000°00% SanqE) 10,
LLY'LOB - - [ - - - - - - 000°009 Spusy 1ayio o) akg
6Z6'601 343 9L6'L9 - - L - €967k - - N ajgeded sjunoaay
- - - - . - - - - - - J1oafed paruaay
8T8l 5 - 5 - 5 - £ - 5 - £ - § 8781 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 Saluiquy patuazy
BALLIMEYI
EPETLYL [ LE6'T §  LZTSCa $ 6EZTPRT 5 gyge6l S TISTIILI S  5E0°06 S 96L 8T £ oE'sR §  PEPPOS $ I9coeL § ssse [elo],
005 L - - - - - - 2051 = - z sasuadxa predar |
a0E'9 - - - - - - - - - £07°9 S19SsE 3210
9L0°551 - - 9L0'5S | - - - - - - - SPUIY LU0 W) st
650°09€E"( - LEL'ETE - - - - ThO' L - 950°erl pLI'EEL SiuaWWRACH 19110 way) angy
BESLSE - - - 05248 ]0€°891°1 - - - - - 2{quAladal 53101
n_.mm - - -..mm - - - B - - - D_ﬁ—n>_uuuh _mUnuw:m _.\,.U_Cuu{
(gge'vl) - - - - - - {reecl) (1zoD - - SHNUIIT HIFIGIOP 10f JITAOYY
£59'Sy - - - - - . LLELE 9978 - - saqzAlanay]
961"099 ) L56°T §  0sK'log § 9076897 §  S6S'GI1 § bOZ'ERS §  GEQDG 4 [IT°L81 3 16178 §  8otIsP ¥ 6Le ) stuafuanba ysea e ysu)
‘SLASEY
Spun g §109001] s19al01] EEITNETS SUDD] Dvan [IENERIGHRTE] Sy ol g EENE EIEE N}
[BIH3URLIaA0D [e13pa] ey 92 Junjoaay drug Jsem plog |0oidg pao Jootay a)e)g pue [BIapa
solew-uap 1o uoneanps] vasn papuajxy falalilel~d
Spun 4 sj2aloig] [edesy spun,j Spun.j antpANy [e1oadg
ALG 1gS(]
FLOT *0€ ANNE

SANMLL TVINTWNYIAOCD HOTVIN-NON
LITHS AONVTYH ONINIFHINOD
HIASSANNIL ‘VIWROHVTINL 40 ALID



D

‘wedar sjuejunosoe Fur{ueduwrosoe aag

LEE6LES [ I 15T°L68 3 E9LLE8T 5 ges0ll 3 LEIUErS 5 GL0'06 5 IS6¥CL §  DOEF'RE 5 PEFRSS 5 E9L0El 5 FIOT "0L swir "aauLjug pun
9B1'8YR" - BL6'TLE SPO'TOF'T 666'LL ThO'PLE 000°86 192'002 F05' ko1 901 E68 £56°PL PaICIS3L SB gL QT ' A[Nf ‘$asumf) punj
{86L'5k) - - - - N E - - - [CTARAD] (g1 210 aag) suaunsnipe pousd sorg
98T'PEG'F - BLG'TLG SEOZEET GE6'LL ThOHLE 0co's6 192°00L v05°F01 501°E6F [5£'021 pawasard Agneward se 'gog ‘| Ap soueieg pung
601°168 rI9'E (Lee'sti) LIT'SHE 965'TE Si1'691 (s96°1) 069'¥T (890'91) 87E'101 GOF'SS saoutqey puny w adue 1ap]
FT6'B0EE 009°'S BEREO0T {£5579¢) - 000°09 - 6E8'907'1 - - £07'65 saaunos Juousup 1apo o,
(619°S51°E) - [T (b0SS0ET - - - - - - - Ine sigjsuet)
8B5'0TLE 009's 866°SLT GRG'8LI'E - 000'09 - GER'G0T'L - - ToL'ss ur siajsuesy
$S6'LEL'E - sea'Les’t - - - - - - - - AIUENSS] A0
(SESM) SAJUNOS DHIINYMLY YTHLO
(c1a'LiL'n) {o86'c (sog'at 1) TLO'1LE 965'TE SH1'601 (596'2) (ar1zar’n {890'91) BTE161 (£6e'c) samypuadxa (1apun) 1aa0 sanuaazi {£auaaifop) 55007
166°L8L"8 66611 [T AL - S19°2E LTOE0] £55°0¢ LO6'1T6 1 1Z5°ECL slillat 1L+'869'C saapuadse jmo
00006 - - - 000°CT 000'89 - - - - - PAsMGSIP sure
9L9'L¥1'T 664°1 ¢ 1Z¥'r29'1 - - - £65°E £61'09 - 0HEL 090°5HE Avguo undv )
¥98'951 b - 6I1'bS - glg LTO'SE 658°01 (AL EEN [T5'ETE 6UE'S06T v 51800 wierfes)
€95'1 - - - - - - - - - £96'] uopeyedsue |,
pEl'68 - - - - - - - - - [N Ljus jevonsnnsu;
9Za'sh - - - - - - - - - 9T6'8Y woddng jeapras sopQ
E6E'ESL - - - - - - - - - £6EESL uenesnpa |elaadg
SBE0OF'| - - - - - - - - - SHE'09Y'] uaziEanps Jupnday
moleonps
.,:.Huu.u:,u
STANLIANALXE
9E1DLO'L E106E SL6'800 TLOTLE T1z°ss rliic L85°TL BSLGEL £51°L0E LERIGE RLIV60T SANUIADI {110
955796 00002 LELTE - ¥l ol SL0TC L9Lbi 69L0 - - $30U3ADL IS0
PhLBoE - - - LTI&'ES LIB'PIT - - - - - spuaLdrdas 108
981'El - £61°'C L'y 09l't (6LL'T TES 046 94T LOE'L - FUI00UY UIUNSIAU]
TEG'VEL'] - - - - - - [10'beL BEF'00E RFOIL - 5A01AI35 30§ 98y
61H'956 3 clo'st ShL'TLE  § STIE9E § - 5 - E $ - 3 - S BEYD0ETT & 8L9'FED'T § [esuaunLAOT 2]
SANNAATH
spun, GEEICTE] spalanf ERITETY SUTOT| OYarn TUSUIC]L [IEREESITTY umsEer | [ERITEE HEEIGIE]
juuatiioaan) [29p3d rday 12 Tugaponsy g ASLM pijog Joayag pao. |oayag 210§ PUN [P
fofliw-uop [E10] uoLeanpy vasn papusIxg [eoag
spun J 553707 [enduT) puny spuid anpAy jeaadg

aapAtag 1t

FHOZ '0F INALL QTANT ¥VAA JHL H04
SANNA TYLNTANYIAOD HOIMVIN-NON
SHINVTVI QNN NE SEHONVHD ANV STANLIANAIXT ‘STONIATY 40 INTINRLVLS DNINIGINOD
TASSHANNIL ‘VIWOHVTIAL 40 ALID



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENIMTURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
SCHOOL FEDERAL AND STATE PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budpetary Actual Revenues/ Firal Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budgeled Amounts Positive
Basis) for Encumbrances  (Budgetary Basis) Original Final {MNegative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmenial:
Stade and federal 3 21,694,078 5 - 5 2,694,678 3 2,700 407 § 2,700,674 ] (5,996)
Total revenues 2,694 678 - 2,694 678 2,709,407 2,700,674 (5,996)
EXPENDITURES:
Regular education:
Salaries 1,100,602 - 1,100,602 1,130,958 1,012,437 (88,163)
Payroll toxes 77,027 - 771,027 82 486 90,751 13,724
Benefiis 203,698 - 203,698 210,177 207,403 3,705
Coniract services 10,000 - 10,000 6,363 0.565 (433)
Supplies 36,309 - 36,509 60,295 137,417 80,908
Other 12,559 - 12,559 15,869 15,869 3,310
Total regular education 1,460,395 - 1,460,395 1,506,350 1,473,442 13,047
Special education:
Salaries 523,821 - 513,821 513,401 524,635 814
Payroll taxes 37,090 - 37,090 37,466 37,466 376
Benefits 192,482 - 192,482 185,792 185,792 {6,690
Contract services - - - 5,500 5.500 5,500
Todal special education 753,393 . 753,393 732,159 753,393 -
Other student support:
Contract services 23,237 - 23,237 24,796 24,796 1,359
Travel 9,829 - 9 829 10,586 10,586 737
Other 15,860 - 15,860 22,885 22,883 7.025
Total other student support 48,926 - 48,526 58,267 58,267 9,341
{nstructional staff:
Travel 55,095 - 55,095 39,302 51,752 {3,343)
Maintenance and repairs £,493 - 1,493 3,000 1,518 25
Other 32,546 - 32,546 26,136 35,176 2,630
Total instructional stafl 89,134 - 80,134 68,438 88 446 {6E®)
Transportation
Other 1,563 - 1,563 - - {1,563)
Total transportation 1,363 B 1,563 - - {1,563)
Capital outlay 345,060 - 345,060 324,193 344,393 (467)
Tota} expenditures 2,688 471 - 2,698,471 2,709,407 2,718,141 19,670
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 59,202 - 59,202 - - 59,202
Transfers out - - - - - -
Total other fingncing sources {uses) 59,202 - 55,202 - - 56,202
Net change in fund balance 55,409 - 55,409 - (17 467) 72,876
Fund balance, July 1, 2013 120,751 - 120,751 120,751 120,75 -
Prior period adjustment {(See Note 1) (45,798) - {45,798) - - {45.798)
Fund balance, June 30, 2014 5 130,362 % - $ 130,362 5 120,751 3 103,284 $ 27078

See accompanying accountants' report,
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDPGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAF)
SCHOOL FOOD SERVICES FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budgetary Actuat Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis) for Encumbrances  (Budgetary Basis) Qriginal Final (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:

State and federal 5 1,306,858 % - 5 1,306,858 b 1,185,000 % 1,185,000 % 121,858
Charges for services 710,482 - 710,482 870,000 870,000 (159,518)
Interest income 1,307 - 1,307 5,000 3,000 (3,693}

Total revenues 2,018,647 - 2,018,647 2,060,000 2,060,000 {41,353y
EXFENDITURES:
Current:

Salaries 636,218 - 636,218 655,000 635,000 18,782

Payroll taxes 44,759 - 44,759 50,000 50,000 5,241

Benefits 193,724 - 195,724 223,000 223,000 27,276

Contract services 15,489 - 15,489 10,000 10,000 (5,489)

Maintenance and repairs 7,656 - 7,656 15,000 15,000 7.344

Travel 6,766 - 6,766 3,000 5,000 (1,766)

Supplics 902,433 - 902,433 975,000 975,000 72,567

Other 96,264 - 06,264 94,000 94,000 (2,264}
Capital outlay 12,010 - 12,010 33,000 33,000 20,990

Total expenditures 1,BE7319 - 1,917,319 2,060,000 2,060,000 142,681
Net change in fund balance 101,328 - 101,328 - - 101,328
Fund balance, July 1, 2013 493,106 - 493,106 493,106 493,106 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2014 3 394434 % - 5 594 434 $ 493,106 b 493,106 % 101,328

See accompanying accountants' report.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
EXTENDED SCHOOL PROGRAM FUND
I'OR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budgeted Amounts Positive
Basis) for Encumbrances (Budgelary Basis) Original Final (Nepgative)
REVENUES:
Charges for services £ 300,438 $ - k) 300,438 & 327,940 % 327,940 £ (27,502)
Interest income 246 - 246 - B 246
Other income 6,769 - 6,769 - - 6,769
Total revenues 307,453 - 307453 327,940 327,940 (20,487)
EXPENDITURES:
Sularies 251,622 - 251,622 250,700 250,700 (922)
Payroll taxes 19,250 - 19,250 19,125 16,125 (125)
Benefits 21,635 - 21,655 22,570 22,570 9ts
Supplies 2t416 - 21,416 31,200 31,900 10,484
Other 9,578 - 9,578 6,845 6,845 {2,733
Tatal expenditures 323,521 - 323.52% 331,140 33,140 7,619
Net change in fund balance (16,068) - {16,068) (3,200) (3,200) (12,868)
Fund balance, Juiy 1, 2013 104,504 - 104,504 104,504 104,504 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2014 b 88,436 b - % 88,436 b3 101,304 b 101,304 b (12,868)

See accompanying secountants’ report.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2014

Variance with
Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjusiment Expenditures Buggeted Amounts Positive
Basis) for Encumibrances  (Budpetary Basis) Original Final (Negalive)
REVENUES:
Charpes for services 5 724,011 5 - 5 724,011 £ 755980 % 715,980 % 8,031
Investment income 980 - 980 900 el B0
Otlier revenues 14,767 - 14,767 - 14,763 2
Total revenues 739,758 - 739,758 756,880 731,645 8,113
EXPENDITURES:
Curment:
Salaries 701,989 - 701,989 718,772 714,510 8,52%
Poyrofl taxes 32,652 - 52,652 36,782 55,831 3,179
Benefits 258,584 - 268,584 277,167 272,626 4,042
Telephone and wiilites 502 - oc2 800 950 48
Contract ond professionnl 31,321 2,176 40,457 42,006 42,000 1,503
Repairs and maintenance 198,208 - 198,208 159,316 204,145 5,937
Travel and training 392 - 392 1,706 500 108
Supplies 21,957 - 21,957 21,549 22916 959
Uniforims 6,133 - 6,135 10,700 7,700 1,565
Gas and oil 140,603 - 140,603 163,772 143 961 3,358
Parts nnd supplies 2314 - 2314 1,290 2,790 476
Operating insurance 64,851 - 64,8351 36,079 63,501 650
Landfitl 369,663 - 369,663 388,620 372,620 2,957
Other 1,843 - 1,843 17,500 1350 507
Total program costs 1,861,414 o176 1,870,590 1,918,047 1,504 500 33,810
Capitl outlny 60,493 - 60,493 47,247 61922 1,420
Total expenditures 1,921,907 9,176 1,931,083 1,965,294 1,966,322 35339
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,182,149} {9,176) (1,191,325) (1,208,414) (1,234,677} 43,352
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,206,839 - 1,206,839 1,182,839 1,226,839 (26,000}
Transfers out - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,206,839 - 1.206,839 1,182 839 1,236 B39 (20,000
et change in fund balance 24,650 {9,178) 15,514 (25,375) (7.838) 23,352
Fund balance, July 1, 2013 200261 - 200,261 200,261 200,251 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2014 § 224,951 S {9,1760 % 215,775 5 174,686 5 193,423 5 23,352

Seg acCOMpPANYIng acountanis' report
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENIMTURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2(14

REVENUES:
Drug fines
Confiscated money
Sale of confiscated eguipment
Investment income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Travel and training
Suppties
Other

Capital outlay

Towml expenditures

Exeess (deficiency) of revenues aver (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USESY:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other finnncing sources (uses)
Net chanpe in fund balance

Fund balance, July I, 2613

Fund balenee, June 30, 2014

Variance withy

Actual Budgetery Actual Revenues/ Final Budger -
({GAAP Adjustment Expendinures Budpeted Amounts Positive
Basgis) for Encumbrances  (Buduetary Basis) Qripinal Final {Nepntive}
11911 s - £ 11,911 5 20,600 15,000 ) {3,089)
9,669 - 6,669 5,000 8,000 1,669
475 - 473 - - 475
532 - 332 750 750 (218)
22 587 - 22,587 25,750 33,750 (1,163)
1,887 - 1,887 2,000 2,000 113
145 - 145 232 232 87
569 - 569 1,000 569 -
4,258 - 4,238 3,250 5,081 823
10,060 - 10,000 2,000 10,000 -
13,643 (1,070) 12,623 30,000 15,000 2377
39,552 (1,070) 25,482 44,482 32,882 1,40¢
(7.965) 1,670 (6,895) {18,732) (9.132) 2,137
- - - 18,732 9,132 9,132
- - - 18,732 0,132 9,132
{7.965) 1,070 (6,895} - - 11,369
98,000 {1,079) 06,9230 U8.000 08,000 {1,070)
90,035 £ - £ 50,033 £ 58,000 98,000 S 10,299

See accompanying Actounlanits’ report.
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CITY OF TULLAIZFOMA, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
UDAG FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actal Budpetary Actuel Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budgeted Amousts Positive
Basis) for Encumbsances (Budgetary Basis) Original Final (Negative)
REVENUES:
Note repayments b 214,817 % - ¥ 214,817 % 180,000 % 210,000 3% 4,817
Invesiment income (2,779 - (2,779) 1,000 1,000 (3.77%
Other 104 - 104 100 100 4
Total revenues 212,142 - 212,142 181,100 211,100 1,034
EXPENDITURES:
Program cost 27.385 - 27,385 9,800 31,300 31,915
Sign gram 7,642 - 7,642 10,000 10,000 2,358
Industrial loans 68,000 - 68,600 335,000 313,500 245,500
Total expenditures 103,027 - 103,027 354,800 354,800 251,773
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES):
Transfers in 60,000 - 60,000 - 60,000 -
Transfers out - - - - - -
Total other {inancing sources (uses) 60,000 - 60,000 - 60,000 -
Net change in fund balance 169,115 - 169,115 (173,700) (83,700} 252807
Fund balance, July 1, 2013 374,042 - 374,042 374,042 374,042 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2014 b 343,157 § - & 543,157 5 200,342 § 290342 8§ 252,807

Sege accompinying accountanis' report.
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REVENUES:
Note repayments
Investment Ineome
Other revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Progrum cests
Loans disbursed
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING S0URCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total ather financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balsnce

Fund halance, July [, 2013

Fund balance, June 30, 2014

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUPGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAD)
USDA REVOLVING LOANS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Viariance with

Agmal Budgetary Actoal Revenues/ Final Budget -
(OAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budpeted Amounts Positive
Hnsis} for Encumbrances  (Budpetnry Basis) Original Final (Nepstive)
k3 53,927 5 $ 53,927 3 35,000 & 55,000 5 (1,073}
1,160 1,160 1,000 1,000 160
124 124 129
55,211 55,211 36,000 56,000 (189)
613 615 2,300 2,800 2,183
22,000 22,000 80.000 20,000 58,000
22615 22,615 82,300 82,800 60,185
32,596 32,354 (46,300) {26,800) 39,395
32,596 32,5% (46,300) (26,800) 39,396
77,959 77,96% 77,999 77,599 -
% 114,595 % 5 110,595  § 31659  § 51,189 8 59,396

See accompanying accouniants' repart.
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REVENUES:

Local shared taxes

Interest income

Tatal revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Program costs

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over {under) expendiures

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
EDUCATION DERT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Toto other financing sources (uses)
Met change in fund balance
Fund balance, July |, 2013

Fuond balance, June 30, 2014

Actual Budgetnry Actunl Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budgeated Amounts Positive
Basis) for Encumbrances _(Budpetary Basis) Originnl Final (Nepative)
£ 363,125 5 - g 363,125 - 3 - 3 363,125
8,547 - 8,547 B.547
371,672 - 371,672 - - 371,672
371,672 - 371,672 - - 371,672
2,178,949 - 2,178,94% - 2,300,000 {121,051)
(2,205,504} - (2,205,504) - {2,300,000) 94,496
(26,555) - (26,555) - - {26,555)
3450117 - 345117 - - 345,117
2,492 645 - 2,492,645 2,452,645 2,492 645 -
5 2,837,762 5y - 8 2 837,762 2,482,645 I 2,493,645 5 345,17

Sce accompanying accountans’ report.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS (NON-GAAP)
GENERAL DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance with

Actual Budgetary Actual Revenues/ Final Budget -
(GAAP Adjustment Expenditures Budgeted Amounts Pasitive
Basis} for Encumbrances  (Budgetary Basis) Original Final {Negative}
REVENUES:
Interest 5 - 85 - 5 - % - 1 - 5 -
EXPENDITURES:
Principal retirement 2,232 000 - 2,252,000 2,252,000 1,252,000 -
Interest 1,047,690 - 1,047,690 1,602,880 1,602,880 555,190
Fiscal charpes 2,600 - 2,600 3,000 3,000 400
Total expendiiures 3,302,290 - 3,302,290 3,857,880 3,857,880 553,590
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under) expenditures {3,302,250) - (3,302,290} (3,857,880) (3,857,880} 555,590
QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 3,395,563 - 3,399,563 3,857,880 3,857,880 (438,317
Transfers cut - - - - - -
Tatal ather financing sources (uses) 3,396 563 - 3,399,563 3,857,880 3 857,880 (458,317)
et change in fund balance 91,273 - 97,273 - - 97273
Fund balance, July 1, 2013 54,844 - 54,844 54,844 54,844 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2014 § 132,117 § - 5 152117 8§ 34,844 5 54,844 5 97,273

See accompanying accownlants' repor!.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
DESCRIPTION OF NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUL FUNDS

SCHOOL FEDERAL AND STATE PROJECTS FUND
The School Federal and State Projects accounts for funds generated through federal and state grants which
support various educational programs.

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICES FUND
The Scheol Food Services Fund accounts for funds generated through the food service operations of the

City Schools, and also includes funds received through state and federal srants for the free and reduced
meal programs.

EXTENDED SCHOOL PROGRAM FUND
The Extended School Program Fund accounts for the program revenues and expenses related to the City Schools'
extended school program which provides child care services before and after school.

SOLID WASTE FUND
To account for the receipts from garbage collection fees and expenses related to the City's solid waste activities.

DRUG FUND
To account for funds confiscated by the City in drug law enforcement actions.

UDAG
To account for repayment and disbursement of UDAG funds for businesses.

USDA REVOLVING LOAN FUND
To account for loans originally made from funds received from Rural Development.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FEDERAL PROJECTS FUND
To account for grant funds primarily from the Department of Justice for specific law enforcement purposes.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
To account for the use of bond proceeds for the construction of public facilities and other public works projects.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

EDUCATION DEBT SERVICE FUND
Established by private act to provide funds to make debt service payments for Education facilities.
Funded primarily by internal transfers of sales tax from the General Fund.

C-12






{panunueco)

1-a

<todat supjunoase Sutuzduiosor aeg

2121dwoo S1 GONSRISUND USYM PAZUBUL 2q [[Ia LEO[ 3L)) JO SULS) PUE U0} UONIMIISUOD TSI SH L,

SAPANDY [EIUDILLIBACT) - B[GEAR SO0 PUE SPUOE |80 ],

FEOGFI'ED § CCR'G6EE'EE § SII°I6L9S §
T09°64T 556 RTOT SLi‘L9Sy S2MIAHOY [BIUDLULLIZAOT) - 2[qEAR ] SIION [CIOL
£6£°8S 000°059 000°059 120T ‘1 (1dy 7107 ‘91 A2y 049T'T PLOE sat2g 0N Aepng (eade)
- ovgL61 000°005°T * £10T 0T f2que0ag 0400'€ £10T S2LAg ‘W0l [ Ur0 JUAWLLIAA0E [B207]
LS6'S91 €11'068 S11°068 $T0T 1 12qo3aQ €107 ‘91 Joquadog 2%E6T £10¢ $auag ‘ajoN Aepagy |eiide))
Z87'6T 000°16T 000°LZ9 L10T 1 Amnigag LO0T ‘L Aenigay %URT Y L00T $319g ‘2o Aeping jende)
u_su_»am muaoz
TIT'668°TI 0001 169E 000°bETTS SAIHALDY [DIUSWLIIA0L) « D[GRAT ] SPUOE] UOTHI[qQ [PIaUaD) [0 |,
0EL 9GP 000°LLE 000°STI 1 £EQT 6T 1aquana  §OOZ ‘6T 1equwaaa(] e 800T SaKAg ‘Flop AL 48INL
00£'6T8°c 000801 000 80Tl £E0T ST A $00T 9 sn3ny %6 §00T sal1ag "AlON (00428 FNL
LEGITE 000°SZY ' (00°S6L Y 120z 1 [udy T10Z "8 Iaquuaaop] %E - %l 7107 $913g ‘spuog Sulpunjay| [00Lag UONTEIGD [B1U3D
LEL'EOIT 000°05H 000°0SL Y TE0T ‘1 #9020 010t ‘01 1ndny % - %L 010Z 2193 ‘spuog] jooyag uenediqQ jeuan
9.5788'T 000°051°6 00070256 9zoT ‘1 1dy 9007 “¢1 Iequiana(g Bt - 2%<5°E 90(Z s910g ‘Spuog Bulpunyay] uoenedigQ [BRUID
CPSUOLT'l 000°0L6"S 000°088°6 9707 ‘1 [dy £00T 1 Jequiaaon %S - %STE £00Z soLIag ‘spuogl Fuipunyay pue uawaaosdw arjqng [Lisuan
LBE9E % 00O°SE0°T & 000°CO0'F  §  L10T 11990100 6007 “LT 1Sn3ay 04CTE - W4T 600Z SALag ‘Spuog Sulpunjay uoleslqQ [e1aual)
3[qeARd SPUOY UONEFQ) [BRUaD
ISIANIY [EIUIUMLIDAOE)
r10Z ‘0 aung +10T ‘o€ 2ung ANSS] JO JUnOUy Armiey anssy Jo e ey 18N tondrasacy
Jo se funiey FupueIsing Jeuid Jo a1e(y
0] 152121U] junoury
[ediouitg

v10Z ‘0€ ANML

ANTANYIAOD AUVIARIA - ITEVAYd SHLON ANV SGNOY 40 T1NAdTHOS
HASSANNAL ‘VINOHVTINL 10 ALID



e-d

‘uodat sueunoaze Suifurdionoe sag

sup) Wwatodwo?y - ajqeded sajoN 810

(410 k) 8L6°L6T 08Z'LTY :y
PES 8.8°1T 000°cT 6107 ‘F1 Y21 F10T “F1 4B %00°t (PI-F1-£0) 2iquded ueo DVAN
080°1 966'TT 000'sT £20T 6 1sndny £10¢ ‘g ¥ndny %6001 {£1-50-80) a1quded uTo HVAN
Lt 8TIT 0056 LI0T ‘] Aenigag T10T  Aenuef %00°1 (Z1-$0~10) 2[quded veo] OV AN
1L $ 9L6051 % 08L°69¢ § 6107 ‘1129000 £00T ‘9 4208120 SEL0 (c0-¢0-11) 21q8ded U0 OVAN
JAoqny vodny edpunp
3[qQUAT 5910
ispu anodwe)
219(dWiog S§ UONDRNSUOD USYA PAZIBUL Y [|IA US| AU] JO SWLI3} PUC URO[ UOIIINIISUO2 € $1 SIUJ
SGHCPE'S § TOL'BBITT § 060°158°vE § satjialay ad{)-ssauisng - 9jquiig SNON puUE SPUoE (B10]
08c'iTy TOL'EOL'L 060°951°L1 saianay adAp-ssautsng - d[qede ] saoN (L0
0v9°'va 000°6€L 000°006 TT0t °1 Aeauey 10T ‘6T 43quaa3(] Y9L'T L10T SaLag ‘sa1oN Aeng (eide Xz pue anuaany
Otv'vIe 000°c86"1 DOO'ROL Y 020T ‘ST AEN 6661 €T ABN %08 ¥ 6661 10T AL
WAISAT 1T
8CR'EL 000‘9LE 400°00L TT0T 1 Aenuey LL0T "6T +aquadag SR9L°T 1 10T $212g “SajoN AB[nQ |epde]) Xe ] pue anuasay
- LLY'E6TE 9yZ'Ghe * TI0T 1 Y2 %l uz0] pun FUA[eARY FIEIS
SIF¥T LEBLIS 000'060°¢ 9107 ‘I 1aquaoa] LG6T 1 Aenuey %08t LLO-b6 ‘puny ueo] Julafoany ajers
OpeEl GELERS 000°LS1°L €10z *1 wndny 661 ‘I sequandag %08°¢ £50-£6 "pung uwo SulA[0AdY 2T
24 FAS A trRr6 S10¢ *1 ysivN £00Z ‘1 Y2 Y%E00 - %ET L £00Z sauag ‘C0-61€ punyf uLo]
i31SAG 10IBAL 2ISEM
S[qEAT] SIT0N
SLItTE' 000°c66'11 000°669°L1 SOIANGY 2dA1-ssoUIsn g - a[qrAnd SPUOE anuaAaY Mo
059°¢T 000‘0le 000°0ZL L10T "1 48Q013() L661 T AInf %59 - %S¢ L66] SALI2S ‘SPUOH XB], PUB SMUIANY INTM A1STM PUT F238M
SoOP'Q06'r % 000°58L° %1 § 000'SLE'O1 & LToT 1&g L0O0Z 1 1sndny TR N LOOT S3LIDG ‘SPUOE XB [, PUE anUaA2Y WaIsAS sand() Jaqr
3[qeAu spuoq onuoATy
isanianay adAy-ssausng
F10Z “0¢ suny F10Z ‘DL oURf NS JO Junouny Kume anss| Jo ;B 21EY 1S2123U] uonduosaq
10 SE AJInBp Buipuesing [BUL JO B3
01 isatau] junowry
[ediuttd

P107 ‘0€ ANAL

INTANTIACD AUVIATUD - HTEVAYd SHLON ANV SANOCE 40 4INAAHIS
AASSANNTL ‘VIWOHVTINL 40 ALID



£-d

-uodal siuejunoage Jujdueduiosae geg

L8S'OE  §  000°S60°l § cI18'se  § 606990°L § Ll § 160'8C 8 LEGIIE  §  000°STHY §
- - - - - - - - Pe0T
- - - - - - - - £€0T
- - . - - - - - zTeoT
- - - - - - - - [£02
- - - - - - - - 0£0Z
- - - - - - - - 620T
- - - - - - - - 820T
- - - - - - - - LT0T
- - - - - - - - 9z0T
- - - - - - - - §T0T
- - - - - - - - bzoT
- - - - - - - - £T0T
- - - - - - - - €z0t
- - - - - - 058 000°¢z8 1202
- - - - - - 000°tT 000°05L 0Z0Z
- - - - - - 000°€E 000°0¢ 1 6107
88L°1 0000t I 88L°1 000°011 - - 0sT'sg 000°SLE 810z
0s1s 000°501 0s1°s 000°501 - - 000°CS 000°000'1 L10T
$TC'8 000°001 TT'8 000001 - - 000°ZL 000°000°1 910C
pZ¥'1Z §  000'08L 8 Zse'0z § 606°ISL 8 €LL $ 1608z % LEV'Y8  § 000°5TE § SI0T
}sadajuy _nmmu:_uam 1s3ta)uy mﬂn:u:_._m 15a49)U] _un_un_h&. 15a931] _ﬁn:u:_.mm 163 4
fejog, puny [00YdS pun g jeiaadasy TI0T Sanayg

6007 sen1ag ‘spuog durpunjay uonedlqQ [elauan

+107 ‘0 ANAC

spuog Suipunjay jooyasg

uoyEBIqQ [elauan)

SANO™ NOLLVOITIO TVHINITD - SINFWTHINOTY ADIAUES L9Ad 40 TTINATHOS

HASSANNAL ‘VINOHVTINL A0 ALID



¥-d

‘uodat sjueunoose Fulfuedwosse 995

LEL'E0IT $ 000°0SH' Y $ 9L5°788°T $ 000°0S1°6 $ SPS9ET $ 000°0L6°S $
- - - - - - FE0T
005°01 000°SZS - - - - ££02
005°0¢ 000°SLY - - - - 7E0T
8cF 8t 000°0Sh - - - - 1£0T
£V8v9 000°5TV - - - - 0£0T
£90°08 000°00% - - - - 620C
£1Ev6 000°00% - - - - 820T
1#9°L01 000°SLE - - - - LTOT
GITLIT 000°002 008°6¢ 000°566 0751 000°0LE 970T
F6S*ETT 000°007 000°08 000°500°1 €90°0¢ 000°05¢ ¢ToT
696°8C1 000°0S1 009°0Z1 000°S10°1 060t 000°0v € +z0T
69F° EE] 000°051 009°191 000°5T0°1 060°LS 000°sTE £20T
F60°LEL 000°001 000°€0T 000°SE£0°1 06769 000°01¢€ 70T
18L°6€1 000°001 009°¢HT 000°0F0°1 06v°18 000°00€ 1202
eI 000°001 €91482 000°550°1 $09°C6 000°58¢ 0202
P60 ST 000°001 001°FTE 000°590°1 S09°91 1 000°008 610C
P6S o1 - 058°pSE 0007078 §GG6El 000°59L 810¢
£60°8¥1 000°001 791°95¢ 000°S€E €5Lo 191 000°0%L L10T
760° 151 000°001 88T°LSE 000°0¢ §5TL61 000°01L 910T
P60 FS1 $ 000°001 $ £l 8cE % 000°0¢ $ SO0°I€L i 000°5.L9 § g1oc

152u9u] [edpurnig jsagau] [edourrg Jsaaajuj [ediduLig dwa g

0107 saLIag 9007 SILIAg S00T SILIAS
spuog spuog spuog Surpunjoy puv 1udwasoadumy
jooas uonedqQ [vlauar) Suipunjay uonLIQQ) [E1IUID) A uopesyqO [eiouan

$10Z ‘0€ ANAC
SANOE NOLLVOITIO TVIANTD - SINTATIINOTYH ADIAYIAS L91d A0 A TNATHDS
AASSANNAL ‘VINOHVTINL 10 ALID



5

-podar sjueimodne Sulduediuodoe sag

2P 0186 § Z1V'668°TL § 000'11698 § p0e'6ze’s  § 000 7P8°0L § 0cL'068 $ 000°LLG 5

016°cER 016°6€ 000°86.L g16°s¢g 000°86L - - FEOT
$60'9FH" 1 $60°%8 000°29E°1 SFTOL 000°€9. pse'e 000'tL £€0z
SOILIFL SOLOFT 000°LLE T 0t1°€01 000°1EL YA 000°1L TE0T
81960t 819°Z61 (00°L1T] S6SPEL 000°669 $8¢6 000°89 [£0C
£50°10%°1 £60°THT 000°65F°1 Q0LF9L 000°699 0I¢TI 000°59 0£0T
£98°065°1 £98°987 000°ZO1°1 005°€81 000°019 00€E'ST 000z 6707
86£°90F°1 26E°CEE 000°cLO'1 SRO1TE 000°c19 000°81 006°09 820T
199°€6E ] 199°6L¢E 000°8T0°[ SSPLYT 000°98¢ £9¢°0T 000°LS LTOT
FST'EFOT FST 80P 000'081°C 00LTTLE 000°19% $66'CC 000°pS 9TOT
6S8°669°C 658'56S 000'vr 1T $98'967 000°LES SEL'sT 000°TS SE0T
6ETDILT GET1H9 000'690°T 566'61E 00018 SRGLT 00008 pToT
6E0FILT GEOVTL 000°0F0'C SELTHE 000°zoY SPL6T 000°8¥ £T0T
y89°09L'T 8908 D00 196 1 SRT'E9E 000°'0LY §18°1¢ 000°9 TzoT
164'059°¢ [5%°168 000'65L°T cecrene 000°05 % SoLEE 00k 1202
LTLPPO'E LTLT186 p00'E99°C 0£6'C0% 000°1£p £89°ce 000°CF 0z0Z
PeLPPYE FCLLLOL 000°L95°T 0LV 1EY 000°CLy S8FLE 000°0F 610T
ZEF199°¢ TEV6ST' 000°20S°T 00T'6EF 000°F6E 561°6E 000'8¢ 8102
CRI¥ISE CR1°0ZZ°1 000V6ET £91'95t QO0°LLE 098°0p 000°LE L10T
LOL'9E9'E LOL00E'] 000°9EE"T 01¥°TLY 000°19¢ CEPTH 000°sE 910¢
SIE1L9'E 8 1€ 1881 § 000°06Z°T % 086°L8Y $ 000 ove 5 §96'cr 3 000'v€ $ $10T
[E10L 183493u] [ediante g BEERETN | jedurg 151U [eduntg dBajx

spuog uoI3esIqQ [eIaUag [BI0], 2007 sallag 8007 S8

0N [001S ajoN AHD

pung puog punyg puog

jediaungy 29ssauua g, fediprungy] sassauua],
£10T *0€ ANNL

SANOA NOILLVOI'TAO TVIANTD - SINTIWTIINOZY IDIAYIS L41d 4O ITNATHIS
AASSANNIL ‘VINOHVTINL A0 ALID



9-d

11odar sjumunoooe Futfuedinosse 995

L1L'080°T g 209°6$T $ SIItEsl g £6£°85 ] 000059 [ LG6'591 g C11'068 g TeT'cT g 00y 162 §
GLT'88 cLz'l 00018 - - SLT'T 000°L8 - - 9707
08418 8L 000°+8 - - 08L'E 00048 - - ST0E
Z12'38 rAka 000°zZ8 - - A A 000°z8 - FLOT
£85°8% £95°g 00008 - - €858 00008 - - £20%T
c88°L8 §88°01 0O0'LL - - $88°0t 000°LL - - zeoz
TLE'D6I TLE'E] GO0'SLT 09T°T 000001 el 000'SE - - 1202
TEL'681 7eL'61 000°0L1 S 000°L6 08Z'S1 000°EL - - 0Z20Z
686'691 686'cT 000°991 66€'D 000°55 065°LI 000°1L - - 610T
106l I¥19¢ 000°¢91 10L°8 000°€6 oFts1 000°69 - - 8loe
#15°66T p16°0€ 000°65T g5L°01 000°1 6 £EP1T 000°L9 £TEt 000°101 LIz
809°S6T 00 vt oeo'1sT 69LE1 000'68 COE'ET 0009 PLE'R 000°L6 9l0c
#29'38¢7 $ 606°05 $ cirgeT $ FOR'T1 9 000°¢8 $ 00Z°cT g cI1'09 $ SSHTL g 000't6 $ clozg

[20A R }saruf __F:un_._nm ﬁmuhuunn mam_uu_._& ”muha:—m _—:.__u:m..:.— gmuhu“_n—m _f:u:_hnn duay

snop Aepng wd) (mor {F1-91-5) (£1-91-6) {L0-2-D)
FHOT sau1ag £10Z 5198 LONT 591135

smop Lepngy (unded

SILON AVILNO TVLILVD

we1ded g uB0f JUILUIIADL [2307]

FHOT ‘0E ANILL

SLNIWAUINOIY ADIAUAS LATd 10 A1ATHIS
AASSANNILL ‘VINOHVTTIAL 40 ALID

sajoN Aeping [ede)y



L-d

‘uodar sjueiunonoe Suiduediionse sag

06620T §  TIO'C §  BL6M6l $ TIPTC S PES % BLRIC S  GLOPC S 0801 5 96T ®  SSIT § LT $  8cl'T § LrEwSl & 1LEE § O9L6°05] §
vy I £zl - - - vk [ £Tr - - - - - - FE0T
§T9'C 81 0I9°T - - - 879°C 81 019t - - - - - - £z0c
879t tr P85°T - - - 8T9°C r P3CT - - " - - - [A3in
829'T 0L 85T - - - 89T 0L BEET - - - - - - )
€L69 il L8680 - - - 8T9'C 96 TEST - - - LYE'y e STE'F 0zot
891'9¢ P9¢ pO8'sE 0Fs'e Sl sTee §79°T Izl LOS'T - - - Q000 8ct TLL'BT 610t
9pELE 359 889°9¢ 8ILY 19 LEYY §29°C bl 8T - - - 000°0¢€ 15% 6¥5'6C 810T
£05°LE 6¥6 PeE'9E BIL'p Lol L9k 829°C 0L1 BEH'T LS I 9¢1 000°0€ 1L9 62E°6Z L102
SPERE Ly 860°LE BIL'Y £el §95'y 879'T 561 £Er'e 666 Ef 166 0000t 168 601762 910z
SPE'BE 4 b€l 0§ TO8WE § 8IL'Y % 86l % 0TS'r § 8T9T % 61T % 60T § e66 0§ 8 £ I8 § Q000§ BOI'L & TEBBT § SI10T

oy isaamqup  qedipuisg [N 1saanup  edpuug oL saaqui  ediuiag (oL sy edpuag 110 wsasoquy qediuetd I

1MoL rI-r1-€) (e1-¢-8) (Ti-r-1) {ee-1-10)
usoF Dvan us0] IVAAN ued ] Hvan ueoF DV
gwoyen [, Jjo 17 wwoyoyng, jo LD vwaoygn L o AR swoge(n L Jo A1)

F10Z '0€ ANNT
ALIMOHLAY LYO4LHIY TYLIOINIAW VINOHVTIL
SINZFWTHINOFY ADAYES LAXA 40 TTNARHIS
AASSANNIL ‘VINOHVTINL 40 ALID



3-d

wtodal siueunoooe SulAuedwonoe aag

SLI'61661 8§ SIT'vEZ6’y 8 000°S66°PE  § Sor006t  § DOO'S8L'PL  $ 059°€T 000°01C $
8LO°SOPT 8L0°0¢ 000°6LE T 8L0°0E 000°SLET - - 820
1£0°60F 1 1£0°68 000°0Z¢'] 1£0°68 000°0ZE’] - - LTOT
697 SO’ 1 69t SP1 000°09C°1 6P S 000°09Z°1 - - 970C
16 P0T°1 16£°661 000°50T°1 16€°661 000°50Z°1 - - §T0T
910°90t' 010°1$T 000°SS1°1 910°15T 000°6S1°T - - +z0T
£9L°FOF'T £9L°66C 0005011 £9L°66¢ 000°501°1 - - €707
69L°50%°1 69L°SPE 000°090°1 69L°SHE 000°090°1 - - TeoT
[EE'60P 1 1€€°68¢ 000°0Z0°1 1£€°68¢ 000°0Z0°1 - - fzoc
8LF COPT 8LPOEP 000°L6 LY O 000°SL6 - - 0z0T
L8 POF L TLE69Y 000°5£6 TLE'69Y 000°5¢6 - - 610t
POLPIT 1 76L 606 000°556 18Z°80¢ 000°006 €157 00058 810T
81T°S9r' 81T°05% 000°516 189°6HS 000098 LES'Y 00055 L10T
ZI6E9p 1 T16°886 000°5L8 L8F°185 000°5T3 STH'L 000°0% 910z
£66'79% | $ £66'7C9 $ 000" 018 $ 2U8°PL9 $ 000°06L $ SLI'OE 000°0¢ $ cloz

[Z101 J15a191U] —nn__u:_.._h jsadaju] mnm_u_—_._nm 1saIaluf _nmmunm._nm A€ 4

A 193(] (Lo-1-8) (L6-1-€)
puocyg xe j, ® anuaAdy] LT 591198 L6661 Sl

spuny L1eiarrdorg
w0l

Spuag XEJ PUt 3NUIAY

waysAg sondoy 1aq1y

$I0T “0¢ ANAS

@vVOod SUILI'TLLA VINOHVTINL

SPUOg XG[ 3 INUIAFY
I BAN AISEAL W UM

SININWTHINOTYH ADIAYES L4Id 40 TTINATHDS

HASSANNAL ‘YAOHVYTTINL 40 ALID



6-d

‘1odar sjurjunoooe Sutfuedwosse 225

0EETIT % CTOr89'l § QIZTIL 8 ELEOL9T § 868°CL $ 000°9L5 % 81¥'FCT § LERLIE 8 06 £l by 9cL'TBE 5
081z 000°6L 08l 000'6L 081°C 000°6L - - - - 0t
90£'t 000°LL 90¢’t 000°LL 90ty 000°LL - - - - 1z0t
9LE'G 000°cL 9LED 000°sL 9LE'D 000°S2 - " - - 0Z0t
06£°8 000'€L 0628 000°¢L 06€°8 000°cL - - - - 610T
0se'0l 000'1L 0SE'0I 000°1L 0s£'0l 000°1LL - - - - 810T
PST'TI YoF'9LI PSTTI PER'ILT t5E'Tl 000'69 - F6b' L0 - - L10Z
95RTT £08'09€ 9587t £98°09¢ FOL'FL 000°L9 8pc's 1E0°60T PO ER'HS 910z
gio'cy $ 899°1LL  § yog § 91Z'r9L % 868°C1 5 0060°c9 ;) 0L0°G1 b T 8 9E5°El $ p06'L6r & 510t
Jsa1apuy [odiauens g 15043)U] 1edrauny g 150093u] jedidun g 1520091 jedug 113Ut edung FBIN

SUONUIIGO 0N {eong 1107 521098 “AenQ LLO-T6 CE0-€6
WAEAS IDTB AL HSTAN [TIOL [updeyy xu g, pus antaasy pusty ueo} pun,g ueo}
121BADISU AL Juiajonay E)§ duiafoaay 3ulg

48! £ TEPL § Pl b TSHL by
- " - - zooe
- - - - 1202
- - - - 0e0e
- - - - 610T
- - - - 810C
- - - - L10T
- - - - 910T
2l g TEF'L £ PlLL g TEFL g ST
152430 [CLIEIGER] Jsasapu |ediaug TN

I®10gng £10T 5aH35 ‘TO-61€
pumn, ueoy
Auoypny quaurdojaaag jeaotf aassouna |
F10Z '0€ ANOT

UYOd STILTTLLA YINOHYVTTAL

SINTINIUINOTY ADIAYIS LATA 10 TINATHIS

AASSANNAL 'VINOHVTIAL 0 A LD



01-a

wodal sjueunoaoe Fuldueduwosse 238

08E'iTy $ STO'8OP'Y h 050°60¢ by 000YTLT g 0F9't6 b 000°6EL & DIY'YIT g 0005861 £
8967 000°081 88L°C 000°101 88L°T 000101 . - 7T
9z3'6 000°9L1 0zg's 000°66 0zs's 00066 - - 120t
9PE'ST 000°1£8 0L6'81 g00°9sy 0LE'8 00096 008°01 000°09¢ 00T
99¢°0¥ 000°p1S 9L6°1E 000" 1 tY 9ELOT 000°¢6 0re'le 000°8¥E 610T
g16"¢ 000°86Y 895 000°LZP 8PTEl 00016 ozl 000°9te 810¢
866°89 Yot 68s YL 98 000t POL'ST 000°68 0FD" 1Y 000°+TE L0T
F6E°16 £08°09L 2£5°39 000°00F 8.0°81 000°'c8 09+°0¢ 000°v1€ 9107
$95°6T1 b3 899°851°1 £ 916 6L by 000°L8E ) 96£°0T g 00078 3 0g¢6¢ £ 000°€0€ 5 cloc

15a40)u] jediounr g EEERERD | [edpurr g EERREFT) redisura g j5a.0a1U] jediputiy Jna g

suoedyqQ 930N [¥10 ], suonedqo F107 SALIAS 20N Avpn() 6661
PUE “12JE AL “IDIBMIISE AL NON WASLS JE N (10 ], [eadeny Xe I pue anuaAsy uro] TLL
I A AJE AL

PIOT ‘0¢ ANNL
adyod STLLITLLO VINOHYVTILL
SINTWAUINOTY TIIAYIS 197d 40 TTNATHIS
HASSANNIL ‘VINOHVTINL 4G ALID



(paiunteon)

[1-d

‘vodar siueiunodae Suiduedwosoe sag

[Z6'29 0E1'REL (602°59) Ues| )0 uauidagg aassauua ) quo |
[ilis¥4 000z - 000°T b PLSLOFIILTS YN uapgy AULNUREDT Csot((n |
17609 0£I'9T1 (60Z°Y) 008tz s 9L/OE/9-E1/ 18 96LBEPIED aatEIul s31aqui( 1320014
syeag] o uﬂu——_tunuﬂ IS ]
OQD.MN Gcc.mm - :Q,:mtumﬂﬂu —ucﬂ —EuEﬂn:_SEm_” .u.u _EUE-.EQND uummu::uF —ﬂ:u.—.
000'5% 000'sT - 000'sT kY SUEL/EPEFLIT [0610-10LTE g wawdmby Surjafaay
TG EAIISUGT) AU JUILENDALALT JU puanilsidagg aassauna g,
S91'T GLE9ELST (pLg'cel's) 5911 uonganpg jo wautiedag] 5assauua ] (noy
- pOr'Eol (For'eoD) - POt E0l g FLOE/O-E1/1/L ¥iIN DV uolmarisic) apeiddpy puny taa g,
- b00'z (F00'7) pOO'T 5 PLALAEL/L ¥iN Apisgng 141y, IuapuIs suy
- 001°LI (oor'Lr) 001°LI 5 FLAOLA-ELT/L Vi Sj00YI5 9Jes
- I18'e (zre'r) e’ b1 v IOE9-E L/ LIL ¥IN YUY - SINSS
- 95L'6 (9sL'6) 951’6 $ FLOEA-ELI/L Wint 13D
- 0Lyt (0L9'2y) 0L9'TYy 5 P10T-EL0T Vi JPUIRIO papuaixg
- 000's6 (0o0's6) 000°'S6 3 FLOE-EL/11L Vi VY - e 00505 pARUIRLO0S
- Z09'poh (Zog'vor) TH5'60E 5 P1/0ED-CI/1/L XVVEIXIN uonranpg poopin Ay
00Ot 000'661'F1 (oov'gs1'v1} o0o'sGI'rl % PIOE/S-E1/VIL YN wirdiod] uoreanps sseg
SO1°L 106'6T1 (9eL'8T1) 106'671 5 PLOBIS-EI/E/L YN mawaddng Jappe 1sase)
- . {so1't) gor'y 194751 s ELOEI-TI/L/L YIN wzwapddng sapper] 153100
- LET'Y {LeT'y) - - LET'F 5 PLAOLS-S LI YN stojdxy - 1OV
u_._._.umwﬁuﬂ_m_m Ju —:u—:«.——:_um JIESAUUI ]
- 9P0'GL (£92'16) - LiL'cl 1MdO[IASE AJUNLWRES) PEE WOLsdT JO Juaunredag] 5as5auua ] e[
- £00'LS (£00°L8) - - ]75'L8 5 RIS L/LEl/54/L 0OLELPEIDD ST - {dQ1d) WD 2NUANNSRLU] JInUisE,|
- ¥10'61 (veo's1) - - 000°0T 5 El/0La-El/8/t X1 HISEIUUSL IIR[FE - VAL
- 6TL'E (orL's1) - LIL'TI 07Z'8T g 9/ETIT-THELE 09TIEL DD weifolg wawdojaangg s3manuse) RIRmSE]
sjuawdijaasg LHuniuuie) pue Juonedd jo juaugaedag 2as5auun g,
- c86'R1 {595'81) - - amynaudy Jo watedag asssatus] [v10]
- SB6'81 {536°81) - - So6'81 g PLAEI-ELIESL YiN YRIR HONLInN pIy
L2ENNNATY J0 LAt R 255U [
- and'y (000°F) - - UOISSIILIDD) Sy J35EINUD | IO |
- 0002 (poo'z) - - 000'T 3 yLITEl0L SPYE0TIE SHY 1) J0] JURID AITU0NRISI])
- 000'Z (ao0'c - - 000't ¥ v1/S1/9-21/91/8 LLEET-5THIE 24V - |paueine) welolg suy
SUGESSILILG Y Sy 3553 ]
- 000's {(000's) - - 8ISSULDL BPPIA] JS uoriRpitno,] tumuilio) at ] [glo]
- 3 000’s 5 (poo's) 5 - g - g 000's g FLAOLIT-EL/ /T ViN SHY 341 10) Jueg) Leuonatasicl
1IIESIUUI L A(PPILY JO UOLEPRDG,] SHURWIWOT) a5 ],
SHWYHOOUd FDNVISISESV TYIONVNIL ALY IS
102 §38[) sidiasay Juawsnfpy L0z unowy peLz] =R e umrdol
“0E unp jramgipuadsg ey 1 &jor premy weLey eIy
(pauagan) JULTTS ] (pauagaq) aes
2{qealaaay S{YEAlSIRY

FI0T “0€ ANNLC AIANT YVIA THL HOA
ADNVLSISSY TVIONVNIL HLVIS 40 STUNLKINIIXT 40 ITNdIHIS
HASSANNAL ‘YIWOHVTTIAL 10 ALID



Zi-d

-wodaa sjueunooge Suduedwioade a9y

S1F01,] VSIS [FIOURGL] A1 910 ],

F10T ‘08 ANNLC AAANT YVIA THL HO4
TONVISISSV TYIONVNIL ALYLS 40 STUALIANIIXT 40 TTNAIHOS
TASSIANNAL ‘VINOHVTHLL 40 ALLD

78Sl 3 IS E0T 5 leeL'Lvl) " 1 9565 5
- SE6'01 (895°¢T) - EELE] 000°00F 5 Q16T LI/ITT 00-LLi-El snedoy wawaary m/L pu duey
- 05Tl (zss'9T) - T0E'sT 00a°e1 5 LATIF-TH LY 00-8£2-T1 nuday jooy seduey yuoN
- sE0'6Y {679'09} - 06511 LEE'BPE'l & LUSTOI-EL/IE/E 00-061-£1 OQUHIY UOUEH[KIEY ATMIXE [ N
L6E'L SEs'gL {sa'8l} - LE6'8 0o8'G1 g FLAE-EL/ /L 00-18E-€1 doaydn puav asueuRitiviy vodiy
09¥'9 FOS'1L {rr0's) - - 40008 g SINEMR-1 /e 00-891-11 uoisuedx g duiey 1samuoN
4 ] §  0sT'vl §  (sEe'ci) - £ - CO I 3 BIPT/T-ELS 1T 00-£TT-EL ADIG Avauny] Hag,
g eandsues o Jeaurgaedacg sassauua
Luoqny Jedary jedonmy
ss)ug) psneduey
L3F'5T1 §  0EREFY'ST 5 GISTIFESD) - TN 3 SWLIFOL] IUEPSISSY [PULUL] NG fre]
bPLIE FrL'1E - - - uoneyodsues |, jo uawedacy sassauuag [elo]
prL'IE FFL1E - - - 046°85E 5 S1/1E/a-0l/31/01 BO6E LT MIdAEL)60T6-3-015 [ 25EL ] UOLEZI[IADY UMALAO(]
suoyeytmdsied 3, jo pudutedag sassauua ),
LEG'D 6VE'0Z {§L6'00) - 98E'% wawioEAaC] 92103104y HUE FOqET JO UAKILBAAT JaSSIUUI ] |EIe L
L5 6hE0T (6S9°L 1} - L96'[ STE'IT g YIAE9TI/ L YIN [oune) dsetan|
- § - §  f{6lg'e) - §  elf'e §  oLl'st g ELA0E/9-TI/ /L POTREE1DA/0Z68 1Od 2oL 1 NOILIO 3G - UONTIND JISEE IINPY
LU OfaAI(T 33L0JHI0 AL PUT ADGE] J0 Jualpandag) 3ossouua §
Loz sa6] ﬁmﬂ_uuuﬂ— .__._u:.u_m—w._._e. £t0C itnodly ﬁQ_._Un_” daguunp] DURTR Eﬂuﬂchn—
.Om n:..::. ‘.nuhﬂ:_ﬁ:ur—xm ey -— h—ﬂ_. plEmy ﬁc.m,_mu.v ._:nLO
(paua)acT) nen (pauajagg) Ang
ajqearasay a|quatasay]



el-d

‘uodal sjumunodde Sutduedwosae sag

(panutjuaa)

uegesnpy jo jeaunredag g 0L

PLUEZL SIL'LILT (£8L'08C°T (ca5'6t) £E8'19¢
- WETY {ore'zr) - - ShE'TH s YUOE/EL/ /L ViN Y80+ 0 v AL, CSuREag e
- - - {gsz'0l} 852'01 LO00EY 3 Cioee I EFOCOI VOLYS I plemy L) welosd syop usigonpy
- - (917'9%) - i’ 14001 $ CI/0LI6-T10E/6 TEONOIVSBES SHE bR VUEY LLLY
6L1'88 oov'iLl (tTe'zz - - oop' Ll % YIRED-ELL VIN S6E'P8 YUY 0P LLL
- OLL'OF] (oLL'9%1) - - aLL'ovl 1 FLOLSELIL TEQOOIVS5ES SaEts VUV loEl L1
- 00£'ST (oo£"sT) - - 00€'sT 3 ELOEE TS CEDOOIVEEES S6E'+E VUAY $0203 1114
- - {oe'sL) (te1'n) rEEDs LEY'EST g FLLTIOLL ZEOODIVESES CHETR YUYV do L ap 01154y 2assauua)
0sT'LL TLO'0Y {zes'zr) - - TL0'09 5 b LOLE-ENLIL VIN BSE'TE T Medyng ‘g ued [A 3y
P09'ES 000'ap( {96£'28} - - 08090 5 FI/DE/FEL/S1/B 810-10-€1-61 ol ol ] AIUaD IS 1L 8 Ued AL S
- - (9re's11) (6£9'6T) S5 0os°LyT 3 CLOLIS-TI AL ViN DLETr8 A IS LT & M AL RILL
10b'E1L 000°0LT {665'951) - - 000'0LE H PLOS/S-E 11/ £E0-£-01-261 LT ALrqualy 181 | Wi *ALSDIL
$00'0E $00°0E - - - S09'0E g PLOE-E 1/ 1/L VIN S9EF8 mamL
- - - (a85°8) 885’8 [6L'8Z1 3 ELOE/9-1 1/1/L VIN Yi9E P VoMU AL
09t 0SE'TE {(8ri'os) - - DSETT! 3 PI/OE/CLIL/L VIN ViI9E'E ¥R AL
OTH'EST ZEEatR (zot's85) - - CZE'6ER 3 PHOESELIL Vin valav [y
- TT0'ER (zer'est} {1 154'L9 SO5'vL 3 EUGE/STIILIL ZHFODTIVOLO0S Y0108 ramL
- Log'e (L9£°9) - - YN T LOE/GEL/L/L Vin 1be'F8 Lg M DIty
- S09'L (s09°t) - - S09'L $ CLOEGE1/8/8 YiN VELLEE Auonansiz 619 M-34d - 8 vadl
£EL'E TLL'sE (6E0°VE) - - TLL'se 3 FLAOLEE LI VIN VELTbE foeyasasd - vaAl
£8€'91 982'09 {£0s'Er) - - 966'6L H FLAOL/EELIL Y2 1155y pg aadg VLR (ne2wssassy apamaieg) Aeuouainsiq g ued - vadl
- HLE'ED {BL8'z5} - - 8L8'C9 g FLOL/EEI/ L ViN LTO'¢E 150 48 g ued - vadl
LES1LI 0zg'Lle {£20'509) - - 0Co'LlL 5 PIOEIE-EL/ /L Vi LEO'FE q ued - VEA!
‘uoneaupg jo _:uFE:nuﬂ 35S | __m:o:_._. 365,
suapnanpg jo wsunaedag ‘50
- - {£02'51) - £32'91 foqen] Jo waunsedagy gy {EI0g
- - {¢oT's1) - £0E91 1£8°06 5 ENOE9TI/LIL Vi VIO o€ PA - UeneInpy JIseg 1npy
Ao pu ~=.._E—Ld_._um ‘|en
990°Ev ] [STIN [ - PLO'OE] atmnaLgy [0 waunedag] g |e1el,
- 0Ep'SE {oet’ce) - - 0£4'SE 3 FLOESEL/ L ViN S5501 yorug [EuoneN
- - {oto') - 019'1 Vi CLOLS-EHIN VIN 55501 Jauug jenoneN
8ET'01 00b'LT {cor's1} - - 00b'LT 5 FLOS/S-ELI/L Wi {4} a|qelaSap pue s - ueiian piyD
90L'66 LES'95 {1v8'952) - - Lbg'ocs S r/OE/SEL /L viN 5550l we1S01] Yaun jeolag {euotiey
- - {110't6) - 1106 VIN ELAOE/S-TI/IIL VIN £55°01 WEIT0IY Youn'] eoyag {EHolEy
frd 4 3 166'997 (518've2) - . L66'09T g YLAES-EL/ /L YiN £55°01 weafiol] 1SE[RIE {O0UIS [RUOLEN
- g - s (ecoze) 5 - § ESOZE &£ WN ELOEN-TI/ /L VN £55°01 weEiozg 1SENYERIE (A0S [FUOLTN
RIMN2LTY Jo Juauntedac] aassauua | yInony |, passed
nu.—:‘___—u_._mﬂmc m:a::._n.hun .m.D,
SIWVYHHOU AINVLSISSY TYIINVNIA TvHaAQTd
4 fi [EH) BEERET 1waunsnipy £10E unoLny PoLEad IDQUINA 1AGUINR] SO WREoly
‘ot auny Jsaanypuadxy ey 1 Alnp plumy ey D Yado
(psuajacy) jliiry] {pauajaq) NS
3qeAraay qeataan]

F10Z '0€ AN JIANT HVIA THL HOA
HTONVLISISSY HSYD-NON ANV TVIINVNIA TVUZATS 40 STUALIINTIXE JO TTNGITHDS
TASSANNIEL 'VINOHVTTAL 40 ALID



‘wodar siejunonoe SutAueduionor seg

r1-a

ssauantfo |ediound 907 yis papuny A||eips) o408 52 ue) 2] pun, uee] FulAlaay 9IS YTnoayl ueo| U0 £29°GAT"CS JO aaureq unog Buspumsine Ui ) 21aY) {0 OF N7 JOSY 90N,

TINVISISSY HSVI-NON ANV TVIDNVNIL TVHIGIL 40 STUNLIANTIXT L0 FTNAAHIS

PLOZ ‘o ANOLC QIANT ¥VIA THL Y0d

FASSINNIL ‘VINOHVTTAL 40 ALID

- 5 00fe 3 {L60°CE) 5 - S L6L'ST 3 uonepodsui |, o weuniedsd g7 0],
- - (00TE) - 00T'c 6L5°0C 5 SI/LE/8~11/1E PORGLI0-555-91 ELTRiT Apwig wansAg admulig pagty
- 5 00E's §  leg'1g) 5 - £ ST §  000'0zE QLTI LI1T) VO-T§10°655-91 50108 uszisAS Ay yaeoxddy
Ec:r_:c__u:.:._.ma wawiredag) oassauua ) yinos | passe
u—_c_._nuh:n_m:r.h,—..-: _—.u:.:Ln__UC -m..,.n._
AL sdodlary pudidien fy gwee)ng
ssuup) jusuodwo)
amnauBy o wsuneda '§ ) [Rol,
- §  pooool g (o00'001) 5 - g - S VN Y UQES-EI/LIL YiN 56508 weLfo1 uoHNGLAs PO
aannaudy o wawuedag 5
I2JUU]EIESY |EJS([I] EMHUL._:Z
WYHDOUI ADNVLSISSY HSYI-NON TYIDNVNLL TV Ia14
$09°69°1 € SESTO6'L 5 (E0T'¥9E'L) 5 (06S'ey) 3 980Tl § SUIBIS02,[ BIUTISISEY [REIULN LY (LD {0,
[N 6EF IER (00E's0L) - v00’L69 uohepodsu |, 1o WalLidag '§ el
- - (ooL'1} - 0oLl 9L8'91 3 EL/0L/6°TIG] 99ESHOELZ 0096z weadold watliaoajiy alye | speoy ajeg Bwoyein |
98 £95°L (960°t) - - 09L°EL L4 VHOL/6-E1/1/0} G6EAHDEIZ 00902 wesFod awanopu 3l | Specy Ajus ewoyeln L,
- 00T’ (ooet) - - BOE'E0E % PLAVETIALE (81)0091-SL45 SOTOC [0S AIRUBLIBT U[OIUIT 15T - WUBID) [DAYDS 03 SAINOY afug
SEO'61E 9£0'61E (roe'689) - F0L'689 000't98°1 3 vLOEA60/VES (1Ds0E6-N-d15 £09°0T 1aafosg yuswaaoidug aue sepasy
0£T'L6 DET'LS - - - ooO'PEl s b 10T/B-600T/8 {Z1)6026-NT-d LS soLot S{[EMBPLE 13308 suf|0])}
onepodsunl | o jusiungdag] 99ssauua ), R0 L, passe
stonupedsusl g jo wawpiudag ‘st
- BEE( [CI7AE] - 80PT asnsny jo uswueds] g (201
- BEE [ (opLc} - ROFE G0T'T 5 T1/0E/9-T1/14L VN 10991 diyszaunne 1894 joaig w|ing
‘eliol] 12318
waonsnp ju wawgaodag g
TECOIY 084 9EP'E {955°920°E) - - weiSou 1320 &20ady UCH2I01Y RILAUCTAUT §'() (€18
ZETOIR 88L9EF'C {956'920°E) - - 000°'000's $ ZEOT e 0 NXI1600LPST 3599 SSPUn Tuatoaay] JIMIG 221eAy US| J0F S1uei vonez |eide)
AR JO SO Y
qenaios] pagg L3uaiiy vonanol g JUNUUIIALT "ST}
" 168°8L {EET'18) . IPE'T Jawdoaasg] ALY pUR FRUOUOIT 10 uatunvdag '§ 1Y (W0
- kS lagay E) [(AE)] k) = % ZrET 3 cog'oor 5 SULERT-LLET L Q0-L288E-TI-D0 sLe'rl s A0d] J2Mag Jof HEED
”“EuEn_O—u.au_Q ‘D._G.SEEOU pue Jumauoay Jo __._.._E.E.._n_un— FISEIIUD ] M_mn_ﬁnﬂ:. PALSE]
::unzmcmu._—uﬂ .ham:m_:_:ﬁ_u FHLED DGO FU ::I_:Lﬂ:n_ﬁ— Nt |
rlot S3A[Y sidjazay TUSHIENFY £10T unoury POUIS [ JEETETY] Jaquinpy QUK WEII01|
‘0g aunp /sarmpuadsy ey ‘1 Aing presy WELY WD Va4
(pauajag) uniny {pauajxi) aLIg
3;qRA1a93Y a|quamaay



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AND STATE ASSISTANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION
A. Non-cash Federal Programs - OMB Circular A-133

The City is the recipient of federal awards that do not result in cash receipts or disbursements, including the
distribution of U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Food Commoditics (CFDA No. 10.553), which are
valued based on a USDA price list obtained from the Tennessee Department of Health. Distributions under

such programs are included in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards in the
non-cash assistance section,

B. Federal Financial Assistance without CFDA Numbers

Federal Awards which have no assigned CFDA number have been included in the last section of the
appropriate federal agency section.

C. Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards

In compliance with Tennessee state law, the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards is
included with this report. Such schedule presents all state funded financial awards, as defined by the State

Comptroller’s Office, and is prepared and presented in a manner consistent with the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The expenditures presented in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards were
developed from agency records and federal and state financial reports which have been reconciled to the
accounting records of the City Schools. Governmental funds are reported using a modified accrual basis of

accounting. The City Schools’ records serve as the primary source of information in preparation of the City
Schools’ basic financial statements.

NOTE 3 - MATCHING COST

The State of Tennessee’s portion of joint programs with the City is included in the accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of State Awards except in those cases where the state’s portion is combined with the federal
portion and cannot be separately identified. In such cases, the state’s portion is included in the accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The City’s portion of such joint awards is not included.

NOTE 4 - INDIRECT COSTS

Along with all other central service costs allowable under OMB Circular A-87 is the amount which may be
“allocated™ among all programs of the City in a consistent manner, the cost for the audit of the City’s financial
statements and single audits are included in the City’s Cost Allocation Plan.

Many of'the City’s federal and state funded programs allow indirect costs to be charged and include them as a
line item in the grant budget. However, if the grant budget does not specifically provide for indirect costs to be
charged, none of the indirect costs are reported as costs to the grantor nor are the costs included or presented in
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE

GENERAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2014
Calendar
Year of Levy Amount
2014 3 9,981,425
2013 547,561
2012 149,737
2011 61,087
2010 47,105
2009 34,515
2008 18,830
2007 11,146
2006 7,442
2005 2,558
2004 2,318
2003 8,006
2002 -
Total property tax receivable 10,871,730
Less: allowance for uncollectibles (890,305)
Net property taxes receivable $ 9,981,425

*Estimated amount of taxes levied on January 1, 2014 based upon estimate of assessment.

See accompanying accountants' report,
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Tax Balance Payments/ Anticipated Balance
Year July 1, 2013 Tax Levy Adjustments Tax Levy June 30, 2014
2014 $ - b - $ - § 9,981,425 $ 9,981,425
2013 - 9,981,425 (9,433,864) - 347,561
2012 392,354 (242,617) - 149,737
2011 86,251 - (25,164) - 61,087
2010 59,632 - (12,527 - 47,105
2009 42,366 - (7,851) - 34,515
2008 23,438 - (4,608) - 18,830
2007 14,183 - (3.037) - 11,146
2006 8,751 - (1,309) - 7,442
2005 3,465 - (%07 - 2,558
2004 2,572 - (254) - 2,318
2003 8,351 - (345) - 8,006
2002 6,607 - (6,607) - -
83 647,970 $ 9,981,425 3 (9,739,090) 3 5.981,425 b 10,871,730

*Estimated amount of taxes levied on January 1, 2014 based upon estimate of assessment.

See accompanying accountants' report.

D-17






STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

This part of the City of Tullahoma’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required

supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health. This section has not been audited by the
independent auditors.

Contents Page

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time., E-2

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant
local revenue source, the property tax. E-6

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future. E-10

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place

and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments. E-15

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and resources to

help the reader understand how the City’s financial information relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs. E-18

Other Information E-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB Statement No. 34 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2003; schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{accrual bosis of accounting)

Fiseal Year Ending Junc J0,

2415 2004 2T 2008 L 20t0 20EL 2012 23 2014
Expenses -
Governmental aclivilies:

General govemment ¥ 2060837 I 2356527 H 1,338,004 5 2,507,541 ¥ 2098177 § 1267419 § 2064175 3 2475133 5 Lloge7l 5 220K 804

Public salery 4415,03% $.428.570 4,340,678 4,105,343 474512 4,893 204 4,899,328 4,785,495 4,914,253 5157536

Fublic works 1.936,51% 2,284,521 2,099,073 3,963,002 4,512,959 3958539 4,013,062 +,199,087 4,000,510 4,530,320

Community scrvices 1,111,865 1,147,695 1,317,433 280,122 258,962 196,247 584212 442,897 416,682 57501

Wasic management 1,460,610 1,532,964 1,634,355 L317,61% 1,772,153 1771673 L5710, 754 1,856,650 1.B62,225 1LBYO 484

Eduzation 27,635,565 1B,271.669 28,325,095 31,092,600 3,524,551 31,731 485 33264419 33274087 34,290,366 3340472

Interest and other debt refated cosis 1.404,653 1.610,07% 1,333.255 1,367.020 $.333.800 1.237.491 1,335,436 1300.951 L160.625 1035774
Total governmenial activities expenses AGL220.028 41.632.025 41.3B68.706 43213347 46216114 A5.99E.23 1 47,531,386 48234202 46.547,423 49715.881
Business-type activities;

Tullzlioma Vfikitizs Board 25.548.623 2H,085 806 28,706,440 30.031.871 33,217,988 36.521.327 39,907,815 A0.547.972 4D,468.208 A1.467,595
Tatal primary govemmznt expenses 3 65,777,651 I 69.717.83] 5 70,LB5. 146 £ 15237118 3 Bj454,112 S 82519538 £ 87,439,001 3 BR.BAZI54 3 89,415,641 5 60683476
Program Revenoes
Cavernmeniad sesivitics:

Charpes fot §orvices:

Genernl governmen; b 551,297 % 67806 8 ELERD 670665 & 455,051 5 12,598 & 458,043 3 EHUR e B 451,699 5 572,931

Public. safery - - - 29,0u8 82431 43,001 49,571 10,229 44,730 21,055

Wasts managersni 644117 702,155 09,4814 575,730 702,726 714326 772,639 182,997 733,004 24001

Educasion 1,784,840 1,791,503 1683, 500 LG55,108 1,653,950 1,458,645 1,344,884 1,253,943 1,252,008 124,091
Operaling yrants and comribulions 20,118,618 11563090 11,562,27% 24,672,631 25,897,961 24,951,016 26,517,844 26,737,388 12,924,300 I8.858,212
Copital grants and tontiibutions . - - 15.843 - - 3 - - .

Total gevernmental activilies program reveanes 23,1472 24,725 414 24 545,588 276285975 21992120 27,590,303 ,143.051 259.431,454 30,905,540 31,411 300
Businsss-type activities:

Charges for serviczs:

Tullshoma Whilites Buard 26,350,363 29,135,417 0,262,165 31,554,533 15,925,238 36,043,815 44,942,582 4120724 42,396,058 43,554,960
Operahing grants and contribulions - - - - - - . - - -
Copital grants and contibulions 7000 - 2,500 59.364 3.000 25.022 317.305 H,BD6 446,530 66,249

Total business-1ype activilies program revennes 26.357.363 20135117 30.265.669 J1612.897 35928238 A6.068,837 41.259. 887 45.236.340 42,847,548 4373612005

Total primary govemment prugram revenpes 5 49458235 3 53.860.521 £ 54.811.25% £ 31243873 § 61920358 £ 63,659,132 5 70,942,948 § 70,607,354 5 73244448 3 75772509

Nel {Eapense)/Revenue

Govermunenial nctivities $O0I836) 0§ (16P06,621) 5 (LGBSAIIBY £ (E75E437I) 5 (18,242,594 5 (1BA07006) 3 (18388325 & (18J0206E) 5§ (1B545,513) % (17,504,581

Businzsi-iype activities 80R 240 1.045.311 1.400.228 1.580,020 710254 (452,49 1.392.072 GRE 168 1374.340 2,893,614

Toml primery govemment nzi {eapensedieveme 3 (6319416) § (SRSTIN0) S (LSITVLRET) S (16.004245) 5 (07331744 5 (18860.396) 5 (16996353) § (IB2I4700) § (16i7L193) § (19810907
Genera) Revenues and Orker Changes in Net Position
Governmenial netivities:
Toaxes:
Fraperty ¥ B3B2660 5 4149082 £ 0465217 5 8592022 5 A3 5 BITLIW B KESRIIT 5 H945304 S5 O3TLIET 5 3g034.054
Local oplion safes 5,525,615 518,417 6,179,743 8,135,657 7,927,112 7,644,114 7,567,646 8281290 BAIL,549 1,702,708
Other 1axes 1,166,282 1,R35,898 1,432,493 1,507,065 1,460,558 1,360,045 1,502,462 1,625,657 1,683,231 1,682,401
Investment eamtings 222,363 589,450 916,830 604,890 16:4,B41) 153,616 310,219 138,425 113,731 62,326
Cther reverues 141,654 254,870 313,487 464,469 364 450 9,968 296,152 1,000,543 204,568 441,884
Gain on sole ol propersy - 638,450 4,500 - - 5,010 6,630 1315 4,333 (2,71)
Transfers - - 131047 396,924 404,870 395,066 348,163 321.649 {89,047y 286,474
Total govermamental activities 15,637,574 17.206,476 17,639,127 19,740,136 18,563,280 14,655,525 18 B9B 230 323,343 20.352,119 14,258,227
Business-typo activitizs:
Investment garings 156,230 352,934 514,059 HEY, 379 314,483 4,961 36,257 32,161 37,439 26,009
Cihet scvenuss 35,647 57,195 46,215 25,713 108,954 11,615 153,804 &6,55% 113324 65,115
Gain on dispesal af equipment 1,173 4,523 25,241 1,001 1,080 1,777 - 12,147 5,546 (17,796
Translers - - {382.085) 346,924y t1.575) 1342 BRYY 183486 (232.124) 271,551 (206,473}
Tatal busincss-rype activities 193,750 414.652 202,430 624,069 16868 215330 (233.285) {121 258) 011,780 (213.053)
Tatal primary govemment S ISAILIN § O 1762LAM 0 5 1TB41LSST % 30317305 0§ IROELI40 § IH44394 5 BHGRLBIS 5 20207125 S WMOEIT 5 21045174
Change in Net Pusitiug
Governmental dgtivitics $ (1490582 F 204055 5 W0 5 vilGkeS S 21§ 252,019 8 09905 & 1420315 5 B8DGSKE 5 3453645
Business-Iype pevivitics 1,102,490 1,163,463 1,671,659 2.206.0124 727010 (66H.021Y 1,178,687 366.918 2.263.058 2,680,561
Tolal primary govermment (488,092) 1.763.818 2467668 4,322,960 1.448.396 4 16.662) 1.688,592 1,987,375 4,069,644 6,134,307
Print period adjusiment™ - (172.255) 3.284513 - 607843 2,271,438 (35.561) 47.704) 88,647y
“foral change in net pesition 5 GBR0SZ) 1591563 % 5752181 §5 4312060 § 1448306 8 191,841 5 3060030 §  1D5386) 5 4021940 5 5645360

Y The Ciry implementad 1210 active reporting of infrasimickue, as permitted by GASE 34, in FYZ007
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Coffee County Franllin County
Coffee Frankiin
City Direct County Overlapping  City Direct County Overlapping
Fiscal Year Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate @

2005 2.81 2.56 5.37 2.81 2.62 5.43
2006 2.81 2.56 537 2.81 2.62 53.43
2007 2.49 2.25 4.74 2.84 2.62 3.46
2008 2.44 237 4.81 2.44 2.01 4.45
2009 2.44 246 4.90 2.44 2.1 4.55
2010 2.44 2.46 4.90 2.44 2.H 4.55
2011 2.29 2,58 4.87 2.42 2.23 4.65
2012 2.29 2,58 4.87 2,42 2.23 4.65
2013 2.29 2,58 4.87 2.31 2.44 4.75
2014 2.54 2,58 5.12 2.56 2.44 5.00

(1) Overlapping rates are those of local and Coffee County governments that apply to property owners
within the City of Tullahoma.

(2) Overlapping rates are those of local and Franklin County governments that apply to property owners
within the City of Tullahoma.

Property tax rates are per $100 of assessed value.

Sources: Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury, Division of Property Assessments, 2014 Property Tax Rates,
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2014
(for tax year 2013) (for tax year 2004)
Percentage of Percentage of

Taxable Assessed Total City Taxable Taxable Fotal City Taxable
Taxpayer Vilue Rank Assessed Value Assessed Value Assessed Value
Goodrich Acrospace 5 9,768,493 i 252% % - - -
Tullahoma HMA, Inc, 9,691,000 2 2.50% 6,177,280 1 2.17%
Ascend Federal Credit Union 5,122,040 3 1.32% 3,270,375 6 1.15%
Forest Gallery, LI.C 4,730,120 4 1.22% - -
Centro NP Comerce Central 4,444,360 3 1.15% - - -
Harton Regional Medical Center 4,303,907 [3 [.11% 2,045,085 9 0.72%
Lowes Home Center, Inc. 3,497,120 7 (0.90% 3,183,920 7 1.12%
Northgate Limited 2,691,440 8 0.77% 3,553,040 4 1.25%
Coffee County Ind. Board 2,603,160 4 0.70% - - -
JSP International LLC 2,571,300 10 0.66% - . -
IRT Partnership - “ - 3,941,720 2 1.38%
Excel Realty Partners - - - 3,743,560 3 1.32%
Bell South - - - 3,403,244 5 1.20%
Harten Realty Partners - - - 2,586,930 8 0.91%
Continental, LTD - - - 2.030,480 10 0.71%
Total 5 49812940 12.85% & 33,935,634 11.93%

Source: Tuilahoma Director of Finance
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percentage of

Fiscal General Obligation Actual Taxable

Year Bonds Value of Property Per Capita
2005 $ 27,700,220 0.03 $ 1,539.41
2006 31,827,794 0.03 1,768.80
2007 31,349,165 0.03 1,742.20
2008 30,080,000 0.03 1,671.67
2009 31,692,463 0.03 1,710.06
2010 39,166,588 0.04 2,113.34
2011 43,498,000 0.04 2,341.25
2012 41,406,000 0.04 2,219.56
2013 39,408,179 0.03 2,112.47
2014 37,199,147 0.03 1,994.06



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEL
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30, 2014
Estimated Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Direct and

Governmental Unit Outsianding Applicable @ Overlapping Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Coffee County Bonds {exclude school debt) 3 25,910,000 3797% & 9,838,027
Franklin County Bonds (exclude school debt) 7,331,722 2.88% 211,154
Subtotal, overlapping debt $ 10,049,181
City of Tullahoma direct debt 39,228,102
Total direct and overlapping debt by 49,277,283

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt is caleulated by dividing the City of Tullahoma's assessed property
values by the total of each county'’s assessments.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the
City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that
is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Tullahoma. This process recognizes that, when
considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the
residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer
is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Per Capita
Calendar Personal Income Personal Median School Unemployment
Year Population {in thousands) Income* Age*¥ Enrellment Rate
2004 17,994 N/A N/A 380 3,650 4.0%
2005 17,994 N/A N/A 38.1 3,646 5.0%
2006 17,994 N/A N/A 382 3,597 4.2%
2007 17,994 N/A 28,716 382 3,631 5.7%
2008 17,994 N/A 28,716 382 3,630 5.5%
2009 18,333 N/A 24,718 38.1 3712 6.9%
2010 18,533 N/A 24,718 381 3,802 6.9%
2011 18,379 N/A 23,129 381 3,342 9.8%
2012 18,655 N/A 23,129 38.1 3,370 7.6%
2013 18,655 N/A 23,129 38.1 3,373 9.3%
2014 18,655 N/A 21,802 40.5 3,443 6.6%

Note: Certain amounts are not available due to (1) the data is not available for some older years, (2) the data available for some
years was not accumulated in a manner consistent in a manner with current years, or (3) the data has yet to be accumulated
for the current year. Some amounts are estimated.

*The latest per capita personal income published was in 2011,
**The latest median age available was taken from city.data.com last updated in 2012.

Sources: Fopulation estimates provided by Middle Tennessee Industrial Development Association. Personal income and per capita

pessonal income provided by U.8. Bureau of Economic Analysis. School enrollment provided by the Tennessee Depariment of
Education, Average Daily Membership Report.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
FRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2014 2005
Percentage of Percentage of
Number of Total City Number of Total City

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Harton Regional Medical Center 350 1 2.06% 591 i 2.48%
Ascend Federal Credit Union 340 2 1.26% - - 0.93%
Goodrich Aerospace 285 3 1.06% 2323 6 0.94%

Cubic Transportation Systems 235 4 0.88% 226 5 -

Wisco Envelopes Co., Inv. 201 3 0.75% - - -

ISP Intemnational LLC 196 6 0.73% - - -

Schmiede Corporation 157 7 0.59% 134 8 -

Sonoco Corporation 150 8 0.56% - - -

Tullahoma Industries 100 9 0.37% - - -

Coca Cola Bottling Works 95 10 0.35% - - -
LINPAC - - - 112 10 0.47%
Tennessee Apparel - - - 280 3 1.17%
Createc Corporation - - - 139 9 0.58%
Warth, Inc, - - - 176 7 0.73%
Fujicolor Pracessing, Inc. - - - 282 2 1.18%
Jacobs Sverdrup Tech. - - - 227 4 0.95%

Total 2,309 8.61% 2,380 9.43%

Source: Middle Tennessee Industrial Develepment Association and Industrial Board of Coffee Caunty.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY RATES IN FORCE AND AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS
TULLAHOMA UTILITIES BOARD

JUNE 30, 2014

ELECTRIC RATES
Fuel Cost Total

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE Base Rate Adjustment Retail Rate
Customer Charge $12.00
Peak kWh (12 PM-8 PM, Mon-Fri) $0.10172 kWh 0.02759 $0.12931
Off-Peak $0.05172 kWh 0.0275% $0.07931
GENERAL POWER SERVICE

GSA-1 If (a) the higher of (1) the customer's currently effective contract demand, if any, or (2) its
highest billing demand during the latest 12-month period is not more than 50kWh and (b} customer's
monthly energy takings for any month during such period do not exceed 15,000 kWh:

Customer Charge 516.00
Peak kWh (12 PM-8 PM, Mon-Fri) $0.09265 kWh 0.02723 $0.11988
Off-Pealk $0.06973 kWh 0.02723 $0.096%6

GSA-2 1T (a) the higher of (1) the customer's currently effective contract demand or (2) its highest billing demand
during the latest 12-month period is greater than 50kWh but not more than 1,000 kWh or (b} if the customer's
billing demand is less than 50 kWh and its energy takings for any month during such period exceed 15,000 kWh:

Customer Charge $80.00

0 - 50 kW No Charge

51 - 1,000 kW B11.56 kw

First 4,650 kWh Onpeak $0.09347 kWh 0.02723 $0.12070
First 10,350 kWh £0.07044 kWh 0.02723 $0.09767
Additional kWh Onpeak $0.05468 kWh 0.02682 $0.08150
Additional kWh Offpeak $0.03165 0.02682 50.05847

GSA-J If (a) the higher of the customer's currently effective contact deamnd or (b) its highest billing
deamnd during the latest 12 month period is greater than 1,000 KWh:

Customer Charge $200.00

0- 1,000 kW 51031 kW

1,001 - 3,000 kW $12.57 kw

Peak kWh (12 PM-8 PM, Mon-Fri) $0.05526 kWh 0.02682 $0.08208
Off-Peak $0.03233 0.02682 $0.05915
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF UTILITY RATES IN FORCE AND AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

TULLAHOMA UTILITIES BOARD

ELECTRIC RATES (continued)

OUTDOOR LIGHTING
All kWh

An additional Facility Charge is applicable

Type Fixture
100 Watt High Pressure Sodium

250 Watt HPS Cobra Head

175 Watt Mercury Vapor

400 Watt Mercury Vapor Open

1000 Watt Metal Halide

Steel Pole

100 Watt HPS Cobra Head

150 Watt HPS Acorn w/concrete pole
175 Watt MH Acom w/concrete pole
250 Watt HPS Flood

250 Watt HPS Acorn w/concrete pole
250 Watt HPS Shoebox wisq. steel pole
400 Watt HPS Flood

400 Watt MH Cobra Head

400 Watt MH Flood

WATER RATES

First 100,000 gallons

All over 100,000 gallons
Customer charge (minimum)
Multi-unit charge (minimum)

WASTE WATER RATES

First 100,000 gallons

All over 100,000 gallons
Customer charge (minimum)
Multi-unit charge (minimum)

JUNE 30, 2014
50.04322 kWh 0.02759 $0.07081
Energy  Facility Monthly
Rated kWh  Charge Charge Charge
Type A 45 3.9 55.86 $2.05
Type B 111 $7.86 $7.55 31541
Type C 77 $5.45 $5.35 310.80
Type D 174 $12.32 37.02 $19.34
Type E 394 $27.90 51545 $43.35
Type F 0 $0.00 $11.49 31149
Type G 45 53.19 $5.97 £9.16
Type H 68 54.82 $31.66 $36.48
Type ] 75 $5.31 $33.68 $£38.99
Type ] 111 $7.86 $10.40 $18.26
Type K 111 $7.86 $31.80 $39.66
Type L. 111 £7.86 $55.47 $63.33
Type M 171 f12.11 51069 $22.80
Type N 164 F11.61 58.4] $20.02
Type O 164 $11.61 $12.59 $24.20
(Per 1,000 Gallons)
City Limits County Line
Inside Quiside Cooperative
$2.83 $4.06 $4.36
$2.62 $3.74 $3.80
$5.50/mo. 38.25/mo. $10.82/mo.
$4.88/mo. $4.88/mo. $4.88/mo.

{(Per 1,000 Gallons)

Inside City Limits

Residential Commercial
$3.07 $5.57
$4.49 $4.49

$8.79/mo. $17.58/mo.

$6.04/mo. $6.04/mo.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY RATES IN FORCE AND AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS
TULLAHOMA UTILITIES BOARD
JUNE 30, 2014

BROADBAND SERVICE RATES
Residential

Video Packages

Lifeline Basic (No Triple Play Discount) 3 19.95
Expanded Basic h 61.49
Digital Plus (includes HD set top) $ 80.49
Single Service Adder $ 15.00
Digital Tiers
Sports Tier g 3.00
Movie Tier $ 3.00
Latino Tier 5 3.00
Optional Services
HBO 5 18.00
Showtime 5 15.00
Cinemax 5 15.00
Starz! L3 15.00
$3.00 discount for 2 movie channels, $6.00 discount for
3 movie channels and $9.00 discount for 4 movie channels
Equipment
HD Digital Box Included
HD Digital Box - Additional 5 8.00
HD/DVR Digital Box - Primary 5 7.00
HD/DVR Digital Box - Additional 3 15.00
High Capacity HD/DVR Digital Box - Primary 5 14.00
High Capacity HD/DVR Digilal Box - Additional 3 22.00
Whole Home DVR Service b 3.00
Unreturned Digital Box 5 150.00
Unreturned Digital HD Box b 200.00
Unreturned Digital HD/DVR Box b 350.00
Unreturned High Capacity HD/DVR Box 5 500.00
High Speed Internet
15Mbps down / 3Mbps up b 37.95
15Mbps down / 3Mbps up (ala carte) § 3295
40Mbps down / 20Mbps up 5 49.95
40Mbps down / 20Mbps up (ala carte) b 59.95
‘70Mbps down / 35Mbps up b 59.95
70Mbps down / 35Mbps up (ala carte) b 64.95
100Mbps down / 100Mbps up 5 79.95
200Mbps down / 200Mbps up b 99.95
1Gbps down / 1Gbps up 5 299.95
Additional Email address (single) $ 1.00
Installation, Repair, & Other
Standard Install - Prewired $ 29.95
Standard Install - Unwired 5 29.95
Custom Install Hourly Rate b 39.95
Change of Service - Technician on site 5 24.95



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY RATES IN FORCE AND AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS
TULLAHOMA UTILITIES BOARD
JUNE 30,2014

BROADBAND SERVICE RATES (Continued)
Residential (Continued)

Installation, Repair, & Other (Continued)
Change of Service - Electronic Free

Add'l/Relocate Outlet-At initial install-First outlet 3 24.95

Add'l/Relocate Outlet-Separate Trip-First outlet 5 49.65

Add'l/Relocate Outlet-Separate trip-Add'l outlet on same trip 5 24.95

Add new STB-Separate trip (waived if upgrading to digital service) 5 24.95

Service Call - Customer Premise Issue/customer request b 49.95

{above one hour at custom install hourly rate)

Trip charge 3 24.95

Wall Fish 5 24.95

NSF Check Fee 5 25.00

Late Fee 5%

Reactivation Fee ) 34.95

Inside Wire Maintenance {All Services) 3 3.95

Internet Parking (For folks on extended travel) 5  10.00/mo

Additional charge each foot beyond 300 feet for underground 5 1.00/ft

Additional charge each foot beyond 300 feet for overhead k) 0.25/1t

Bundles

LightTUBe Lifeline TriplePlay 5 79.95
Lifeline Basic,15 Mbps down/3 Mbps vupload Internet, Home Phone

LightTURe TriplePlay 5 113.49
Expanded Basic, 15 Mbps down/3 Mbps upload Internet, Home Phone

LightTUBe TriplePlay Plus 5 132.49
Digital Plus with HD, 15 Mbps down/3 Mbps upload Internet, Home Phone

LightTUBe TriplePlay HD 5 139.49
Digital Plus with HD/DVR, 15 Mbps down/3 Mbps upload Internet, Home Phone

LightTUBe TriplePlay Super Fast b 161.49
Digital Plus with HD/DVR, 70 Mbps down/35 Mbps upload Internet, Home Phone

Telephone Services

Home Phone (26 features & unlimited LD) b 31.95
800 Service (monthly) b 5.00
Lifeline b 12.95
Additional Line with Unlimited LD b 2495
Single Service Adder (subscribe to only one service) b3 15.00

Premium Directory Listing
Non-Published Listing b 5.50
Non-Listed Listing b 5.50
Additional Listing b3 3.50

Directory Assistance
Local b 1.00
National 5 1.00
Operator Assisted Service Surcharge 3 1.00
International Directory Assistance 5 5.00



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY RATES IN FORCE AND AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS
TULLAHOMA UTILITIES BOARD
JUNE 30, 2014

BROADBAND SERVICE RATES (Continued)
Commercial

Commercial Rates

High Speed Internet

2Mbps Tier (2m/256k) / No Term b 4995
36 month Term 3 39.95
12Mbps Tier (12M/3M) / No Term 5 79.95
36 Month Term 3 69.95
Non-Profit No Term 3 69.95
Non-Profit 36-Month Term 3 49.95
20Mbps Tier (20M/5M) / No Term 5 129.95
36 Month Term b 99.95
30Mbyps Tier (30M/15M)/ No Term 5 24995
36 Month Term 5 199.95
60Mbps Tier (60M/30M) / Na Term 5 599.95
36 Month Term b 49995
Static IP Addresses
1 Address (none included in 2 Mbps package) Free
5 Addresses 3 10.00
13 Addresses 3 15.00
29 Addresses 3 20.00

Additional Email and Hosting Services
LighTUBe Domain Included

Vanity Domain £ 5.00 each
Additional email addresses (single) 5 2.00
Additional email addresses (block of 25) 5 40.00
Telephone Services
Premium Business Phone (22 features & unlimited LD)
No Term 5 39.95
2 Year Term 3 3495
3 Year Term 3 29.95
Analog T1
Fixed fee per T 5 100.00
Per Channel Charge (minimum of 9) 5 20.00
Digital T1 (FRI)
Full 2-Way T1 (23+D) 5 500.00
Half2-Way T1 (12+D) 5 300.00
Full Inbound-Only T1 (23+D) b 250.00
Block of 20 DIDs 5 15.00
Long Distance {per minute) 5 0.05
800 Service (monthly) $ 5.00
Remote Call Forward Line (monthly) 5 16.00
Remote Call Forward Line (per minute) S 0.05
Toll Free Vanity Search b 5.00
Account Codes - Verified & 5.00
Account Codes - Non-Verified & 4.00



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY RATES IN FORCE AND AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS
TULLAHOMA UTILITIES BOARD
JUNE 30, 2014

BROADBAND SERVICE RATES (Continued)
Commercial (Continued)

Telephone Services (Continued)

Premium Directory Listing

Non-Published Listing 5 5.30
Non-Listed Listing b 5.30
Additional Listing b 5.50
Alternate Listing § 5.50
Directory Assistance
Directory Assistance (local & national) 5 1.00
Operated Assisted Service Surcharge by 1.00
International Directory Assistance hy 2.00
Video Packages
Expanded Basic b 61.49
Digital Basic (no music) 3 100.49
Expanded Basic (Hespitality) Varies
Commercial Music Only § 39.95
Equipment
HD Digital Box - Primary Included
HD Digital Box - Additional $ 8.00
HD/DVR Digital Box - Primary 5 10.00
HD/DVR Digital Box - Additional b 15.00
High Capacity HD/DVR Digital Box - Primary b 17.00
High Capacity HD/DVR Digital Box - Additional b 22.00
Unretumned Digital Box 5 130.00
Unretumned Digital HD Box b 200.00
Unremirned Digital HD/DVR Box b 350.00
Unreturmned High Capacity HD/DVR Box 5 300.00

Average number of customers during the year:

Electric System 11,045
Water System 6,740
Waste Water System 7,499
Fiber System 3,247



TULLAHOMA UTILITIES BOARD
AWWA RETORTING WORKSHEET
JUNK 30, 2014

53,681,538
57.76f5/1000 gallans lUS}
51, 250, 001570

1: Water Imported

2: Unauthorized consumption

3: Billed melered

AWANA Water Loss Control Committea
E-26 Reporting Werkshest 1|



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS AND BONDS

Official

City Administrator
Director of Finance
City Recorder
Purchasing Officer
Police Chief

All Board Members

Director of Schools

All Employees:
Employee Fidelity

All Public Officials:
Liability

All Employees
Employee Fidelity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Name

Louis J. Baltz, T11
Susan Wilson
Rosemary Womack
Frances Samples
Paul Blackwel}

Tullahoma Board of Education

Each occurrence with $2,500 Retention
Dr. Dan Lawson

Each and every loss

Tullahoma Utilities Board

Each occurrence/
$1,000,000 annual aggregate
$5,000 per occurrence deductible

Each and every loss

E-27

Bond amount

$
$
$
i
$

5%

=

100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000

10,000

1,000,000
760,000

150,000

1,000,000

150,000



REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROLS



HOUSHOLDER ARTMAN, PLLC N @ r
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS JL &
P.0. Box 1568 Telephone 931-455-4248
Tuilzhoma, Tennessee 37388 Fax 931-393-2122

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Tullahoma, Tennessee

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the povernmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 201 4,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2014,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Tullahoma,
Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s internal

control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2014-1 to 2014-9 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

MEIY!BFRS
AMERICAN INSTITUTE GF GERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS - TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACGOUNTANTS




Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulis
of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2014-5, 2014-7 to 2014-9.

City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s Response to Findings

City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s resporise was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
EXpress no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Honpbshon %/f)ﬂm PLLC

December 30, 2014
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F.O. Box 1568 Telephone 831-455-4248
Tullahoma, Tennessee 37388 Fax 931-393-2122

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED
BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Tullahoma, Tennessee

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. City of
Tullahoma, Tennessee’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
g 'y

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standardss, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Prafit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal

program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Tullahoma, Tennessee, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014,

MEMBERS
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF GERTIFIED FUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS F-3
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Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
Page 2

Other Matiers

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of City of Tullahoma, Tennessee, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Tullahoma, Tennessee’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over complianee is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Hawholtlo, Aitrve. PLEC

December 30, 2014
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Summary of Auditor’s Results

1.

2.

The June 30, 2014 Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements is an unqualified opinion.

Significant deficiencies in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the basic financial
staternents — see part I1.

The audit did not disclose any instances of noncompliance which is material to the financial
statements.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major programs were disclosed by the audit.
The June 30, 2014 report on compliance for major programs is an unqualified opinion.
No audit findings required to be reported under § 510(a) of Circular A-133 were noted.

Major Programs include:

CFDA number Name of federal program or cluster

Special Education Cluster:
£4.027 IDEA, Part B
84.173 IDEA, Preschool

Child Nutrition Cluster:
10.553 National School Breakfast Program
10.555 National School Lunch Program

10.555 Comimodities
Title I, Part A Cluster:

84.010 Title 1
84.389 Title I, ARRA

84.287 Title TV, Part B, 21st Century
Department of Transportation:

20.603 Federal Highway Safety Improvements

Type A programs have been distinguished as those programs with expenditures greater than
$300,000.

City of Tullahoma does not qualify to be a low risk auditee.

F-5
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Findings related to the Financial Statements reported in accordance with Government Anditing
Standards:

JULLAHOMA UTILITIES BOARD

Finding 2014-1: Deficit fund balance for Fiber Optics Fi und-repeat finding
As of June 30, 2014 the Fiber Optics Fund has a deficit fund balance of $2,177,175.

Recommendation;

The Board of Directors and management should develop plans to bring the fund balance of the Fiber
Optics Fund into compliance with regulatory requirements.

Management’s Response:
The business plan showed that we would operate at a loss for the first three years. Actuals are closely

following the original plan. At the end of FY 14, we are net income positive and are actively reducing the
deficit fund balance from prior years.

TULLAHOMA BOARD OF EDUCATION

Finding 2014-2: Preparation of Financial Statements and Related Disclosures

Under professional standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, there
is a presumed deficiency in internal control when the financial statements and related disclosures are
drafted by the auditor, unless the Organization possesses an accounting department that is staffed with
personnel with the requisite skills and training to perform such functions and the function was performed by
the auditor as an accommodation to management. For this engagement, financial statements were
submitted to us by management that were generated as a by-product of the bookkeeping system. We
proposed certain adjustments to these financial statements as a result of our audit and we drafted the
disclosures required by professional standards.

Recommendation:

We recommend management develop compensating controls such as by engaging the services of other
CPA’s to draft the financial statements and related disclosures or to review a draft of the financial
staternents and related disclosures.

Management's Response:
We concur with the auditor’s finding and recommendation.

Finding 2014-3: Audit Adjustments
We identified the following audit adjustments through the performance of our audit procedures:

°  Grants receivables were understated by $1,920 in the General Fund and overstated by $65,799 in the
Federal Projects Fund.

Accounts payable were overstated by $17,432 in the General Fund.

Revenue for sanitation charges from the City of Tullahoma of $67,339 was not recorded in the
General fund,

Recommendation:

We recommend that management implement more stringent cut-off review procedures to identify possible
unrecorded transactions.



CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2014
Finding 2014-3: Audit Adjustments (continued)

Management’s Response:
We concur with the auditors’ finding and recommendation.

Finding 2014-4: Excess Expenditures

The General Purpose School Fund and School Federal and State Project Fund had several expenditures that
exceeded total appropriations.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the budget be amended before year end in order to avoid excess expenditures.

Management’s Response:
We concur with the auditors’ finding and recommendation.

Finding 2014-5: Deposits

The deposits in financial institutions for Tullahoma City Schools were not collateralized as required by state
regulations.

Recommendation:
We recommended that the deposits of the funds should be collateralized by regulations,

Management Response
We concur with the auditors’ finding and recommendation

TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Finding 2014-6: Preparation of Financial Statements and Related Disclosures

Under professional standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, there
is a presumed deficiency in internal control when the financial statements and related disclosures are
drafted by the auditor, unless the Organization possesses an accounting department that is staffed with
personne! with the requisite skills and training to perform such functions and the function was performed
by the auditor as an accommeodation to management. For this engagement, financial statements were
submitted to us by management that were generated as a by-product of the bookkeeping system. We
proposed certain adjustments to these financial statements as a result of our audit and we drafted the
disclosures required by professional standards. This is a repeat finding,

Recommendation:
Management may wish to acknowledge and accept this deficiency or develop compensating controls,

Management's Response:
We concur with the auditors’ finding and recommendation.

Finding 2014-7: Cash Receipis

During the course of the audit we noted that two collection reports were not located.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Finding 2014-7: Cash Receipts (continued)

Recommendation:

According to the “Internal Control and Compliance Manual for Tennessee Municipalities, at Title 5,
Chapter 14 ** Prenumbered receipts for each revenue source are issued as required by Sections 9-2-103 and
104, Tennessee Code Annotated, and all unused or voided receipts are accounted for. Prenumbered
receipts issued should be detailed to adequately identify and/or document the payment source, payment
date, method of payment (cash or check), purpose of payment, if needed, ete. Each day the cashier
summarizes all cash collections by source and fund on a daily collection report, clearly indicating the
amount to be deposited, the amount retained for change, and the amount of cash over or short. Each report
should be dated, and the date should be recorded on the corresponding deposit slip. Collections are
deposited daily, if possible, but no more than three business days after the initial collection, as required by
state law. Collections are deposited intact and only in designated depositories. Intact means that collections
are deposited in the form and amount in which they are collected. Employee and third party checks must

not be cashed through the cash drawers. No collections should be withheld from the deposit for any
reason.”

Management's Response:
We are aware of the receipting requirements and updating procedures to ensure compliance.

Finding 2014-8: Cush Disbursements

During the course of the audit we noted that one voided checks was not retained.

Recommendations:

According to the “Internal Control and Compliance Manual for Tennessee Municipalities, at Title 5,
Chapter 11 “Two authorized signatures are required for all checks. Authorized signature cards at the bank
must be current. Before signing checks, each signatory should review adequate supporting documentation
(such as vendor invoices, purchase authorizations, etc.).Voided checks are defaced and retained.

Management's Response:
We concur with the auditors’ finding and recommendation.

Finding 2014-9: Credit Cards Fee

During the course of the audit we noted that fees charged to the Authority by the card processer were not
collected in lease payments received from customers.

Recommendations:

According to the “Internal Control and Compliance Manual for Tennessee Municipalities, at Title 3,
Chapter 14 all payments accepted by credit card must charge the customer the “Convenience fee” assessed
to the Authority by the card processer.

Management's Response:
We updated the credit card payment policy in FY15 to address convenience fee charges,

Findings related to Federal Awards (no questioned costs):

There were no findings related to the Federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2014,
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2014

TULLAHOMA UTILITIES BOARD
Finding 2013-1: Deficit fund balance for Fiber Optics Fund
As of June 30, 2013 the Fiber Optics Fund has a deficit fund balance of $2,301,875.

The Board of Directors and management should develop plans to bring the fund balance of the Fiber
Optics Fund into compliance with regulatory requirements.

Current Status:
See Finding 2014-1.

TULLAHOMA BOARD OF EDUCATION

Finding 2013-2: Preparation of Financial Statements and Related Disclosures

Under professional standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
there is a presumed deficiency in internal control when the financial statements and related disclosures
are drafted by the auditor, unless the Organization possesses an accounting department that is staffed with
personnel with the requisite skills and training to perform such functions and the function was performed
by the auditor as an accommodation to management. For this engagement, financial statements were
submitted to us by management that were generated as a by-product of the bookkeeping system. We
proposed certain adjustments to these financial statements as a result of our audit and we drafted the
disclosures required by professional standards.

We recommend management develop compensating controls such as by engaging the services of other
CPA’s to draft the financial statements and related disclosures or to review a draft of the financial
statements and related disclosures.

Current Status:

See Finding 2014-2,

Finding 2013-3: Audit Adjustments

We identified the following audit adjustments through the performance of our audit procedures:

s (rants receivables were understated by $78,709 in the General Fund and overstated by $79,915 in

the Federal Projects Fund.

¢ Revenue for sanitation charges from the City of Tullahoma of $67,338 was not recorded in the
General fund.

We recommend that management implement more stringent cut-off review procedures to identify
possible unrecorded transactions.

Current Status:
See Finding 2014-3.
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CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2014

Finding 2013-4: Excess Expenditures
The Extended School Program had several expenditures that exceeded total appropriatians,

We recommend that the budget be amended before year end in order to avoid excess expendifures.

Current Starus:
See Finding 2014-4.

TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Finding 2013-5: Preparation of Financial Statements and Related Disclosures

Under professional standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
there is a presumed deficiency in internal control when the financial statements and related disclosures
are drafted by the auditor, unless the Organization possesses an accounting department that is staffed
with personnel with the requisite skills and training to perform such functions and the function was
performed by the auditor as an accommeodation to management. For this engagement, financial
statements were submitied {o us by management that were generated as a by-product of the bookkeeping
system. We proposed certain adjustments to these financial statements as a result of our audit and we
drafted the disclosures required by professional standards.

Management may wish to acknowledge and accept this deficiency or develop compensating controls.

Current Status:
See Finding 2014-5,

Findings related to Federal Awards (no questioned costs):

There were no findings related to the Federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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